NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP INC

Form S-4 July 31, 2003 Table of Contents

As Filed With The Securities And Exchange Commission on July 31, 2003

Registration No. [•]

# **UNITED STATES**

# SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

# FORM S-4

# REGISTRATION STATEMENT

Under

The Securities Act of 1933

# NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation) 6712 (Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code Number) 06-1377322 (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

615 Merrick Avenue

Westbury, New York 11590

(516) 683-4100

(Address, including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, including Area Code, of Registrant s Principal Executive Offices)

Joseph R. Ficalora

President and Chief Executive Officer

615 Merrick Avenue

Westbury, New York 11590

(516) 683-4100

(Name, Address, including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, including Area Code, of Agent for Service)

With copies to:

Mark J. Menting, Esq.

Adam D. Chinn, Esq.

Sullivan & Cromwell LLP

Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz

125 Broad Street

51 West 52<sup>nd</sup> Street

New York, New York 10004

New York, New York 10019

(212) 558-4000

(212) 403-1000

**Approximate date of commencement of the proposed sale of the securities to the public:** As soon as practicable after this Registration Statement becomes effective.

If the securities being registered on this Form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box.

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

#### CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of each class of securities to be registered	Amount to be Registered	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Share of Common Stock	Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price	Amount of Registration Fee		
Common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, together with Preferred Stock Purchase Rights, if any(1)	64,000,000(2)	N/A	\$ 1,949,400,000	\$157,706.46(3)		

- (1) As of the date hereof, rights to purchase Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock issued pursuant to the Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement, dated as of January 16, 1996 and as amended between New York Community Bancorp, Inc. ( New York Community ), a Delaware corporation, and Registrar and Transfer Company, as Rights Agent (the Rights ), are attached to and trade with the common stock, par value \$0.01 per share of New York Community. The value of the attributable Rights, if any, is reflected in the market price of New York Community s common stock.
- (2) Represents the maximum number of shares of New York Community common stock, including associated Rights, estimated to be issuable upon the consummation of the merger of Roslyn Bancorp, Inc. (Roslyn), a Delaware corporation, with and into New York Community, based on the number of shares of Roslyn common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, outstanding, or reserved for issuance under various plans, immediately prior to the merger and the exchange of each such share of Roslyn common stock for 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock.
- (3) Pursuant to Rules 457(c) and 457(f) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registration fee is based on the average of the high and low sales prices of Roslyn common stock, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market on July 25, 2003, and computed based on the estimated maximum number of such shares that may be exchanged for the New York Community common stock being registered.

The information in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not issue the common stock to be issued in connection with the merger described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus until the registration statement filed with the SEC is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Subject to completion, dated July 31, 2003

#### MERGER PROPOSED YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

The boards of directors of New York Community Bancorp, Inc. and Roslyn Bancorp, Inc. have unanimously approved a strategic merger designed to create a financial institution with a larger and more dynamic presence in the New York metropolitan area. We believe the combined company will create substantially more stockholder value than could be achieved by either company individually. After completion of the merger, we expect that current New York Community stockholders will own approximately 70% of the combined company and Roslyn stockholders will own approximately 30% of the combined company.

If the merger is completed, Roslyn stockholders will receive 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock for each share of Roslyn common stock held immediately prior to the merger. New York Community stockholders will continue to own their existing New York Community shares. The implied value of one share of Roslyn common stock on [•], 2003 was \$[•], based on the closing price of New York Community common stock on that date. This value will fluctuate prior to completion of the merger.

We have structured the merger to qualify as a tax-free reorganization for federal income tax purposes, and it is a condition to our respective obligations to complete the merger that New York Community and Roslyn each receive a legal opinion to that effect. Assuming the merger is a reorganization, Roslyn stockholders generally will not recognize any gain or loss for federal income tax purposes on the exchange of shares of Roslyn common stock for shares of New York Community common stock, except with respect to cash received instead of fractional shares.

We cannot complete the merger unless the stockholders of both our companies approve it. Each of us will hold a special meeting of our stockholders to vote on this merger proposal. In addition, New York Community stockholders will be asked to approve an amendment to the New York Community certificate of incorporation that increases the amount of New York Community common stock authorized for issuance from 300 million to 600 million. **Your vote is important.** Whether or not you plan to attend your stockholders meeting, please take the time to submit your proxy with voting instructions in accordance with the instructions contained in this document. If you do not vote, it will have the same effect as voting against the merger and the New York Community certificate of incorporation amendment. The places, dates and times of the special meetings are as follows:

For New York Community stockholders: For Roslyn stockholders:

[•], 2003

[•], local time

[•], local time

[•]

[•]

New York Community s board of directors unanimously recommends that New York Community stockholders vote *FOR* adoption of the merger agreement and *FOR* the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock.

[•], New York

Roslyn s board of directors unanimously recommends that Roslyn stockholders vote FOR adoption of the merger agreement.

[•], New York

This document describes the stockholder meetings, the merger, the documents related to the merger, and other related matters. **Please read this entire document carefully.** You can also obtain information about our companies from documents that we have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

JOSEPH L. MANCINO

JOSEPH R. FICALORA

President, Chief Executive Officer

President and Chief Executive Officer

and Vice Chairman of the Board

New York Community Bancorp, Inc.

Roslyn Bancorp, Inc.

New York Community common stock is quoted on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol NYB. Roslyn common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol RSLN.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved the New York Community common stock to be issued under this joint proxy statement/prospectus or determined if this joint proxy statement/prospectus is accurate or adequate.

Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus is [•], 2003, and it is first being mailed or otherwise delivered to New York Community stockholders and Roslyn stockholders on or about [•], 2003.

#### REFERENCES TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This document incorporates important business and financial information about New York Community and Roslyn from documents that are not included in or delivered with this document. You can obtain documents incorporated by reference in this document, other than certain exhibits to those documents, by requesting them in writing or by telephone from the appropriate company at the following addresses:

New York Community Bancorp, Inc.

Roslyn Bancorp, Inc.

615 Merrick Avenue

One Jericho Plaza

Westbury, New York 11590

Jericho, New York 11753

Attention: Ilene A. Angarola
First Senior Vice President

Attention: Mary M. Feder Vice President

Investor Relations Telephone: (516) 683-4420 Investor Relations Telephone: (516) 942-6150

You will not be charged for any of these documents that you request. New York Community and Roslyn stockholders requesting documents should do so by [five days before date of meeting], 2003 in order to receive them before the special meetings.

See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page [●].

### VOTE ELECTRONICALLY OR BY TELEPHONE

New York Community stockholders of record may submit their proxies:

through the internet, by visiting a web site established for that purpose at  $[\bullet]$  and following the instructions; or

by telephone, by calling the toll-free number [•] on a touch-tone phone and following the recorded instructions.

Roslyn stockholders of record may submit their proxies:

through the internet, by visiting a web site established for that purpose at [•] and following the instructions; or

by telephone, by calling the toll-free number [•] on a touch-tone phone and following the recorded instructions.

### NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.

#### 615 Merrick Avenue

Westbury, New York 11590

#### NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

New York Community Bancorp, Inc. will hold a special meeting of stockholders at the  $[\bullet]$ ,  $[\bullet]$ ,  $[\bullet]$ , New York at  $[\bullet]$ , local time, on  $[\bullet]$ , 2003 to consider and vote upon the following matters:

a proposal to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 27, 2003, by and between New York Community Bancorp, Inc. and Roslyn Bancorp, Inc., pursuant to which Roslyn will be merged with and into New York Community;

a proposal to amend the New York Community certificate of incorporation to increase the amount of New York Community common stock authorized for issuance from 300 million to 600 million; and

such other business as may properly come before the New York Community special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

In the merger, New York Community will be the surviving corporation, and each share of Roslyn common stock will be converted into 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock. Your attention is directed to the joint proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this notice for a complete discussion of the merger and the related transactions. A copy of the merger agreement is included as Appendix A to the accompanying joint proxy statement/prospectus.

The New York Community board of directors has fixed the close of business on [•], 2003 as the record date for the New York Community special meeting. This means that New York Community stockholders of record at such time are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the New York Community special meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the special meeting. A complete list of New York Community stockholders entitled to vote at the New York Community special meeting will be made available for inspection by any New York Community stockholder for ten days prior to the New York Community special meeting at the principal executive offices of New York Community and at the time and place of the New York Community special meeting. In order for the merger agreement to be adopted or the certificate of incorporation to be amended, the holders of a majority of the New York Community shares outstanding and entitled to vote thereon must vote in favor of adoption of the merger agreement or amendment of the certificate of incorporation.

Whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting, please submit your proxy with voting instructions. To submit your proxy by mail, please complete, sign, date and return the accompanying proxy card in the enclosed self-addressed, stamped envelope.

Alternatively, you may use the toll-free telephone number shown on the proxy card to vote by telephone or visit the web site noted on your proxy card to vote on the internet. This will not prevent you from voting in person, but it will help to secure a quorum and avoid added solicitation costs. Any holder of New York Community common stock who is present at the New York Community special meeting may vote in person instead of by proxy, thereby canceling any previous proxy. In any event, a proxy may be revoked in writing at any time before the New York Community special meeting.

The New York Community board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement and the proposed action to increase the										
amount of authorized common stock and unanimously recommends that New York Community stockholders vote	<b>FOR</b>	adoption of the								
merger agreement and FOR the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock.										

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
Mark A. Ricca, Esq.
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
Westbury, New York
[•], 2003
YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT, PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN YOUR PROXY CARD, OR VOTE VIA

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN YOUR PROXY CARD, OR VOTE VIA PHONE, OR VOTE VIA THE INTERNET PROMPTLY, WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE SPECIAL MEETING.

#### ROSLYN BANCORP, INC.

One Jericho Plaza

Jericho, New York 11753

#### NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Roslyn Bancorp, Inc. will hold a special meeting of stockholders at the  $[\bullet]$ ,  $[\bullet]$ , New York at  $[\bullet]$ , local time, on  $[\bullet]$ , 2003 to consider and vote upon the following matters:

a proposal to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 27, 2003, by and between New York Community Bancorp, Inc. and Roslyn Bancorp, Inc., pursuant to which Roslyn will be merged with and into New York Community; and

such other business as may properly come before the special meeting of stockholders or any adjournment or postponement of the meeting.

In the merger, New York Community will be the surviving corporation and you will receive 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock for each share of Roslyn common stock that you own immediately prior to the merger. Your attention is directed to the joint proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this notice for a complete discussion of the merger and the related transactions. A copy of the merger agreement is included as Appendix A to the accompanying joint proxy statement/prospectus.

The Roslyn board of directors has fixed the close of business on [•], 2003 as the record date for the Roslyn special meeting. This means that Roslyn stockholders of record at such time are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Roslyn special meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the special meeting. A complete list of Roslyn stockholders entitled to vote at the Roslyn special meeting will be made available for inspection by any Roslyn stockholder for ten days prior to the Roslyn special meeting at the principal executive offices of Roslyn and at the time and place of the Roslyn special meeting. In order for the merger agreement to be adopted, the holders of a majority of the Roslyn shares outstanding and entitled to vote thereon must vote in favor of adoption of the merger agreement.

Whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting, please submit your proxy with voting instructions. To submit your proxy by mail, please complete, sign, date and return the accompanying proxy card in the enclosed self-addressed, stamped envelope.

Alternatively, you may use the toll-free telephone number shown on the proxy card to vote by telephone or visit the web site noted on your proxy card to vote on the internet. This will not prevent you from voting in person, but it will help to secure a quorum and avoid added solicitation costs. Any holder of Roslyn common stock who is present at the Roslyn special meeting may vote in person instead of by proxy, thereby canceling any previous proxy. In any event, a proxy may be revoked in writing at any time before the Roslyn special meeting.

The Roslyn board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement and unanimously recommends that Roslyn stockholders vote FOR adoption of the merger agreement.

Edgar Filing: NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP INC - Form S-4
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
R. Patrick Quinn, Esq.
Corporate Secretary
Jericho, New York
[•], 2003
YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN YOUR PROXY CARD, OR VOTE VIA PHONE, OR VOTE VIA THE INTERNET PROMPTLY, WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE SPECIAL MEETING.

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT VOTING PROCEDURES FOR THE SPECIAL MEETINGS	1
<u>SUMMARY</u>	3
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA OF NEW YORK COMMUNITY	10
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA OF ROSLYN	12
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA	14
COMPARATIVE PER SHARE DATA	16
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	17
THE NEW YORK COMMUNITY SPECIAL MEETING  Matters to Be Considered  Proxies  Solicitation of Proxies  Record Date  Voting Rights and Vote Required  Recommendation of the Board of Directors  Attending the Meeting  Participants in New York Community s and New York Community Bank s Benefit Plans  Voting by Telephone or the Internet	18 18 18 19 19 20 20 20 20
THE ROSLYN SPECIAL MEETING  Matters to Be Considered  Proxies  Solicitation of Proxies  Record Date  Voting Rights and Vote Required  Recommendation of the Board of Directors  Attending the Meeting  Participants in Roslyn s and The Roslyn Savings Bank s Benefit Plans  Voting by Telephone or the Internet	22 22 22 23 23 23 24 24 24 24 24
INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANIES	25
THE MERGER  General  Structure  Background of the Merger  New York Community s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of New York Community s Board of Directors  Roslyn s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of Roslyn s Board of Directors  Opinions of Financial Advisors  Opinion of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. to New York Community  Opinions of Roslyn s Financial Advisors  Board of Directors and Management of New York Community Following the Merger  Distribution of New York Community Certificates	27 27 27 28 30 32 34 34 43 53
Fractional Shares Public Trading Markets	55 55
New York Community Dividends Absence of Appraisal Rights	55 56

i

# **Table of Contents**

	5.0
Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger  Interacts of Reglying a Directors and Officers in the Merger that Differ From Your Interacts	56 57
Interests of Roslyn s Directors and Officers in the Merger that Differ From Your Interests Acquisitions Generally	60
<del></del>	
THE MERGER AGREEMENT Terms of the Merger	61 61
Treatment of Roslyn Stock Options	61
Closing and Effective Time of the Merger	61
Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Agreements	62
Declaration and Payment of Dividends	62
Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers	62
Expenses and Fees	63
Conditions to Consummation of the Merger	63
Possible Alternative Merger Structure	64
Amendment, Waiver and Termination of the Merger Agreement	64
Resales of New York Community Stock by Affiliates	65
New York Community Employee Benefit Plans	65
<del></del>	
THE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENTS	66
The Stock Options  Description:	66
Purpose of the Stock Option Agreements	66
Exercise; Expiration	66
Rights Under the Stock Option Agreements	68
ACCOUNTING TREATMENT	70
MATERIAL FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE MERGER	71
DESCRIPTION OF NEW YORK COMMUNITY CAPITAL STOCK	73
General	73
Common Stock	73
Preferred Stock	74
NEW YORK COMMUNITY STOCKHOLDER PROTECTION RIGHTS AGREEMENT	75
COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDERS RIGHTS	76
General	76
Comparison of Stockholders Rights	76
<del></del>	
DISCUSSION OF ANTI-TAKEOVER PROTECTION IN NEW YORK COMMUNITY S CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION	
AND BYLAWS General	78 78
Authorized Stock	78 78
Classification of Board of Directors; No Cumulative Voting	78 78
Size of Board; Vacancies; Removal of Directors	78 78
Special Meetings of Stockholders	78 78
Stockholder Action by Unanimous Written Consent	79
Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws	79
Voting Limitation	79
Business Combinations with Interested Stockholders	79
Business Combination Statutes And Provisions	80
COMPARATIVE MARKET PRICES AND DIVIDENDS	81
PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition and Statements of Income	82 82
Chaudited 1 to 1 offia Comonica Condensed Consolidated Statement of Philadelal Condition and Statements of Hicolife	02

ii

Table of Contents	
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition As of June 30, 2003 Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2003	83 84 85
NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	86
PROPOSAL TO AMEND NEW YORK COMMUNITY S CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION TO INCREASE THE NUMBER OF AUTHORIZED SHARES OF COMMON STOCK Vote Required Purpose and Effect of the Amendment  EXPERTS  OTHER MATTERS New York Community 2004 Annual Meeting Stockholder Proposals Roslyn 2004 Annual Meeting Stockholder Proposals WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	90 90 90 93 93 93 94 95
APPENDICES:	
APPENDIX A	
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 27, 2003, by and between New York Community Bancorp, Inc. and Roslyn Bancorp, Inc.	A-1
APPENDIX B	
Stock Option Agreement, dated as of June 27, 2003, between New York Community Bancorp, Inc., as issuer, and Roslyn Bancorp, Inc., as grantee	B-1
APPENDIX C	
Stock Option Agreement, dated as of June 27, 2003, between New York Community Bancorp, Inc., as grantee, and Roslyn Bancorp, Inc., as issuer	C-1
APPENDIX D	
Opinion of Citigroup Global Markets Inc.	D-1
APPENDIX E	
Opinion of Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P.	E-1
APPENDIX F	
Opinion of Goldman, Sachs & Co.	F-1

iii

#### OUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT VOTING PROCEDURES FOR THE SPECIAL MEETINGS

#### O: What do I need to do now?

A: After you have carefully read this document, indicate on your proxy card how you want your shares to be voted. Then complete, sign, date and mail your proxy card in the enclosed postage paid return envelope as soon as possible. Alternatively, you may vote by telephone or the internet. This will enable your shares to be represented and voted at the New York Community special meeting or the Roslyn special meeting.

#### **Q:** Why is my vote important?

A: If you do not return your proxy card or vote by telephone, the internet or in person at the appropriate special meeting, it will be more difficult for New York Community and Roslyn to obtain the necessary quorum to hold their special meetings. In addition, the failure of a New York Community or a Roslyn stockholder to vote, by proxy or in person, will have the same effect as a vote against the merger agreement. The merger must be approved by the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock and Roslyn common stock entitled to vote at the respective special meetings called for the purpose of voting on the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. In addition, in the case of New York Community stockholders, the failure to vote, by proxy or in person, will have the same effect as a vote against the proposed amendment to New York Community s certificate of incorporation. The certificate of incorporation amendment must be approved by holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock entitled to vote at the New York Community special meeting called for the purpose of voting on the proposed certificate of incorporation amendment. New York Community stockholders do not need to approve the proposed amendment to New York Community s certificate of incorporation to approve the merger.

### Q: If my shares are held in street name by my broker, will my broker automatically vote my shares for me?

A: No. Your broker will not be able to vote your shares without instructions from you. You should instruct your broker to vote your shares, following the directions your broker provides. Please check the voting form used by your broker to see if it offers telephone or internet voting.

#### **Q:** What if I fail to instruct my broker?

- A: If you fail to instruct your broker to vote your shares and the broker submits an unvoted proxy, the resulting broker non-vote will be counted toward a quorum at the respective special meeting, but it will have the same effect as a vote against the merger agreement.
- Q: Can I attend the special meeting and vote my shares in person?
- A: Yes. All stockholders are invited to attend their respective special meeting. Stockholders of record can vote in person at the special meeting. If a broker holds your shares in street name, then you are not the stockholder of record and you must ask your broker how you can vote at the special meeting in person.

#### Q: Can I change my vote?

A: Yes. If you have not voted through your broker, there are three ways you can change your vote after you have submitted your proxy (whether by mail, phone or the internet):

First, you may send a written notice to the person to whom you submitted your proxy stating that you would like to revoke your proxy.

Second, you may complete and submit a new proxy card or vote again by telephone or the internet. The latest vote actually received by New York Community or Roslyn, as the case may be, before the stockholders meeting will be counted, and any earlier votes will be revoked.

1

#### **Table of Contents**

Third, you may attend the New York Community special meeting, or the Roslyn special meeting, as the case may be, and vote in person. Any earlier proxy will thereby be revoked. However, simply attending the meeting without voting will not revoke your proxy.

If you have instructed a broker to vote your shares, you must follow the directions you receive from your broker in order to change or revoke your vote.

- Q: If I am a Roslyn stockholder, should I send in my stock certificates now?
- A: No. You should not send in your stock certificates at this time. If we complete the merger, Roslyn stockholders will then need to exchange their Roslyn stock certificates for New York Community stock certificates. We will send you instructions for exchanging Roslyn stock certificates at that time. New York Community stockholders do not need to exchange their stock certificates as a result of the merger.
- Q: When do you expect to complete the merger?
- A: We expect to complete the merger in the fourth quarter of 2003. However, we cannot assure you when or if the merger will occur. We must first obtain the approvals of our stockholders at the special meetings and the necessary regulatory approvals.
- **Q:** Whom should I call with questions?
- A: New York Community stockholders should call the New York Community Investor Relations Department at (516) 683-4420 with any questions about the merger and related transactions.

Roslyn stockholders should call the Roslyn Investor Relations Department at (516) 942-6150 with any questions about the merger and related transactions.

2

#### **SUMMARY**

This summary highlights selected information from this document. It does not contain all of the information that is important to you. We urge you to read carefully the entire document and the other documents to which we refer in order to fully understand the merger and the related transactions. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page [•]. Each item in this summary refers to the page of this document on which that subject is discussed in more detail. Roslyn Stockholders Will Receive 0.75 of a Share of New York Community Common Stock per Share of Roslyn Common Stock (page [•]).

As a result of the merger, each Roslyn stockholder will receive 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock for each share of Roslyn common stock held immediately prior to the merger. We sometimes refer to this 0.75-to-1 ratio as the exchange ratio. Upon completion of the merger, New York Community stockholders will own approximately 70% of the combined company and Roslyn stockholders will own approximately 30% of the combined company. New York Community will not issue any fractional shares. Roslyn stockholders entitled to a fractional share will instead receive an amount in cash based on the average of the high and low sale prices of New York Community common stock on the trading day immediately prior to the date on which the merger is completed.

Example: If you hold 110 shares of Roslyn common stock, you will receive 82 shares of New York Community common stock and a cash payment instead of the 0.5 of a share that you otherwise would have received (i.e., 110 shares x 0.75 = 82.5 shares).

### Comparative Market Prices and Share Information (pages [•] and [•])

New York Community common stock is quoted on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol NYB. Roslyn common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol RSLN. The following table sets forth the closing sale prices of New York Community common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange and Roslyn common stock as reported on the Nasdaq National Market on June 26, 2003, the last trading day before we announced the merger, and on [•], 2003, the last practicable trading day before the distribution of this document. This table also shows the implied value of one share of Roslyn common stock, which we calculated by multiplying the closing price of New York Community common stock on those dates by 0.75.

			Implied Value
	New York		of One Share
	Community	Roslyn	of Roslyn
	Common	Common	Common
	Stock	Stock	Stock
At June 26, 2003	\$ 27.10	\$ 20.85	\$ 20.33
At [•], 2003	\$ [•]	\$ [•]	\$ [•]

The market prices of both New York Community common stock and Roslyn common stock will fluctuate prior to the merger. Therefore, you should obtain current market quotations for New York Community common stock and Roslyn common stock.

New York Community may from time to time repurchase shares of New York Community common stock and purchase shares of Roslyn common stock and Roslyn may from time to time repurchase shares of Roslyn common stock and purchase shares of New York Community common stock. During the course of the solicitation being made by this joint proxy statement/prospectus, New York Community or Roslyn may be bidding for and purchasing shares of Roslyn common stock.

Structured as a Tax-Free Transaction to Roslyn Stockholders (page [•])

The merger has been structured to qualify as a tax-free reorganization for federal income tax purposes, and it is a condition to our respective obligations to complete the merger that New York Community and Roslyn each receive a legal opinion to that effect. Assuming the merger is a reorganization, holders of Roslyn common stock generally will not recognize any gain or loss for federal income tax purposes on the exchange of their Roslyn common stock for New York Community

3

common stock in the merger, except for any gain or loss that may result from the receipt of cash instead of a fractional share of New York Community common stock.

The federal income tax consequences described above may not apply to some holders of Roslyn common stock, including certain holders specifically referred to on page [•]. Your tax consequences will depend on your individual situation. Accordingly, we strongly urge you to consult your tax advisor for a full understanding of the particular tax consequences of the merger to you.

New York Community s Dividend Policy (page [•])

During 2002, New York Community paid cash dividends totaling \$0.57 per share (as adjusted for a 4-for-3 stock split completed on May 21, 2003). New York Community currently pays a quarterly dividend of \$0.23 per share, which is expected to continue, although the New York Community board of directors may change this dividend policy at any time.

Our Reasons for the Merger (pages [•] and [•])

Our companies are proposing to merge because we believe that:

by combining with each other we can create a stronger company that will provide significant benefits to our stockholders and customers alike:

by bringing our customers and banking products together we can do a better job of increasing our combined revenues and earnings than we could if we did not merge; and

the merger will strengthen the combined company s position as a competitor in the financial services industry, which is rapidly changing and growing more competitive.

New York Community's Board of Directors Recommends That You Vote FOR Adoption of the Merger Agreement and FOR the Proposed Action to Increase the Amount of Authorized Common Stock (page [•])

New York Community s board of directors believes that the merger is in the best interests of New York Community and its stockholders and has unanimously approved the merger agreement. New York Community s board of directors believes the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock is in the best interests of New York Community and its stockholders. New York Community s board of directors unanimously recommends that New York Community stockholders vote **FOR** adoption of the merger agreement and the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock. The increase in New York Community s authorized shares of common stock is not necessary to complete the merger.

Roslyn s Board of Directors Recommends That You Vote FOR Adoption of the Merger Agreement (page [•])

Roslyn s board of directors believes that the merger is in the best interests of Roslyn and its stockholders and has unanimously approved the merger agreement. Roslyn s board of directors unanimously recommends that Roslyn stockholders vote **FOR** adoption of the merger agreement.

New York Community s Financial Advisor Has Provided an Opinion as to the Fairness of the Exchange Ratio, from a Financial Point of View, to New York Community (page [•])

In deciding to approve the merger, the New York Community board of directors considered the opinion of its financial advisor, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., which has given an opinion to the New York Community board of directors that as of the date of such opinion the exchange ratio of 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock for each share of Roslyn common stock was fair to New York Community from a financial point of view. A copy of this opinion is attached to this document as Appendix D. New York Community stockholders should read the opinion completely and

4

carefully to understand the assumptions made, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken by Citigroup Global Markets in providing its opinion. New York Community has paid \$1,500,000 to Citigroup Global Markets and has agreed to pay Citigroup Global Markets an additional \$5,000,000 upon the completion of the merger.

Roslyn s Financial Advisors Have Provided Opinions as to the Fairness of the Exchange Ratio, from a Financial Point of View, to Roslyn s Stockholders (page [•])

In deciding to approve the merger, the Roslyn board of directors considered the opinions of its financial advisors, Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. and Goldman, Sachs & Co., which were given to the Roslyn board of directors, that as of the date of such opinions the exchange ratio of 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock for each share of Roslyn common stock was fair to Roslyn s stockholders from a financial point of view. Copies of these opinions are attached to this document as Appendices E and F, respectively. Roslyn stockholders should read the opinions completely and carefully to understand the assumptions made, matters considered and limitations of the review undertaken by Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. and Goldman, Sachs & Co. in providing their opinions. Roslyn has paid \$2,437,500 to Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P., and has agreed to pay Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. an additional \$5,312,500 upon the completion of the merger. Roslyn has paid \$1,937,500 to Goldman, Sachs & Co. and has agreed to pay Goldman, Sachs & Co. an additional \$5,812,500 upon the completion of the merger.

Neither New York Community nor Roslyn Stockholders Have Appraisal Rights (page [●])

Both companies are incorporated under Delaware law. Under Delaware law, neither the stockholders of New York Community nor the stockholders of Roslyn have any right to a court determination, in a proceeding known as an appraisal, of the fair value of their shares in connection with the merger.

Information about the Companies (page [•])

New York Community Bancorp, Inc.

New York Community Bancorp, Inc., also referred to as New York Community, is the parent holding company for New York Community Bank. New York Community Bank is a New York State-chartered savings bank whose deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. New York Community Bank operates through 55 traditional and 54 in-store branch offices in New York City, Long Island, Westchester County and New Jersey, and a public accommodation office in Richmond County. As of June 30, 2003, New York Community had total consolidated assets of approximately \$1.2 billion, total consolidated deposits of approximately \$5.1 billion and total consolidated stockholders equity of approximately \$1.3 billion. New York Community s principal executive offices are located at 615 Merrick Avenue, Westbury, New York 11590 and its telephone number is (516) 683-4100.

Roslyn Bancorp, Inc.

Roslyn Bancorp, Inc., also referred to as Roslyn, is the parent holding company for The Roslyn Savings Bank. The Roslyn Savings Bank is a New York State-chartered savings bank whose deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Roslyn Savings Bank operates through 37 full service branches throughout Nassau and Suffolk counties on Long Island and the New York City boroughs of Brooklyn, Queens and The Bronx. As of June 30, 2003, Roslyn had total consolidated assets of \$10.8 billion, total consolidated deposits of \$6.1 billion and total consolidated stockholders equity of approximately \$537.9 million. Roslyn s principal executive offices are located at One Jericho Plaza, Jericho, New York 11753 and its telephone number is (516) 942-6000.

The Merger (page [●])

We are proposing a merger of New York Community and Roslyn. In the merger, Roslyn will merge with and into New York Community, with New York Community as the surviving corporation. After the merger is completed, The Roslyn Savings Bank will be merged with New York Community Bank, with New York Community Bank as the surviving bank. New York Community, the surviving corporation, will continue to be called New York Community Bancorp, Inc.

5

The Merger Agreement (page [●])

The merger agreement is attached as Appendix A to this document. We encourage you to read it in its entirety because it is the legal document governing the merger.

The Merger Is Expected to Occur in Fourth Quarter of 2003 (page [•])

The merger will occur only after all of the conditions to its completion have been satisfied or waived. Currently, we anticipate that the merger will be consummated in the fourth quarter of 2003.

Conditions That Must Be Satisfied or Waived for the Merger to Occur (page [●])

As more fully described in this document and the merger agreement, the completion of the merger depends on a number of conditions being satisfied or waived, including receipt of stockholder and regulatory approvals and tax opinions.

We cannot be certain when, or if, the conditions to the merger will be satisfied or waived, or that the merger will be completed.

### **Termination of the Merger Agreement (page [●])**

We may agree to terminate the merger agreement before completing the merger, even after adoption of the merger agreement by our stockholders, as long as the termination is approved by each of our boards of directors.

In addition, either of us may decide to terminate the merger agreement, even after adoption of the merger agreement by our stockholders, if certain conditions in the merger agreement have not been met, such as obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals, or the other party s material breach of a representation or warranty.

### Roslyn s Directors and Officers Have Financial Interests in the Merger (page [•])

Roslyn s directors and officers have interests in the merger as individuals in addition to, or different from, their interests as stockholders. Each of the New York Community board of directors and the Roslyn board of directors considered these interests in its decision to approve the merger agreement. These interests include employment, retention bonus and noncompetition agreements that New York Community and Roslyn entered into with the principal executive officers of Roslyn, payments due as a result of the termination of existing Roslyn benefit plans, acceleration of vesting of options and restricted stock as a result of the merger for some of the executive officers of Roslyn other than its principal executive

officers and the right to continued indemnification and insurance coverage by New York Community for acts or omissions occurring prior to the merger.

Board of Directors and Management of New York Community Following the Merger (page [•])

Immediately after the merger is completed, the board of directors of New York Community will be increased by five additional directors, designated by Roslyn and acceptable to New York Community, one of whom will be Joseph L. Mancino, Roslyn s chief executive officer and president and a member of the Roslyn board of directors.

Mr. Mancino and Michael F. Manzulli will be Co-Chairmen of the board of directors of the surviving corporation. Joseph R. Ficalora will remain the President and Chief Executive Officer of the surviving corporation.

Anthony E. Burke will continue to serve as President of New York Community Bank and John R. Bransfield, Jr. will serve as President of The Roslyn Savings Bank Division of New York Community Bank. Robert Wann will serve as Chief Operating Officer of New York Community and New York Community Bank. James J. O Donovan will continue to serve as Chief Lending Officer, with Daniel L. Murphy heading up retail banking. Thomas R. Cangemi will continue to head up the capital markets and investments group. Michael P. Puorro will serve as Chief Financial Officer of the surviving corporation.

Accounting Treatment of the Merger by New York Community (page [•])

New York Community will account for the merger as a purchase for financial reporting purposes.

6

A Comparison of the Rights of Holders of New York Community and Roslyn Common Stock; the Rights of Roslyn Stockholders will be Governed by New Governing Documents after the Merger (page [•])

The rights of Roslyn s stockholders will not materially change as a result of the merger, due to the similarity of the New York Community and Roslyn governing documents and due to the fact that both companies are incorporated under Delaware law. Roslyn s stockholders rights will only change to the extent that New York Community s governing documents are different from Roslyn s, while New York Community s stockholders rights will not change as a result of the merger. This document contains descriptions of the stockholder rights under each of the New York Community and Roslyn governing documents, and describes the material differences between them.

#### New York Community Granted a Stock Option to Roslyn (page [•])

To induce Roslyn to enter into the merger agreement, New York Community granted Roslyn an option to purchase up to 27,000,000 shares of New York Community common stock at a price per share of \$27.10; however, in no case may Roslyn acquire more than 19.9% of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock pursuant to this stock option agreement. Roslyn cannot exercise this option unless the merger is not completed and specified triggering events occur. These events generally relate to business combinations or acquisition transactions involving New York Community and a third party. We do not know of any event that has occurred as of the date of this document that would allow Roslyn to exercise this option.

The option could have the effect of discouraging a company from trying to acquire New York Community prior to completion of the merger or termination of the merger agreement. Upon the occurrence of certain triggering events, New York Community may be required to repurchase the option and any shares purchased under it at a predetermined price, or Roslyn may choose to surrender the option to New York Community for a cash payment of \$39 million. In no event will the total profit received by Roslyn with respect to this option exceed \$47 million.

The New York Community stock option agreement is attached to this document as Appendix B.

### Roslyn Granted a Stock Option to New York Community (page [•])

To induce New York Community to enter into the merger agreement, Roslyn granted New York Community an option to purchase up to 15,000,000 shares of Roslyn common stock at a price per share of \$20.85; however, in no case may New York Community acquire more than 19.9% of the outstanding shares of Roslyn common stock pursuant to this stock option agreement. New York Community cannot exercise this option unless the merger is not completed and specified triggering events occur. These events generally relate to business combinations or acquisition transactions involving Roslyn and a third party. We do not know of any event that has occurred as of the date of this document that would allow New York Community to exercise this option.

The option could have the effect of discouraging a company from trying to acquire Roslyn prior to completion of the merger or termination of the merger agreement. Upon the occurrence of certain triggering events, Roslyn may be required to repurchase the option and any shares purchased under it at a predetermined price, or New York Community may choose to surrender the option to Roslyn for a cash payment of \$39 million. In no event will the total profit received by New York Community with respect to this option exceed \$47 million.

The Roslyn stock option agreement is attached to this document as Appendix C.

New York Community Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement (page [●])

On January 16, 1996, New York Community adopted a stockholder protection rights agreement, pursuant to which each issued share of New York Community common stock has attached to it one right to purchase, under conditions described in the agreement and summarized in this document, a fraction of a share of participating preferred stock of

7

New York Community. The New York Community stockholder protection rights agreement, including rights thereunder currently held by New York Community stockholders, will remain in place after the merger. Each share of New York Community common stock issued pursuant to the merger will have attached to it one right to purchase a fraction of a share of participating preferred stock of New York Community. See NEW YORK COMMUNITY STOCKHOLDER PROTECTION RIGHTS AGREEMENT on page [•] for a description of this agreement.

#### Regulatory Approvals We Must Obtain for the Merger (page [•])

We cannot complete the merger unless we obtain the prior approval of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the New York State Banking Department. We made the necessary filings with the Federal Reserve Board, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the New York State Banking Department.

Although we do not know of any reason why we cannot obtain these regulatory approvals in a timely manner, we cannot be certain when or if we will obtain them.

### New York Community will Hold its Special Meeting on [●], 2003 (page [●])

The New York Community special meeting will be held on [•], 2003, at [•], local time, at [•]. At the New York Community special meeting, New York Community stockholders will be asked:

- 1. To adopt the merger agreement;
- 2. To amend the certificate of incorporation to increase the amount of common stock authorized for issuance from 300 to 600 million; and
- 3. To act on such other matters as may be properly brought before the New York Community special meeting.

The increase in New York Community s authorized shares of common stock is not necessary to complete the merger.

Record Date. New York Community stockholders may cast one vote at the New York Community special meeting for each share of New York Community common stock that was owned at the close of business on [•]. At that date, there were [•] shares of New York Community common stock entitled to be voted at the special meeting.

Required Vote. To adopt the merger agreement and/or amend the certificate of incorporation to increase the amount of common stock authorized for issuance from 300 million to 600 million, the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock entitled to vote must vote in favor of adoption of the merger agreement or amendment of the certificate of incorporation. Because approval is based on the affirmative vote of a majority of shares outstanding, a New York Community stockholder s failure to vote, a broker non-vote or

an abstention will have the same effect as a vote against the merger or the certificate of incorporation amendment.

As of the New York Community record date, directors and executive officers of New York Community and their affiliates had the right to vote [•] shares of New York Community common stock, or [•]% of the outstanding New York Community common stock entitled to be voted at the special meeting. At that date, directors and executive officers of Roslyn and their affiliates, including Roslyn, had the right to vote [•] shares of New York Community common stock entitled to be voted at the meeting, or [•]% of the outstanding New York Community common stock.

Roslyn will Hold its Special Meeting on [•], 2003 (page [•])

The Roslyn special meeting will be held on [●], 2003, at [●], local time, at [●]. At the Roslyn special meeting, Roslyn stockholders will be asked:

1. To adopt the merger agreement; and

8

#### **Table of Contents**

2. To act on such other matters as may be properly brought before the Roslyn special meeting.

Record Date. Roslyn stockholders may cast one vote at the Roslyn special meeting for each share of Roslyn common stock that was owned at the close of business on [•], 2003. At that date, there were [•] shares of Roslyn common stock entitled to be voted at the special meeting.

Required Vote. To adopt the merger agreement, the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Roslyn common stock entitled to be voted must vote in favor of the merger agreement. Because approval is based on the affirmative vote of a majority of shares outstanding, a Roslyn stockholder s failure to vote, a broker non-vote or an abstention will have the same effect as a vote against the merger.

As of the Roslyn record date, directors and executive officers of Roslyn and their affiliates had the right to vote [•] shares of Roslyn common stock, or [•]% of the outstanding Roslyn common stock entitled to be voted at the special meeting. At that date, directors and executive officers of New York Community and their affiliates, including New York Community, had the right to vote [•] shares of Roslyn common stock entitled to be voted at the meeting, or [•]% of the outstanding Roslyn common stock.

9

#### SELECTED CONSOLIDATED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA OF NEW YORK COMMUNITY

Set forth below are highlights from New York Community s consolidated financial data as of and for the years ended December 31, 1998 through 2002 and New York Community s unaudited consolidated financial data as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2002 and 2003. The results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2003 are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations for the full year or any other interim period. New York Community s management prepared the unaudited information on the same basis as it prepared New York Community s audited consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of New York Community s management, this information reflects all adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of this data for those dates. You should read this information in conjunction with New York Community s consolidated financial statements and related notes included in New York Community s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, and New York Community s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, which are incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus and from which this information is derived. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page [•].

	At or for the Six Months Ended June 30,				At or for the Year Ended December 31,											
		2003		2002		2002		2001		2000		1999		1998		
		(Una	udited				(D	ollars in the	ousan	ds, except p	er sha	re data)		_		
Earnings Summary:				Ź								ĺ				
Interest income	\$	328,884	\$	293,434	\$	599,507	\$	423,304	\$	174,832	\$	143,123	\$	134,277		
Interest expense	_	112,227	_	114,936	_	226,251	_	217,488	_	101,751	_	74,220	_	65,755		
Net interest income		216,657		178,498		373,256		205,816		73,081		68,903		68,522		
Provision for loan losses	_		_		_		_		_		_	(2,400)	_			
Net interest income after																
provision for loan losses		216,657		178,498		373,256		205,816		73,081		71,303		68,522		
Other operating income		60,120		47,775		101,820		90,615		21,645		2,523		2,554		
Non-interest expense	_	70,874		69,986	_	139,062	_	121,185		49,824	_	21,390		25,953		
Income before income tax																
expense		205,903		156,287		336,014		175,246		44,902		52,436		45,123		
Income tax expense	_	66,783	_	51,837	_	106,784	_	70,779	_	20,425	_	20,772	_	18,179		
Net income	\$	139,120	\$	104,450	\$	229,230	\$	104,467	\$	24,477	\$	31,664	\$	26,944		
1 tot moone	Ψ.	105,120	-	101,100	Ψ	227,200	Ψ.	101,107	Ψ.	21,177	Ψ	51,00	Ψ	20,5		
Share Data(1):																
Weighted average common shares outstanding (in thousands):																
Basic		134,552		100,098		135.670		102,304		56,269		55,551		57,327		
Diluted		137,090		101,176		137,419		104,073		58,279		56,880		60,321		
Basic earnings per common share:		22.,0.0				,		,		,		,		,		
Net income	\$	1.03	\$	0.78	\$	1.69	\$	1.02	\$	0.44	\$	0.57	\$	0.47		
Diluted earnings per common share:																
Net income		1.01		0.77		1.67		1.01		0.42		0.56		0.45		
Cash dividends paid per																
common share		0.40		0.38		0.57		0.40		0.33		0.33		0.23		
Book value per common share Balance Sheet Summary:		9.89		8.69		9.73		7.54		3.71		2.51		2.71		
Securities available-for-sale, net	\$	4,276,612	\$	3,429,320	\$	3,952,130	\$	2,374,782	\$	303,734	\$	12,806	\$	4,656		

Edgar Filing: NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP INC - Form S-4

Loans receivable, net	5,810,866	5,299,004	5,443,572	5,361,187	3,616,386	1,601,079	1,486,519
Total assets	12,390,059	10,239,883	11,313,092	9,202,635	4,710,785	1,906,835	1,746,882
Total deposits	5,099,847	5,284,752	5,256,042	5,450,602	3,257,194	1,076,018	1,102,285
Stockholders equity	1,325,972	1,212,990	1,323,512	983,134	307,410	137,141	149,406
Performance Ratios:							
Return on average assets	2.30%	2.18%	2.29%	1.63%	1.06%	1.69%	1.62%
Return on average							
stockholders equity	20.89	19.83	19.95	18.16	13.24	22.99	17.32
Dividend payout	39.60	48.54	34.23	39.80	78.57	60.00	50.00
Average equity to average							
assets	11.04	10.97	11.47	8.99	8.03	7.37	9.38
Net interest margin(2)	4.09	4.33	4.31	3.59	3.33	3.79	4.24
Efficiency ratio(3)	24.52	29.60	25.32	38.04	52.08	29.95	36.51
Asset Quality Ratio:							
Allowance for loan losses to							
loans receivable, net	0.70%	0.76%	0.74%	0.76%	0.50%	0.44%	0.63%
Non-performing loans(4)	\$ 13,316	\$ 13,695	\$ 16,342	\$ 17,498	\$ 9,092	\$ 3,108	\$ 6,193
Non-performing loans to loans							
receivable(4)	0.23%	0.33%	0.30%	0.33%	0.25%	0.19%	0.42%
Non-performing assets to total							
assets(5)(6)	0.11	0.19	0.15	0.19	0.19	0.17	0.38

### **Table of Contents**

- (1) Reflects shares issued as a result of 3-for-2 stock splits on September 29, 1998, March 29, 2001 and September 20, 2001, and a 4-for-3 stock split on May 21, 2003
- (2) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by the average amount of interest-earning assets.
- (3) Efficiency ratio represents operating expense divided by the sum of net interest income plus other operating income.
- (4) Non-performing loans consist of all loans delinquent 90 days or more.
- (5) Non-performing assets consist of all non-performing loans and real estate acquired in foreclosure.
- (6) For the periods indicated, New York Community had no troubled debt restructurings.

11

#### SELECTED CONSOLIDATED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA OF ROSLYN

Set forth below are highlights from Roslyn's consolidated financial data as of and for the years ended December 31, 1998 through 2002 and Roslyn's unaudited consolidated financial data as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2003 are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations for the full year or any other interim period. The unaudited information was prepared on the same basis as Roslyn's audited consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of Roslyn's management, this information reflects all adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of this data for those dates. You should read this information in conjunction with Roslyn's consolidated financial statements and related notes included in Roslyn's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, and Roslyn's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, which are incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus and from which this information is derived. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page [•].

At or for the

### At or for the Six Months Ended

	Jun	ne 30,	Year Ended December 31,								
	2003	2002	2002	2001	2000	1999	1998				
	(Una	udited)		(Dollars in tho	usands, except p	er share data)					
Earnings Summary:											
Interest income	\$ 290,732	\$ 292,445	\$ 602,290	\$ 561,915	\$ 539,822	\$ 527,766	\$ 546,744				
Interest expense	158,586	157,943	324,216	341,690	342,131	315,194	343,804				
Net interest income	132,146	134.502	278,074	220.225	197.691	212,572	202,940				
Provision for loan losses	1,000	1,500	3,000	850	1,000		1,500				
Net interest income after provision for	<del></del>				_ <del></del>	_ <del></del>					
loan losses	131,146	133,002	275,074	219,375	196,691	212,572	201,440				
Non-interest income	21,593	22,975	53,705	32,160	6,218	25,618	34,912				
Non-interest expense(1)	44,189	47,432	102,031	88,131	81,622	178,003	89,407				
Income before income tax expense	108,550	108,545	226,748	163,404	121,287	60,187	146,945				
Income tax expense	35,480	38,220	80,342	52,161	31,388	40,561	51,402				
Net income	\$ 73,070	\$ 70,325	\$ 146,406	\$ 111,243	\$ 89,899	\$ 19,626	\$ 95,543				
Share Data:											
Weighted average common shares outstanding (in thousands):											
Basic	73,356	79,969	79,025	85,704	93,747	108,078	108,902				
Diluted	74,362	81,786	80,522	87,235	94,794	109,368	111,363				
Basic earnings per common share(2):											
Net income	\$ 1.00	\$ 0.88	1.85	\$ 1.30	\$ 0.96	\$ 0.18	\$ 0.88				
Diluted earnings per common share(2):											
Net income	0.98	0.86	1.82	1.28	0.95	0.18	0.86				
Cash dividends paid per common											
share(2)	0.31	0.26	0.53	0.46	0.41	0.34	0.25				
Book value per common share(2)	7.09	6.83	7.14	6.53	6.29	5.94	7.47				
Balance Sheet Summary:											
Securities available-for-sale, net(3)	\$ 6,556,811	\$ 6,028,478	\$ 6,938,893	\$ 4,565,582	\$ 3,176,694	\$ 3,530,485	\$ 2,591,195				
Loans receivable, net	3,558,177	3,405,433	3,168,322	3,706,524	4,087,678	3,911,314	3,705,674				
Total assets	10,809,449	9,886,685	11,020,219	8,736,780	7,664,269	7,725,183	7,799,719				
Total deposits	6,085,115	5,146,052	5,710,850	4,486,767	4,076,781	4,045,612	4,218,982				
Stockholders equity	537,919	571,329	576,514	568,968	580,714	637,659	853,366				

Edgar Filing: NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP INC - Form S-4

Performance Ratios(4):							
Return on average assets	1.28%	1.51%	1.47%	1.36%	1.20%	0.26%	1.22%
Return on average stockholders equity	26.51	24.96	25.22	18.29	15.78	2.56	11.20
Dividend payout	31.12	29.65	29.12	35.94	42.81	190.72	29.07
Average equity to average assets	4.84	6.04	5.81	7.42	7.61	9.97	10.90
Net interest margin(5)	2.41	2.99	2.89	2.78	2.69	2.82	2.66
Efficiency ratio(6)	27.95	29.47	28.54	32.07	31.56	32.14	40.79
Asset Quality Ratio:							
Allowance for loan losses to loans							
receivable	1.25%	1.24%	1.38%	1.10%	0.99%	1.04%	1.11%
Non-performing loans(7)	\$ 27,971	\$ 44,518	\$ 41,865	\$ 45,506	\$ 9,780	\$ 18,963	\$ 22,074
Non-performing loans to loans							
receivable(7)	0.79%	1.31%	1.33%	1.23%	0.24%	0.49%	0.61%
Non-performing assets to total assets	0.26	0.46	0.39	0.53	0.13	0.25	0.30

<sup>(1)</sup> Included for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 1999 are prepayment penalty charges related to financial liability repositioning of \$1.5 million, \$7.3 million, \$8.3 million and \$7.2 million, respectively. Included in 2000 is a \$12.0 million restructuring charge relating to the divestiture of Roslyn National Mortgage Corporation. Included in 1999 is \$89.2 million of merger related costs associated with the acquisition of T R Financial Corp. and a \$5.9 million restructuring charge in connection with an early retirement program for certain Roslyn employees.

### **Table of Contents**

- (2) The data has been retroactively adjusted to reflect the 3-for-2 split distributed in the form of a stock dividend on August 22, 2001.
- (3) Includes securities having an amortized cost of \$1.27 billion that were transferred from held-to-maturity to available-for-sale in 1999.
- (4) Selected financial ratios are end of year ratios, with the exception of all ratios that are based on average balances during the indicated year.
- (5) The net interest margin represents net interest income as a percent of average interest-earning assets. Net interest income also includes the effect of Roslyn s payment of a special interest payment of 5% and 15% of the interest paid on savings and NOW accounts for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Additionally, such special interest payment was not paid on T R Financial Corp. accounts. No such special interest payment was paid in 2003, 2002, 2001 or 2000.
- (6) The efficiency ratio represents the ratio of general and administrative expenses, divided by the sum of net interest income and non-interest income, adjusted for securities gains or losses, gains on sales of fixed assets and servicing impairment provisions.
- (7) Non-performing loans consist of all non-accrual loans and loans contractually past due 90 days or more and still accruing. It is Roslyn s policy generally to cease accruing interest on all loans contractually past due 90 days or more.

13

#### SELECTED CONSOLIDATED UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA

(In thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

The following table shows information about our financial condition and operations, including per share data and financial ratios, after giving effect to the merger. This information is called pro forma information in this joint proxy/prospectus. The table sets forth the information as if the merger had become effective on June 30, 2003, with respect to financial condition data, and at the beginning of the periods presented, with respect to operations data. The pro forma data in the tables assume that the merger is accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. This table should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the historical financial statements, including the notes thereto, of New York Community and Roslyn incorporated by reference herein and the more detailed pro forma financial information, including the notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page [•] and PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION on page [•].

We anticipate that the merger will provide the combined company with financial benefits that include reduced operating expenses. The pro forma information, while helpful in illustrating the financial characteristics of the combined company under one set of assumptions, does not reflect the benefits of expected cost savings or opportunities to earn additional revenue and, accordingly, does not attempt to predict or suggest future results. It also does not necessarily reflect what the historical results of the combined company would have been had our companies been combined during these periods.

	June 30, 2003
Selected Statement of Financial Condition Data:	
Total assets	\$ 21,043,229
Securities available-for-sale, net	7,343,885
Securities held-to-maturity	1,352,231
Loans and investments in real estate held-for-sale, net	5,969
Loans receivable, net	9,378,748
Deposits	11,221,962
Borrowed funds(1)	6,655,314
Stockholders equity	2,920,612

As of

	For the		
	Six Months Ended	For the Twelve Months Ended	
	June 30, 2003	December 31, 2002	
Selected Statements of Income Data:			
Interest income	\$ 529,511	\$ 1,021,586	
Interest expense	164,063	336,967	
Net interest income	365,448	684,619	
Provision for loan losses	1,000	3,000	
Net interest income after provision for loan losses	364,448	681,619	
Other operating income	81,713	155,525	
Non-interest expense	119,628	250,223	

Income before income tax expense	326,533	586,921
Income tax expense	106,793	196,186
Net income	\$ 219,740 \$	390,736
Weighted Average Common Shares:		
Basic	191,422,661	192,540,373
Diluted	193,960,334	194,289,665

	At or for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2003		At or for the Twelve Months Ended  December 31, 2002	
Per Common Share Data(2):				
Basic earnings	\$ 1.15		\$	2.03
Diluted earnings	1.13			2.01
Cash dividends declared	0.40	)		0.57
Book value	15.30	1		N/A
Selected Financial Ratios(2):				
Return on average assets(3)	2.20	1%		1.95%
Return on average stockholders equity(4)	25.41			22.59
Stockholders equity to total assets	13.88			N/A
General and administrative expense to average assets(5)	1.20			1.25
Efficiency ratio(6)	26.75			29.78

<sup>(1)</sup> Borrowed Funds includes \$1,917,596,000 in Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase; \$589,300,000 in other short-term borrowings; and \$4,085,418,000 in long-term debt.

- (3) Calculated by dividing pro forma net income by pro forma average assets at the end of the period reported.
- 4) Calculated by dividing pro forma net income by pro forma average stockholders equity at the end of the period reported.
- (5) Calculated by dividing pro forma general and administrative expense by pro forma assets at the end of the period reported.
- (6) Efficiency ratio represents pro forma operating expense divided by the sum of pro forma net interest income plus other pro forma operating income.

<sup>(2)</sup> Per Common Share Data and Selected Financial Ratios are presented only for data relating to the pro forma combined condensed consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2002 and for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and data relating to the pro forma combined condensed consolidated statement of financial condition at June 30, 2003. Return on average assets and return on average stockholders equity for the periods presented were calculated assuming the merger was consummated on December 31, 2002.

#### COMPARATIVE PER SHARE DATA

The following table sets forth for New York Community common stock and Roslyn common stock certain historical, pro forma and pro forma-equivalent per share financial information. The pro forma and pro forma-equivalent per share information gives effect to the merger as if the merger had been effective on the dates presented, in the case of the book value data presented, and as if the merger had become effective at the beginning of the periods presented, in the case of the net income and dividends declared data presented. The pro forma data in the tables assume that the merger is accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. See ACCOUNTING TREATMENT on page [•]. The information in the following table is based on, and should be read together with, the historical financial information that we have presented in our prior filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the pro forma financial information that appears elsewhere in this document. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page [•] and PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION on page [•].

We anticipate that the merger will provide the combined company with financial benefits that include reduced operating expenses. The pro forma information, while helpful in illustrating the financial characteristics of the combined company under one set of assumptions, does not reflect the benefits of expected cost savings or opportunities to earn additional revenue and, accordingly, does not attempt to predict or suggest future results. It also does not necessarily reflect what the historical results of the combined company would have been had our companies been combined during these periods.

	New York			
	Community	Roslyn	Pro Forma	Per Equivalent
	Historical(1)	Historical	Combined	Roslyn Share(2)
Net income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2002:				
Basic	\$ 1.69	\$ 1.85	\$ 2.03(3)	\$ 1.52
Diluted	1.67	1.82	2.01(3)	1.51
Net income for the six months ended June 30, 2003:				
Basic	1.03	1.00	1.15	0.86
Diluted	1.01	0.98	1.13	0.85
Cash Dividends Declared:				
For the twelve months ended December 31, 2002	0.57	0.53	0.57(4)	0.43
For the six months ended June 30, 2003	0.40	0.31	0.40(4)	0.30
Book Value:				
As of December 31, 2002	9.73	7.14		
As of June 30, 2003	9.89	7.09(5)	15.30	11.47

- (1) Amounts have been restated to reflect the shares issued pursuant to the 4-for-3 stock split on May 21, 2003.
- (2) Per equivalent Roslyn share is pro forma combined multiplied by 0.75.
- (3) The pro forma net income per share amounts are calculated by totaling the historical net income (adjusted for pro forma adjustments) of New York Community and Roslyn and dividing the resulting amount by the average pro forma shares of New York Community and Roslyn giving effect to the merger. The average pro forma shares of New York Community and Roslyn reflect New York Community s historical basic and diluted shares, plus historical basic and diluted average shares of Roslyn as adjusted for an exchange ratio of 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock for each share of Roslyn common stock. The pro forma net income per share amounts do not take into consideration any operating efficiencies that may be realized as a result of the merger.
- (4) Pro forma cash dividends represents the New York Community historical amount.
- (5) Roslyn historical book value per share as of June 30, 2003, as adjusted for the exchange ratio of 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock for each share of Roslyn common stock, is \$5.32. For a description of the adjustment, see Note B to Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003.

16

### CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains or incorporates by reference a number of forward-looking statements regarding the financial condition, results of operations and business of New York Community and Roslyn, and may include statements for the period following the completion of the merger. You can find many of these statements by looking for words such as plan, believe, expect, intend, anticipate, estimate, project, or other similar expressions.

The ability of New York Community and Roslyn to predict results or the actual effects of its plans and strategies is inherently uncertain. Accordingly, actual results may differ materially from anticipated results. Some of the factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the following:

difficulties in obtaining required stockholder and regulatory approvals;
increases in competitive pressure among financial institutions or from non-financial institutions;
changes in the interest rate environment;
changes in deposit flows, loan demand or real estate values;
changes in accounting principles, policies or guidelines;
legislative or regulatory changes;
changes in general economic conditions, either nationally or in some or all of the operating areas in which the combined company will be doing business, or conditions in securities markets, or the banking industry;
a materially adverse change in the financial condition of New York Community or Roslyn;
the level and timeliness of realization, if any, of expected cost savings from the merger;
difficulties related to the consummation of the merger and the integration of the businesses of New York Community and Roslyn;
difficulties in effecting the proposed restructuring;
lower than expected revenues following the merger; and

other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory, geopolitical, and technological factors affecting operations, pricing and services.

Because such forward-looking statements are subject to assumptions and uncertainties, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Roslyn stockholders and New York Community stockholders are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such statements, which speak only as of the date of this document or the date of any document incorporated by reference.

All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements concerning the merger or other matters addressed in this document and attributable to New York Community or Roslyn or any person acting on their behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. Except to the extent required by applicable law or regulation, New York Community and Roslyn undertake no obligation to update such forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

17

#### THE NEW YORK COMMUNITY SPECIAL MEETING

This section contains information from New York Community for New York Community stockholders about the special meeting of stockholders it has called to consider and adopt the merger agreement and approve the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock.

Together with this document, we are also sending you a notice of the New York Community special meeting and a form of proxy that is solicited by our board of directors. The New York Community special meeting will be held on [•], 2003, at [•], local time, at [•].

### Matters to Be Considered

The purpose of the New York Community special meeting is to vote on a proposal for adoption of the merger agreement and to vote on a proposal to amend the New York Community certificate of incorporation to increase the amount of New York Community common stock authorized for issuance from 300 million to 600 million. The increase in New York Community s authorized shares of common stock is not necessary to complete the merger.

You may be asked to vote upon other matters that may properly be submitted to a vote at the New York Community special meeting. You also may be asked to vote on a proposal to adjourn or postpone the New York Community special meeting. We could use any adjournment or postponement for the purpose, among others, of allowing additional time to solicit proxies.

#### **Proxies**

Each copy of this document mailed to New York Community stockholders is accompanied by a form of proxy with voting instructions for submission by mail. You should complete and return the proxy card accompanying this document, or vote by telephone or the internet as described below under 
Voting by Telephone or the Internet, in order to ensure that your vote is counted at the New York Community special meeting, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, regardless of whether you plan to attend the special meeting. You may revoke your proxy at any time before the vote is taken at the special meeting. If you have not voted through your broker, you may revoke your proxy by:

submitting written notice of revocation to the Corporate Secretary of New York Community prior to the voting of such proxy,

submitting a properly executed proxy of a later date, or

voting in person at the special meeting; however, simply attending the special meeting without voting will not revoke an earlier proxy.

Written notices of revocation and other communications regarding the revocation of your proxy should be addressed to:

New York Community Bancorp, Inc.

615 Merrick Avenue
Westbury, New York 11590
Attention: Mark A. Ricca
Corporate Secretary
If your shares are held in street name, you should follow the instructions of your broker regarding the revocation of proxies.
All shares represented by valid proxies that we receive through this solicitation, and that are not revoked, will be voted in accordance with the

All shares represented by valid proxies that we receive through this solicitation, and that are not revoked, will be voted in accordance with the instructions on the proxy card. If you make no specification on your proxy card as to how you want your shares voted before signing and returning it, your proxy will be voted FOR

18

adoption of the merger agreement and the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock. The New York Community board of directors is currently unaware of any other matters that may be presented for action at the special meeting. If other matters properly come before the special meeting, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, we intend that shares represented by properly submitted proxies will be voted, or not voted, by and at the discretion of the persons named as proxies on the proxy card. However, proxies that indicate a vote against adoption of the merger agreement and the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock will not be voted in favor of adjourning or postponing the special meeting to solicit additional proxies.

New York Community stockholders should NOT send stock certificates with their proxy cards. If the merger is completed, New York Community stockholders will not need to exchange their current stock certificates.

#### Solicitation of Proxies

We will bear the entire cost of soliciting proxies from you. In addition to solicitation of proxies by mail, we will request that banks, brokers and other record holders send proxies and proxy material to the beneficial owners of New York Community common stock and secure their voting instructions, if necessary. We will reimburse the record holders for their reasonable expenses in taking those actions. We have also made arrangements with Mellon Investor Services LLC to assist us in soliciting proxies and have agreed to pay them  $[\bullet]$  plus reasonable expenses for these services. If necessary, we may also use several of our regular employees, who will not be specially compensated, to solicit proxies from New York Community stockholders, either personally or by telephone, telegram, facsimile or letter.

#### **Record Date**

The New York Community board of directors has fixed the close of business on [•], 2003 as the record date for determining the New York Community stockholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the New York Community special meeting. At that time, [•] shares of New York Community common stock were outstanding, held by approximately [•] holders of record.

## **Voting Rights and Vote Required**

The presence, in person or by properly executed proxy, of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock is necessary to constitute a quorum at the special meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted solely for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present. An unvoted proxy submitted by a broker is sometimes referred to as a broker non-vote.

Adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock entitled to vote at the New York Community special meeting. You are entitled to one vote for each share of New York Community common stock you held as of the record date. However, New York Community s certificate of incorporation provides that stockholders of record who beneficially own in excess of 10% of the then-outstanding shares of common stock of New York Community are not entitled to any vote with respect to the shares held in excess of the 10% limit. A person or entity is deemed to beneficially own shares that are owned by an affiliate as well as by any person acting in concert with such person or entity.

Because the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock entitled to vote at the New York Community special meeting is needed for us to proceed with the merger or the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock, the failure to vote by proxy or in person will have the same effect as a vote *against* the merger agreement or the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock. Abstentions and broker non-votes also will have the same effect as a vote against the merger or the proposed action to increase the

amount of authorized common stock. Accordingly, the New York Community board of directors urges New York Community stockholders to complete, date and sign the accompanying proxy card and return it promptly in the enclosed postage-paid envelope, or to vote by telephone or the internet.

As of the record date:

Directors and executive officers of New York Community and their affiliates had the right to vote [•] shares of New York Community common stock, or [•]% of the New York Community common stock outstanding on that date.

Directors and executive officers of Roslyn and their affiliates, including Roslyn (excluding the shares subject to the New York Community stock option described in THE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENTS on page [•]), had the right to vote [•] shares of New York Community common stock, or [•]% of the New York Community common stock outstanding on that date.

#### **Recommendation of the Board of Directors**

The New York Community board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement and the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock and the transactions it contemplates. The New York Community board of directors determined that the merger agreement and the transactions it contemplates are advisable and in the best interests of New York Community and in the best interests of its stockholders and unanimously recommends that you vote **FOR** adoption of the merger agreement and the proposed action to increase the amount of authorized common stock.

See THE MERGER New York Community s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of New York Community s Board of Directors on page [•] for a more detailed discussion of the New York Community board of directors recommendation.

## Attending the Meeting

If you want to vote your shares of New York Community common stock held in street name in person at the meeting, you will have to get a written proxy in your name from the broker, bank or other nominee who holds your shares.

## Participants in New York Community s and New York Community Bank s Benefit Plans

If you are a participant in the New York Community Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan, the New York Community 401(k) Plan, the Columbia Federal Savings Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan or the Columbia Savings Bank 401(k) Thrift Incentive Savings Plan, or if you have grants of restricted stock under the Queens County Savings Bank 1993 Recognition and Retention Plan, the Haven Bancorp 1996 Incentive Plan and the Queens County Savings Bank Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, you will have received with this joint proxy statement/prospectus voting instruction forms that reflect all shares you may vote under the plans. Under the terms of these plans, the trustee or administrator votes all shares held by the plan, but each participant may direct the trustee or administrator how to vote the shares of New York Community common stock allocated to his or her plan account. If you own shares through any of these plans and do not vote, the respective plan

trustees or administrators will vote the shares in accordance with the terms of the respective plans. The deadline for returning your voting instructions is [•], 2003.

## Voting by Telephone or the Internet

Many stockholders of New York Community have the option to submit their proxies or voting instructions electronically by telephone or the internet instead of submitting proxies by mail on the enclosed proxy card. Please note that there are separate arrangements for using the telephone and the internet depending on whether your shares are registered in New York Community s stock records in your name or in the name of a brokerage firm or bank. New York Community stockholders should check their proxy card or the voting instructions forwarded by their broker, bank or other holder of record to see which options are available.

20

## **Table of Contents**

The telephone and internet procedures described below for submitting your proxy or voting instructions are designed to authenticate stockholders identities, to allow stockholders to have their shares voted and to confirm that their instructions have been properly recorded. Stockholders submitting proxies or voting instructions via the internet should understand that there may be costs associated with electronic access, such as usage charges from internet access providers and telephone companies, that will be borne by the stockholder.

New York Community holders of record may submit their proxies:

by telephone, by calling the toll-free number [•] and following the recorded instructions; or

through the internet, by visiting a website established for that purpose at [•] and following the instructions.

21

### THE ROSLYN SPECIAL MEETING

This section contains information from Roslyn for Roslyn stockholders about the special meeting of stockholders it has called to consider and approve the merger agreement.

Together with this document, we are also sending you a notice of the Roslyn special meeting and a form of proxy that is solicited by our board of directors. The special meeting will be held on  $[\bullet]$ , 2003 at  $[\bullet]$ , local time, at  $[\bullet]$ .

#### Matters to Be Considered

The purpose of the Roslyn special meeting is to vote on a proposal for adoption of the merger agreement.

You may be asked to vote upon any other matters that may properly be submitted to a vote at the Roslyn special meeting. You also may be asked to vote upon a proposal to adjourn or postpone the Roslyn special meeting. We could use any adjournment or postponement for the purpose, among others, of allowing additional time to solicit proxies.

### **Proxies**

Each copy of this document mailed to Roslyn stockholders is accompanied by a form of proxy with voting instructions for submission by mail. You should complete and return the proxy card accompanying this document, or vote by telephone or the internet as described below under Voting by Telephone or the Internet, to ensure that your vote is counted at the Roslyn special meeting, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, regardless of whether you plan to attend the Roslyn special meeting. You can revoke your proxy at any time before the vote is taken at the Roslyn special meeting. If you have not voted through your broker, you may revoke your proxy by:

submitting written notice of revocation to the Corporate Secretary of Roslyn prior to the voting of such proxy,

submitting a properly executed proxy, or

voting in person at the special meeting; however, simply attending the special meeting without voting will not revoke an earlier proxy.

Written notices of revocation and other communications about revoking your proxy should be addressed to:

Roslyn Bancorp, Inc.

One Jericho Plaza

Jericho, New York 11753-8905

Attention: R. Patrick Quinn

Corporate Secretary

If your shares are held in street name, you should follow the instructions of your broker regarding the revocation of proxies.

All shares represented by valid proxies we receive through this solicitation, and not revoked, will be voted in accordance with your instructions on the proxy card. If you make no specification on your proxy card as to how you want your shares voted before signing and returning it, your proxy will be voted **FOR** adoption of the merger agreement. The Roslyn board of directors is presently unaware of any other matters that may be presented for action at the special meeting. If other matters do properly come before the special meeting, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, we intend that shares represented by properly submitted proxies will be voted, or not voted, by and at the discretion of the persons named as proxies on the proxy card. However, proxies that indicate a vote against adoption of the merger agreement will not be voted in favor of adjourning or postponing the special meeting to solicit additional proxies.

22

Roslyn stockholders should NOT send stock certificates with their proxy cards. If the merger is completed, Roslyn stockholders will be mailed a transmittal form promptly following the completion of the merger with instructions on how to exchange their Roslyn stock certificates for stock certificates of New York Community and cash instead of fractional shares, if applicable.

### **Solicitation of Proxies**

We will bear the entire cost of soliciting proxies from you. In addition to solicitation of proxies by mail, we will request that banks, brokers, and other record holders send proxies and proxy material to the beneficial owners of Roslyn common stock and secure their voting instructions, if necessary. We will reimburse the record holders for their reasonable expenses in taking those actions. We have also made arrangements with [•] to assist us in soliciting proxies and have agreed to pay them \$[•] plus reasonable expenses for these services. If necessary, we may use several of our regular employees, who will not be specially compensated, to solicit proxies from Roslyn stockholders, either personally or by telephone, telegram, facsimile or letter.

#### **Record Date**

The Roslyn board of directors has fixed the close of business on [•], 2003 as the record date for determining the Roslyn stockholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Roslyn special meeting. At that time, [•] shares of Roslyn common stock were outstanding, held by approximately [•] holders of record.

## **Voting Rights and Vote Required**

The presence, in person or by properly executed proxy, of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Roslyn common stock is necessary to constitute a quorum at the Roslyn special meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present. An unvoted proxy submitted by a broker is sometimes referred to as a broker non-vote.

Adoption of the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Roslyn common stock entitled to vote at the Roslyn special meeting. You are entitled to one vote for each share of Roslyn common stock you held as of the record date. However, Roslyn s certificate of incorporation provides that stockholders of record who beneficially own in excess of 10% of the then-outstanding shares of common stock of Roslyn are not entitled to any vote with respect to the shares held in excess of the 10% limit. A person or entity is deemed to beneficially own shares that are owned by an affiliate as well as by any person acting in concert with such person or entity.

Because the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Roslyn common stock entitled to vote at the Roslyn special meeting is needed for us to proceed with the merger, the failure to vote by proxy or in person will have the same effect as a vote *against* the merger agreement. Abstentions and broker non-votes also will have the same effect as a vote against the merger. Accordingly, the Roslyn board of directors urges Roslyn stockholders to complete, date, and sign the accompanying proxy card and return it promptly in the enclosed postage-paid envelope or to vote by telephone or the internet.

As of the record date:

Directors and executive officers of Roslyn and their affiliates had the right to vote  $[\bullet]$  shares of Roslyn common stock, or  $[\bullet]$ % of the outstanding Roslyn common stock at that date.

Directors and executive officers of New York Community and their affiliates, including New York Community (excluding the shares subject to the Roslyn stock option described in THE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENTS on page [•]), had the right to vote [•] shares of Roslyn common stock, or [•]% of the outstanding Roslyn common stock at that date.

23

#### Recommendation of the Board of Directors

The Roslyn board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement and the transactions it contemplates. The Roslyn board of directors determined that the merger agreement and the transactions it contemplates are advisable and in the best interests of Roslyn and its stockholders and unanimously recommends that you vote **FOR** adoption of the merger agreement.

See THE MERGER Roslyn s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of Roslyn s Board of Directors on page [•] for a more detailed discussion of the Roslyn board of directors recommendation.

### **Attending the Meeting**

If you want to vote your shares of Roslyn common stock held in street name in person at the meeting, you will have to get a written proxy in your name from the broker, bank or other nominee who holds your shares.

### Participants in Roslyn s and The Roslyn Savings Bank s Benefit Plans

If you are a participant in The Roslyn Savings Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan, the Roslyn Bancorp, Inc. 1997 Stock-Based Incentive Plan or the Roslyn Bancorp, Inc. 2001 Stock-Based Incentive Plan, or if you hold shares through The Roslyn Savings Bank 401(k) Plan, you will have received with this joint proxy statement/prospectus voting instruction forms that reflect all shares you may vote under the plans. Under the terms of these plans, the trustee or administrator votes all shares held by the plan, but each participant may direct the trustee or administrator how to vote the shares of Roslyn common stock allocated to his or her plan account. If you own shares through any of these plans and do not vote, the respective plan trustees or administrators will vote the shares in accordance with the terms of the respective plans. The deadline for returning your voting instructions is [•].

## Voting by Telephone or the Internet

Many stockholders of Roslyn have the option to submit their proxies or voting instructions electronically by telephone or the internet instead of submitting proxies by mail on the enclosed proxy card. Please note that there are separate arrangements for using the telephone and the internet depending on whether your shares are registered in Roslyn s stock records in your name or in the name of a brokerage firm or bank. Roslyn stockholders should check their proxy card or the voting instructions forwarded by their broker, bank or other holder of record to see which options are available.

The telephone and internet procedures described below for submitting your proxy or voting instructions are designed to authenticate stockholders identities, to allow stockholders to have their shares voted and to confirm that their instructions have been properly recorded. Stockholders submitting proxies or voting instructions via the internet should understand that there may be costs associated with electronic access, such as usage charges from internet access providers and telephone companies, that will be borne by the stockholder.

Roslyn holders of record may submit their proxies:

by telephone, by calling the toll-free number [•] and following the recorded instructions; or

through the internet, by visiting a website established for that purpose at [ullet] and following the instructions.

24

One Jericho Plaza

(516) 942-6000

Jericho, New York 11753

## INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANIES

New York Community Bancorp, Inc.
615 Merrick Avenue
Westbury, New York 11590
(516) 683-4100
New York Community Bancorp, Inc. is the parent holding company for New York Community Bank. New York Community Bank is a New York State-chartered savings bank whose deposits are insured by the Bank Insurance Fund, as administered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. New York Community Bank operates through 55 traditional and 54 in-store branch offices in New York City, Long Island, Westchester County and New Jersey, and a public accommodation office in Richmond County.
New York Community Bank s principal business consists of attracting retail deposits from the general public and investing those deposits, together with borrowings and funds generated from operations, into the origination of mortgage loans on multi-family properties. In addition, the Bank originates one- to four-family, commercial real estate, construction, and other loans within its local markets, and invests in mortgage-backed and other investment securities. New York Community Bank also generates revenues through the sale of third-party investment products and from retail banking fees.
New York Community Bank is subject to regulation and supervision by the New York State Banking Department, its chartering agency, and by the Federal Deposit Insurance Company. As the holding company for New York Community Bank, New York Community is a bank holding company subject to regulation and supervision by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.
New York Community routinely evaluates opportunities to expand through merger or acquisition, and frequently conducts due diligence activities in connection with such opportunities. As a result, merger or acquisition discussions and, in some cases, negotiations may take place in the future, and mergers and acquisitions involving cash, debt or equity securities may occur. The impact of a merger or an acquisition would likely be reflected in New York Community s financial condition and results of operations.
Additional information about New York Community and its subsidiaries is included in documents incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See Where You Can Find More Information on page [•].
Roslyn Bancorp, Inc.

Roslyn Bancorp, Inc. is the parent holding company for The Roslyn Savings Bank. The Roslyn Savings Bank is a New York State-chartered savings bank whose deposits are insured by the Bank Insurance Fund, as administered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Company. The Roslyn Savings Bank operates through 37 full service branches throughout Nassau and Suffolk counties on Long Island and the New York City boroughs of Brooklyn, Queens and The Bronx.

The Roslyn Savings Bank s principal business consists of accepting retail deposits from the general public in the areas surrounding its branch offices and investing those deposits, together with funds generated from operations and borrowings, primarily in commercial real estate, multi-family and construction loans, mortgage-backed and mortgage related securities, various debt and equity securities and, to a lesser extent, home equity, consumer and student loans. The Roslyn Savings Bank s revenues are derived principally from the interest income generated by its investment securities, mortgage, commercial and consumer loans and, to a lesser extent, from retail banking fees.

25

### **Table of Contents**

The Roslyn Savings Bank also derives other non-interest revenues from the sale of non-deposit products and the increase in the cash surrender value of its Bank Owned Life Insurance policy. The Roslyn Savings Bank s sister companies derive non-interest revenue primarily from joint venture real estate development activities. The Roslyn Savings Bank s primary sources of funds are deposits, borrowings and principal and interest payments on loans and securities.

The Roslyn Savings Bank is subject to regulation and supervision by the New York State Banking Department, its chartering agency, and by the Federal Deposit Insurance Company. As the holding company for The Roslyn Savings Bank, Roslyn has elected to be a savings and loan holding company subject to regulation and supervision by the Office of Thrift Supervision.

Additional information about Roslyn and its subsidiaries is included in documents incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See Where You Can Find More Information on page [•].

26

#### THE MERGER

The following discussion contains material information pertaining to the merger. This discussion is subject, and qualified in its entirety by reference, to the merger agreement, stock option agreements and financial advisor opinions attached as Appendices to this document. We encourage you to read and review those documents as well as the discussion in this document.

### General

This section provides material information about the merger of New York Community and Roslyn and the circumstances surrounding the merger. The next sections of this document, entitled THE MERGER AGREEMENT on pages [•] through [•] and THE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENTS on pages [•] through [•], have additional and more detailed information regarding the legal documents that govern the merger, including information about the conditions to completion of the merger and the provisions for terminating or amending the merger agreement.

At the New York Community special meeting, New York Community stockholders will be asked to consider and vote upon a proposal to adopt the merger agreement. At the Roslyn special meeting, Roslyn stockholders will be asked to consider and vote upon a proposal to adopt the merger agreement. Adoption of the merger agreement will constitute adoption of the transactions it contemplates, including, among others, the merger of Roslyn with and into New York Community and the issuance of New York Community common stock in the merger.

We are furnishing this document to New York Community stockholders and Roslyn stockholders in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the boards of directors of New York Community and Roslyn for use at their respective special meetings of stockholders and any adjournment or postponement of the meetings.

#### Structure

The merger agreement provides for the merger of Roslyn with and into New York Community. New York Community will be the surviving corporation. Immediately following the consummation of the merger, New York Community Bank and The Roslyn Savings Bank will merge, with The Roslyn Savings Bank becoming a division of New York Community Bank. New York Community and Roslyn may alter the method of effecting the combination of the companies, provided that such change does not alter or change the number of shares of New York Community common stock into which shares of Roslyn common stock will be converted, adversely affect the tax treatment of New York Community or Roslyn pursuant to the merger, or materially impede or delay consummation of the merger.

Upon completion of the merger, Roslyn stockholders will receive 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock for each share of Roslyn common stock that they hold immediately prior to the merger. If the number of shares of common stock of New York Community changes before the merger is completed because of a reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification, stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock split, or other similar event, then an appropriate and proportionate adjustment will be made to the exchange ratio. Roslyn stockholders will receive cash instead of any fractional shares of New York Community common stock that would have otherwise been issued at the completion of the merger.

As a result of the merger, New York Community stockholders immediately prior to the merger will own approximately 70%, and Roslyn stockholders immediately prior to the merger will own approximately 30%, of the outstanding New York Community common stock. These percentages are based on the number of shares of New York Community common stock issued and outstanding as of June 27, 2003 and the number of shares of Roslyn common stock issued and outstanding as of June 27, 2003.

New York Community will account for the merger as a purchase for financial reporting purposes. The merger has been structured to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code for federal income tax purposes, and it is a condition to our respective obligations to complete the merger that New York Community and Roslyn each receive a legal opinion to that effect.

### **Background of the Merger**

The management of Roslyn periodically has explored and assessed, and has discussed with the Roslyn board of directors, strategic options for Roslyn, including strategies to grow Roslyn s business through business and marketing initiatives and through targeted acquisitions of other financial institutions. These strategic discussions also included the possibility of business combinations involving Roslyn and larger or similar sized financial institutions, particularly in view of the increasing competition, continuing consolidation and other developments in the financial services industry. In this regard, the management of Roslyn has from time to time communicated informally with representatives of other financial institutions regarding their respective companies—strategic direction. Some of these informal discussions included general discussions regarding the potential merits of a business combination or other strategic transaction, but none of these discussions proceeded beyond the exploratory stage.

As New York Community has publicly stated, it routinely evaluates opportunities to expand through mergers and acquisitions. As a result, its management routinely has discussions with third parties about possible merger or acquisition transactions.

The management teams of New York Community and Roslyn have been familiar with each other for many years as a result of frequent business interactions involving their institutions, participation in financial services industry professional organizations and community service endeavors. From time to time, Joseph R. Ficalora and Joseph L. Mancino, the chief executive officers of New York Community and Roslyn, as well as members of their respective management teams, have met and have had informal discussions regarding the possibility of a strategic combination involving the two companies. These discussions included consideration of the potential fit between their companies, the potential strategic benefits that a combination might offer and the possible terms of a transaction, as well as related issues.

On May 8, 2003, New York Community and Roslyn entered into a customary confidentiality agreement and thereafter engaged in limited due diligence activities from time to time. On May 14, 2003, Mr. Mancino met with members of the Roslyn board of directors at a board meeting, where it was agreed that Mr. Mancino and members of the Roslyn management team should continue to explore the possibility of a combination with New York Community but at the same time contact other financial institutions regarding their interest in a possible combination. Thereafter, Roslyn s financial advisors contacted other financial institutions concerning their potential interest in a business combination with Roslyn. Certain of these institutions gave non-binding preliminary indications of interest, including New York Community which provided its indication of interest during the late evening of June 20, 2003. Roslyn, and its legal and financial advisors, subsequently held a series of discussions and negotiations regarding these indications.

On June 24, 2003, the Roslyn board of directors held a special meeting. Mr. Mancino and other members of senior management, together with Roslyn's financial and legal advisors, reviewed the proposed merger with New York Community, the indications of interest received from the other financial institutions and the Roslyn board's prior discussions of strategic alternatives for Roslyn. Management and its advisors discussed with the Roslyn board of directors the fact that, as the board had previously discussed in other board meetings, size and diversification beyond the level Roslyn believed to be reasonably achievable on an independent basis was becoming increasingly important to continued success in the current financial services environment. At such meeting, the Roslyn board authorized its

### **Table of Contents**

management to pursue a merger with New York Community on the basis of the proposal, which the Roslyn board determined would best meet the company s strategic goals.

On June 24, 2003, the New York Community board of directors held a regularly scheduled meeting at which the terms and details of the proposal were presented to the board and discussed. At such meeting, the New York Community board authorized its management to pursue a merger with Roslyn on the basis of the proposal.

Following the June 24 meetings, New York Community and Roslyn worked to complete their respective due diligence investigations and to negotiate the definitive agreements for the transaction.

On June 26, 2003, the New York Community board of directors held a special meeting at which New York Community s senior management presented to the board the proposed definitive transaction agreements. Representatives of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. made a presentation on the fairness of the proposed transaction to New York Community from a financial perspective. The full text of the Citigroup Global Markets Inc. opinion is attached as Appendix D to this joint proxy statement/prospectus. Representatives of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP reviewed with, and made a detailed presentation to, the New York Community board of directors on the proposed definitive transaction agreements and the board of directors fiduciary obligations in the context of a merger involving New York Community and Roslyn. A detailed discussion among the New York Community board of directors, senior management, and the financial and legal advisors followed. Following these deliberations, the New York Community board of directors unanimously voted to approve the merger agreement and related arrangements and instructed New York Community s President and Chief Executive Officer to execute the merger agreement and related documents on New York Community s behalf.

On June 26, 2003, the Roslyn board of directors held another special meeting to review and discuss the proposed merger, the proposed definitive transaction agreements and the results of the due diligence investigation of New York Community. Mr. Mancino also reviewed the course of discussions with New York Community and outlined the strategic rationale for the proposed merger, including the ability of Roslyn s stockholders to participate in one of the best performing financial institutions, the ability to combine the relative strengths of the two institutions and other matters discussed below under Roslyn s Reasons for the Merger.

At the June 26, 2003 meeting, the Roslyn board of directors also reviewed with Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz, special counsel to Roslyn, the terms of the proposed definitive transaction- and employment-related agreements and the legal and fiduciary standards applicable to its decision to approve the agreements and the transactions contemplated by the agreements. Representatives of Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. and Goldman, Sachs & Co. then discussed financial information regarding New York Community and the proposed merger. The discussions covered a range of matters, including the key financial terms of the proposed merger, review of relevant business and financial information regarding the two companies, historical stock price performance, valuation methodologies and analyses and the other matters set forth in Opinions of Roslyn s Financial Advisors. After this discussion, each of Sandler O Neill and Goldman Sachs delivered its oral opinion (later confirmed in writing) that, as of the date of the opinion, and based on and subject to the assumptions, qualifications and limitations set forth in its opinion, the exchange ratio pursuant to the merger agreement was fair to the holders of shares of Roslyn common stock from a financial point of view. The full text of the Sandler O Neill and Goldman Sachs opinions are attached as Appendices E and F to this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

After additional discussions and questions, the Roslyn board of directors determined that the transactions contemplated by the agreements were fair to, and in the best interests of, Roslyn and its stockholders. The Roslyn board of directors then voted unanimously to approve the merger agreement, the stock option agreements and the related transaction documents, and instructed Roslyn s Vice Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer to execute the merger agreement and related documents on Roslyn s behalf.

On June 27, 2003, New York Community and Roslyn executed the merger agreement and the stock option agreements, and announced the transaction by a joint press release before the beginning of trading on the New York Stock Exchange and the Nasdaq National Market, respectively.

29

New York Community s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of New York Community s Board of Directors

The New York Community board of directors believes that the merger presents an excellent opportunity to combine and expand two complementary banking operations. The New York Community board consulted with financial and other advisors and determined that the merger was consistent with the strategic plans of New York Community and was in the best interests of New York Community and its stockholders. In reaching its conclusion to approve the merger agreement, the New York Community board considered a number of factors, including the following:

Its understanding of New York Community s business, operations, financial condition, earnings and prospects and of Roslyn s business, operations, financial condition, earnings and prospects, taking into account New York Community s due diligence review of Roslyn;

The complementary aspects of the New York Community and Roslyn businesses, including New York Community s strength in loan origination and Roslyn s strength in deposit accumulation, the compatible loan mix of New York Community and Roslyn and the common operating philosophies, shared systems platforms and services provider and integration expertise of New York Community and Roslyn;

The current and prospective environment in which New York Community and Roslyn operate, including national and local economic conditions, the competitive environment for thrifts and other financial institutions generally, the trend toward consolidation in the financial services industry and the likely effect of these factors on New York Community s potential growth, development, productivity and profitability;

The New York Community board of directors belief that a combination with Roslyn would allow New York Community stockholders to participate in a combined company that would be the largest community bank in the New York metropolitan region in terms of market capitalization and total assets with the lowest efficiency ratio and that the combined company would have better future prospects than New York Community was likely to achieve on a stand-alone basis;

The review by the New York Community board of directors with its legal and financial advisors of the structure of the merger and the financial and other terms of the merger and stock option agreements, including the exchange ratio and the expectation that the merger will qualify as a transaction of a type that is generally tax-free for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

The fact that synergies expected from the merger should result in expense savings. In making this determination, fully phased-in annual pre-tax expense reductions of \$30.8 million, comprised of \$22.0 million of operating expense savings (representing an estimated 10% of the combined company s operating expenses) and \$8.8 million of Roslyn s employee stock ownership plan and management retention plan expense savings, were identified by management following a due diligence review of the businesses of New York Community and Roslyn. Based on an expected fourth quarter 2003 closing, these cost saving actions are expected to be fully realized in the year 2004.

The fact that the merger is expected to be accretive to fully diluted earnings per share in 2004 under current generally accepted accounting principles rules.

The fact that the complementary nature of the respective customer bases, business products and skills of New York Community and Roslyn should result in enhanced revenue opportunities as products are cross-marketed and distributed over broader customer bases. Management of New York Community and Roslyn anticipate future revenue enhancement initiatives, however, at this time, no amounts were considered in the projected benefits of the merger.

The fact that Roslyn s and New York Community s branch franchises operate principally in the same geographic markets, which it believed to present a desirable strategic opportunity for expansion of its existing presence and market share. In particular, the board considered that:

30

the combination of the two businesses will provide New York Community with broader coverage in its traditional market, the greater New York metropolitan area; and

the resulting institution s branch network and franchise would be concentrated in one of the most affluent and populous regions in the country.

The challenges of combining the businesses, assets and workforces of the two companies, which could impact the post-merger success of the combined company, in light of New York Community s and Roslyn s past experience in integrating transactions. In this regard, the board evaluated several key factors, including:

that customer disruption in the transition phase would not be significant due to the limited overlap and complementary nature of the markets served by New York Community and Roslyn and the fact that very few branches, if any, are expected to be closed;

that the combined company would benefit from the strong management teams of each of New York Community and Roslyn and that, because a number of key senior management positions for the combined company had already been decided, management would be better able to focus on integration early in the process; and

the record of New York Community in integrating acquisitions smoothly while retaining profitability, having participated in the successful acquisition of Haven Bancorp, Inc. in 2000 and the successful merger with Richmond County Financial Corp. in 2001.

The ability of New York Community to retain continuity of management and of corporate structure, including retention of the current board of directors and current executive officers, as well as its governing documents, and to create a company with increased management depth.

The future ability of New York Community to restructure the pro forma balance sheet of the combined company by downsizing its securities portfolio and utilizing the resulting proceeds to retire borrowings and buy back stock.

The reports of management and outside advisors concerning the operations, financial condition and prospects of Roslyn.

The historical and current market prices of New York Community common stock and Roslyn common stock.

The financial information and analyses presented by Citigroup Global Markets Inc. to the New York Community board of directors, and the opinion delivered to the New York Community board of directors by Citigroup Global Markets Inc., to the effect that, as of the date of its opinion, the exchange ratio is fair, from a financial point of view, to New York Community.

The New York Community board of directors realizes that there can be no assurance about future results, including results expected or considered in the factors listed above, such as assumptions regarding price-to-earnings multiples, potential revenue enhancements, anticipated cost savings and earnings accretion. However, the board concluded that the potential positive factors outweighed the potential risks of consummating the merger.

The foregoing discussion of the information and factors considered by the New York Community board of directors is not exhaustive, but includes all material factors considered by the New York Community board of directors. In view of the wide variety of factors considered by the

New York Community board of directors in connection with its evaluation of the merger and the complexity of such matters, the New York Community board of directors did not consider it practical to, nor did it attempt to, quantify, rank or otherwise assign relative weights to the specific factors that it considered in reaching its decision. The New York Community board of directors conducted a discussion of the factors described above, including asking questions of New York Community s management and New York Community s legal and financial advisors, and reached general

consensus that the merger was in the best interests of New York Community and New York Community stockholders. In considering the factors described above, individual members of the New York Community board of directors may have given different weights to different factors. The New York Community board of directors relied on the experience and expertise of its financial advisor for quantitative analysis of the financial terms of the merger. See THE MERGER Opinion of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. to New York Community on page [•]. It should be noted that this explanation of the New York Community board s reasoning and all other information presented in this section is forward-looking in nature and, therefore, should be read in light of the factors discussed under the heading CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS on page [•].

The New York Community board of directors determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby are advisable and in the best interests of New York Community and its stockholders. The New York Community board of directors also determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby are consistent with, and in furtherance of, New York Community s business strategies. Accordingly, the New York Community board of directors unanimously approved the merger agreement and unanimously recommends that New York Community stockholders vote FOR adoption of the merger agreement.

Roslyn s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of Roslyn s Board of Directors

The Roslyn board of directors believes that the merger is in the best interests of Roslyn and its stockholders. The Roslyn board of directors therefore has unanimously approved the merger agreement and the stock option agreements and unanimously recommends that the Roslyn stockholders vote **FOR** approval and adoption of the merger agreement.

In reaching its decision to approve and recommend the merger agreement, the Roslyn board of directors, with advice from Roslyn management and financial and legal advisors, considered a number of factors, including the following material factors:

The Roslyn board of directors understanding of Roslyn s business, operations, financial condition, earnings and prospects and of New York Community s business, operations, financial condition, earnings and prospects, taking into account Roslyn s due diligence review of New York Community;

The complementary aspects of the Roslyn and New York Community businesses, including Roslyn s strength in deposit accumulation and New York Community s strength in loan origination, the compatible loan mix of Roslyn and New York Community and the common operating philosophies, systems platforms and integration expertise of Roslyn and New York Community;

The fact that the complementary nature of the respective customer bases, business products and skills of Roslyn and New York Community should result in enhanced revenue opportunities as products are cross-marketed and distributed over broader customer bases. Management of Roslyn and New York Community anticipate future revenue enhancement initiatives, however, at this time, no amounts were considered in the projected benefits of the merger;

The Roslyn board of directors belief that a combination with New York Community would allow Roslyn stockholders to participate in a combined company that would be the largest community bank in the New York metropolitan region in terms of market capitalization and total assets with the lowest efficiency ratio and that the combined company would have better future prospects than Roslyn was likely to achieve on a stand-alone basis;

The fact that Roslyn s and New York Community s branch franchises operate principally in the same geographic markets, which it believed to present a desirable strategic opportunity for expansion of its existing presence and market share. In particular, the board considered that:

the combination of the two business will provide the combined company with broader coverage in its traditional market, the greater New York metropolitan area; and

32

the resulting institution s branch network and franchise would be concentrated in one of the most affluent and populous regions in the country.

The presentation by senior members of Roslyn management regarding the strategic advantages of combining with New York Community, including the potential for stockholder value appreciation and the opportunities that the merger could present for costs savings and enhanced revenue opportunities;

The current and prospective environment in which Roslyn and New York Community operate, including national and local economic conditions, the competitive environment for thrifts and other financial institutions generally, the trend toward consolidation in the financial services industry and the likely effect of these factors on Roslyn s potential growth, development, productivity and profitability;

The financial information and analyses presented by Sandler O Neill and Goldman Sachs to the Roslyn board of directors, and the opinions delivered to the Roslyn board of directors by Sandler O Neill and Goldman Sachs, to the effect that, as of the date of their opinions, and based on and subject to the assumptions, qualifications and limitations described in such opinions, the exchange ratio is fair, from a financial point of view, to Roslyn stockholders;

The review by the Roslyn board of directors with its legal and financial advisors of the structure of the merger and the financial and other terms of the merger and stock option agreements, including the exchange ratio, the reciprocal stock option agreements and the expectation that the merger will qualify as a transaction of a type that is generally tax-free for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

The likelihood that the merger would be consummated, given the regulatory and other approvals required in connection with the merger and the experience of New York Community and Roslyn in prior merger transactions;

The continued representation of Roslyn directors in the combined company as described under Interests of Roslyn s Directors and Officers in the Merger that Differ From Your Interests Roslyn Director Representation through the appointment of five members of the Roslyn board of directors to the New York Community board of directors and the appointment of Joseph L. Mancino as one of the Co-Chairmen of the New York Community board of directors and the increased management depth of the combined company;

The challenges of combining the businesses, assets and workforces of the two companies, which could impact the post-merger success of the combined company, in light of New York Community s and Roslyn s past experience in integrating transactions;

The risk that the stock option agreement would limit Roslyn s ability to pursue or support competing acquisition proposals;

The fact that some of Roslyn's directors and executive officers have interests in the merger that are in addition to their interests as Roslyn stockholders, which have the potential to influence such directors and officers views and actions in connection with the merger proposal. See Interests of Roslyn's Directors and Officers in the Merger that Differ From Your Interests on page [•];

The future ability of the combined company to restructure its proforma balance sheet by downsizing its securities portfolio and utilizing the resulting proceeds to retire borrowings and buy back stock; and

The fact that the combined company would have greater resources and broader product offerings, enabling it to capitalize on various business opportunities, to realize enhanced returns on capital and to provide expanded services to its customer base.

The Roslyn board of directors realizes that there can be no assurance about future results, including results expected or considered in the factors listed above, such as assumptions regarding price-to-earnings multiples, potential revenue enhancements, anticipated cost savings and earnings accretion. However, the board concluded that the potential positive factors outweighed the potential risks of consummating the merger.

33

The foregoing discussion of the information and factors considered by the Roslyn board of directors is not exhaustive, but includes all material factors considered by the Roslyn board of directors. In view of the wide variety of factors considered by the Roslyn board of directors in connection with its evaluation of the merger and the complexity of such matters, the Roslyn board of directors did not consider it practical to, nor did it attempt to, quantify, rank or otherwise assign relative weights to the specific factors that it considered in reaching its decision. The Roslyn board of directors conducted a discussion of the factors described above, including asking questions of Roslyn s management and Roslyn s legal and financial advisors, and reached general consensus that the merger was in the best interests of Roslyn and Roslyn stockholders. In considering the factors described above, individual members of the Roslyn board of directors may have given different weights to different factors. The Roslyn board of directors relied on the experience and expertise of its financial advisors for quantitative analysis of the financial terms of the merger. See THE MERGER Opinions of Roslyn s Financial Advisors on page [•]. It should be noted that this explanation of the Roslyn board s reasoning and all other information presented in this section is forward-looking in nature and, therefore, should be read in light of the factors discussed under the heading CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS on page [•].

The Roslyn board of directors determined that the merger, the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby are advisable and in the best interests of Roslyn and its stockholders. The Roslyn board of directors also determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby are consistent with, and in furtherance of, Roslyn s business strategies. Accordingly, the Roslyn board of directors unanimously approved the merger agreement and unanimously recommends that Roslyn stockholders vote FOR adoption of the merger agreement.

#### **Opinions of Financial Advisors**

New York Community engaged Citigroup Global Markets Inc. as its financial advisor and Roslyn engaged Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. and Goldman, Sachs & Co. as its financial advisors in connection with the merger based on their experience and expertise. Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. and Goldman, Sachs & Co. are internationally recognized investment banking firms that have substantial experience in transactions similar to the merger.

### Opinion of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. to New York Community

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. was retained to act as financial advisor to New York Community in connection with a potential combination transaction with Roslyn. Pursuant to Citigroup Global Markets letter agreement with New York Community, dated May 30, 2003, Citigroup Global Markets rendered an opinion to the New York Community board of directors on June 26, 2003, to the effect that, based upon and subject to the considerations and limitations set forth in the opinion, Citigroup Global Markets work described below and other factors it deemed relevant, as of that date, the exchange ratio in the proposed merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to New York Community.

The full text of Citigroup Global Markets opinion, which sets forth the assumptions made, general procedures followed, matters considered and limits on the review undertaken, is included as Appendix D to this document. The summary of Citigroup Global Markets opinion set forth below is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the opinion. You are urged to read Citigroup Global Markets opinion carefully and in its entirety.

In arriving at its opinion, Citigroup Global Markets reviewed a draft dated June 26, 2003 of the merger agreement. Citigroup Global Markets also held discussions with certain senior officers and other representatives and advisors of New York Community and Roslyn concerning the business, operations and prospects of New York Community and Roslyn. Citigroup Global Markets examined certain publicly available business and financial information relating to New York Community and Roslyn. Citigroup Global Markets also reviewed certain financial forecasts and

other information and data relating to New York Community and Roslyn that were provided to or otherwise discussed with Citigroup Global Markets by the managements of New York Community

34

and Roslyn, including information regarding certain strategic implications and operational benefits anticipated by management to result from the merger. Citigroup Global Markets reviewed the financial terms of the merger as set forth in the merger agreement in relation to, among other things:

current and historical market prices and trading volumes of New York Community common stock and Roslyn common stock;

historical and projected earnings and other operating data for New York Community and Roslyn; and

historical and projected capitalization and financial condition of New York Community and Roslyn.

Citigroup Global Markets also considered, to the extent publicly available, the financial terms of certain other similar transactions that Citigroup Global Markets considered relevant in evaluating the exchange ratio in the merger and analyzed certain financial, stock market and other publicly available information relating to the businesses of other companies whose operations Citigroup Global Markets considered relevant in evaluating those of New York Community and Roslyn. Citigroup Global Markets also evaluated the pro forma financial impact of the transaction on New York Community. In addition to the foregoing, Citigroup Global Markets conducted such other analyses and examinations and considered such other information and financial, economic and market criteria as Citigroup Global Markets deemed appropriate in arriving at its opinion.

In rendering its opinion, Citigroup Global Markets assumed and relied, without independent verification, upon the accuracy and completeness of all financial and other information and data furnished to or otherwise reviewed by or discussed with it. With respect to financial forecasts and other information and data provided to or otherwise reviewed by or discussed with it, Citigroup Global Markets was advised by the managements of New York Community and Roslyn that such forecasts and other information and data had been reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of the managements of New York Community and Roslyn as to the future financial performance of New York Community and Roslyn, and the strategic implications and operational benefits anticipated to result from the merger. Citigroup Global Markets expressed no view with respect to such forecasts and other information and data or the assumptions on which they were based. Citigroup Global Markets did not make and was not provided with an independent evaluation or appraisal of the assets or liabilities (contingent or otherwise) of New York Community or Roslyn nor did it make any physical inspection of the properties or assets of New York Community or Roslyn, Citigroup Global Markets assumed that the merger will be treated as a tax-free reorganization for federal income tax purposes. Citigroup Global Markets informed the board of directors of New York Community that Citigroup Global Markets is not expert in the evaluation of loan or lease portfolios for purposes of assessing the adequacy of the allowances for losses with respect thereto, and Citigroup Global Markets did not make an independent evaluation of the adequacy of such allowances of New York Community or Roslyn. For purposes of its opinion, Citigroup Global Markets assumed that the allowances for such losses for each of New York Community and Roslyn are adequate to cover such losses. Citigroup Global Markets assumed, and had been advised by New York Community, that the final terms of the merger agreement would not vary materially from those set forth in the draft reviewed by Citigroup Global Markets. It also was assumed by Citigroup Global Markets, with the consent of New York Community, that the merger will be consummated in accordance with its terms, without waiver, modification or amendment of any material term, condition or agreement and that, in the course of obtaining the necessary regulatory or third party approvals and consents for the merger, no delay, limitation, restriction or condition will be imposed that would have an adverse effect on New York Community, Roslyn or the contemplated benefits of the merger.

Citigroup Global Markets opinion relates only to the relative values of New York Community and Roslyn. Citigroup Global Markets did not express any opinion as to what the value of the New York Community common stock actually will be when issued in the merger or the price at which it will trade subsequent to the merger. Citigroup Global Markets was not requested to consider, and its opinion did not address, the relative merits of the merger as compared to any alternative business strategies that might exist for New York Community or the effect of any other transaction in which New York Community might engage. Citigroup Global Markets opinion necessarily was based on information available to it, and financial, stock market and other conditions and circumstances existing and disclosed to it as of the date of its opinion.

35

Citigroup Global Markets advisory services and opinion were provided for the information of the New York Community board of directors in its evaluation of the merger and do not constitute a recommendation to any stockholder as to how such stockholder should vote or act on any matters relating to the merger.

In connection with rendering its opinion, Citigroup Global Markets made a presentation to the New York Community board of directors on June 26, 2003, with respect to the material analyses performed by Citigroup Global Markets in evaluating the fairness of the exchange ratio in the merger. The following is a summary of that presentation. The summary includes information presented in tabular format. In order to understand fully the financial analyses used by Citigroup Global Markets, these tables must be read together with the text of each summary. The tables alone do not constitute a complete description of the financial analyses. The following quantitative information, to the extent it is based on market data, is, except as otherwise indicated, based on market data as it existed on or prior to June 25, 2003, and is not necessarily indicative of current or future market conditions.

\* \* \*

Historical Trading Analysis. Citigroup Global Markets reviewed the trading prices of New York Community common stock and Roslyn common stock for the period from January 1, 2002 through June 25, 2003. For each trading day in that period, Citigroup Global Markets derived the implied historical exchange ratio by dividing the closing price of Roslyn common stock by the closing price of New York Community common stock. Citigroup Global Markets noted that the implied historical exchange ratio as of June 25, 2003, the last trading day prior to the announcement of the merger, was 0.7267. The following table sets forth the average implied historical exchange ratios for the specified periods ended June 25, 2003 and the premium or discount represented by each such ratio as compared to the exchange ratio implied by closing trading prices on June 25, 2003.

Implied Premium or Discount

to Market

Period	Implied Exchange Ratio	(June 25, 2003 Exchange Ratio)
One-Year Average	0.8520x	17.2%
Six-Month Average	0.8065x	11.0%
Three-Month Average	0.7355x	1.2%
One-Month Average	0.7102x	(2.3%)

Among other things, Citigroup Global Markets noted that the exchange ratio in the merger of 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock for each share of Roslyn common stock was less than the one-year and six-month average implied historical exchange ratios.

Comparable Companies Analysis. Citigroup Global Markets compared financial, operating and stock market data and forecasted financial information for New York Community and Roslyn with similar information for selected publicly traded bank and thrift institutions located in the New York metropolitan area. The selected bank and thrift institutions considered by Citigroup Global Markets were:

North Fork Bancorporation, Inc.

GreenPoint Financial Corp.		
Astoria Financial Corporation		
Independence Community Bank Corp.		
Hudson United Bancorp		
Staten Island Bancorp, Inc.		

The financial information used by Citigroup Global Markets for all companies in the course of this analysis was based on historical financial information as March 31, 2003, market data as of June 25, 2003 and forecasted information published by Institutional Brokers Estimate System (IBES). IBES is a data service that publishes compilations of earnings estimates by selected research analysts.

36

For each of the selected comparable bank and thrift institutions, Citigroup Global Markets derived and compared, among other things:

the ratio of the company s closing price per common share on June 25, 2003, to its estimated earnings per share ( EPS ) for each of calendar years 2003 and 2004; and

the ratio of the company s closing price per common share on June 25, 2003, to its book value and tangible book value.

The following table sets forth the results of these analyses:

Common Share Price as Multiple of:	Range	Median
<del></del>		
Estimated EPS for 2003	8.6x 13.	0x 12.0x
Estimated EPS for 2004	8.7x 13.	7x 11.5x
Book Value	1.37x 3.3	8x 2.39x
Tangible Book Value	1.30x 4.5	6x 2.93x

Based on this information, Citigroup Global Markets derived a reference range for the implied equity value per share of Roslyn common stock of \$18.22 to \$22.27. Citigroup Global Markets also derived a reference range for the implied equity value per share of Roslyn common stock of \$14.99 to \$18.32, taking into account the potential impact on Roslyn's forecasted earnings of a \$3.5 billion downsizing of Roslyn's securities portfolio expected by management to be effected following the merger. Citigroup Global Markets noted that the exchange ratio in the merger of 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock for each share of Roslyn common stock had an implied value of \$20.86 based on the closing price of New York Community common stock on June 25, 2003 and \$20.33 based on the closing price of New York Community common stock on June 26, 2003. These implied values were within the derived reference range of the implied equity value per share of Roslyn common stock using the information for the selected bank and thrift institutions excluding the expected downsizing of the Roslyn securities portfolio and were above the derived reference range adjusted for the expected downsizing.

Precedent Transaction Analysis. Citigroup Global Markets reviewed publicly available information for three groups of merger or acquisition transactions involving thrifts that it deemed appropriate in analyzing the merger. The first group consisted of 8 transactions announced since January 1, 1997 involving acquired thrifts in the New York metropolitan area with aggregate consideration paid to stockholders in the transaction of over \$250 million. This New York Group consisted of the following precedent transactions (in each case, the acquiror s name is listed first and the acquired company s name is listed second):

Washington Mutual, Inc./Dime Bancorp, Inc.

North Fork Bancorporation, Inc./JSB Financial, Inc.

North Fork Bancorporation, Inc./New York Bancorp Inc.

New York Community Bancorp, Inc./Richmond County Financial Corp.

Roslyn Bancorp, Inc./T R Financial Corp.

Astoria Financial Corporation/ Greater New York Savings Bank North Fork Bancorporation, Inc./Reliance Bancorp Inc.

Astoria Financial Corporation/Long Island Bancorp, Inc.

37

The second group consisted of 14 transactions announced since January 1, 1998 involving acquired thrifts in Connecticut, Massachusetts, Maine, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island and Vermont with aggregate consideration paid to stockholders in the transaction of over \$250 million. This Northeast Group consisted of the following precedent transactions:

Royal Bank of Scotland Group Sovereign Bancorp, Inc./First Essex Bancorp, BankNorth Group, Inc./American PLC/Commonwealth Bancorp, Inc Financial Holdings Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC/Medford Washington Mutual, Inc./Dime BankNorth Group, Inc./Andover Bancorp, Inc. Bancorp, Inc. Bancorp, Inc. New York Community Bancorp, North Fork Bancorporation, Inc./JSB North Fork Bancorporation, Inc./Richmond County Financial Corp. Inc./Reliance Bancorp Inc. Financial, Inc. Sovereign Bancorp, Inc./Peoples Bancorp Peoples Heritage Financial Group/SIS Charter One Financial, Inc./ALBANK Financial Corporation Bancorp, Inc. Astoria Financial Corporation/Long Roslyn Bancorp, Inc./T R Financial Corp. Island Bancorp, Inc.

The third group consisted of 14 transactions announced since January 1, 1998 involving acquired thrifts anywhere in the United States with aggregate consideration paid to stockholders in the transaction of over \$500 million. This National Group consisted of the following precedent transactions:

BankNorth Group, Inc./American Financial Holdings	Citigroup Inc./Golden State Bancorp Inc.	Washington Mutual, Inc./Dime Bancorp, Inc.
New York Community Bancorp, Inc./Richmond County Financial Corp.	Washington Mutual, Inc./Bank United Corp.	North Fork Bancorporation, Inc./JSB Financial, Inc.
Charter One Financial, Inc./ St. Paul Bancorp	Charter One Financial, Inc./ALBANK Financial Corporation	Roslyn Bancorp, Inc./T R Financial Corp.
Astoria Financial Corporation/Long Island Bancorp, Inc.	Washington Mutual, Inc./H.F. Ahmanson & Company	Commercial Federal Corporation/First Colorado Bancorp, Inc.
Fifth Third Bancorp/CitFed Bancorp, Inc.	Fifth Third Bancorp/State Savings Co.	

For each precedent transaction, Citigroup Global Markets derived and compared, among other things:

the implied ratio of the price per common share paid for the acquired company in the transaction to:

- (a) the EPS of the acquired company for the latest twelve months ( LTM ) of results publicly available prior to the time the transaction was announced;
- (b) estimated EPS of the acquired company for either the calendar year of, or the calendar year following, the announcement of the transaction (Estimated Forward EPS);
- (c) book value per share of the acquired company based on the latest publicly available financial statements of the company available prior to the announcement of the acquisition; and

(d) tangible book value per share of the acquired company based on the latest publicly available financial statements of the company available prior to the announcement of the acquisition.

38

the implied premium represented by the price per common share paid for the acquired company in the transaction to:

- (a) the closing price per common share of the acquired company one-day prior to the announcement of the transaction;
- (b) the closing price per common share of the acquired company one-month prior to the announcement of the transaction; and
- (c) the acquired company s deposits (determined by taking the difference of the value of the consideration to be paid in the transaction as of the day of the announcement less the acquired company s tangible book value and dividing it by the acquired company s deposits).

With respect to the financial information for the companies involved in the precedent transactions, Citigroup Global Markets relied on information from public filings and company press releases, as well as information published by Securities Data Corp. and SNL DataSource. Securities Data Corp. compiles summaries of merger and financing information published by certain investment banks, market research firms and trade associations. Among other things, SNL DataSource compiles financial information regarding companies and merger and acquisition transactions in the banking and financial services sectors.

The following tables set forth the results of these analyses for each of the three groups of precedent transactions:

## **New York Group**

## **Implied Ratio of Transaction**

Price to:	Range	Median	
LTM EPS	13.8x 33.3x	19.5x	
Estimated Forward EPS	13.2x 27.0x	16.7x	
Book Value	1.53x  4.80x	2.53x	
Tangible Book Value	1.53x  4.80x	3.15x	

## **Implied Premium of Transaction**

Price to:	Range	Median
	<del></del>	<del></del>
Closing Price 1-Day Prior to	3.3% 46.6%	8.3%
Announcement		
Closing Price 1-Month Prior to	2.9% 57.9%	15.9%
Announcement		
Deposits	8.5% 38.7%	26.9%

## **Northeast Group**

## Implied Ratio of Transaction

Price to:	Range	Median	
LTM EPS	13.8x 45.2x	21.1x	
Estimated Forward EPS	13.2x 27.0x	19.1x	
Book Value	1.10x 4.03x	2.51x	
Tangible Book Value	1.13x  4.03x	3.00x	
Premium of Transaction Price to:	Range	Median	
Closing Price 1-Day Prior to  Announcement	3.3% 46.6%	19.5%	
Closing Price 1-Month Prior to	2.9% 57.9%	25.0%	
Announcement			
Deposits	8.8% 38.2%	20.2%	

## **National Group**

#### **Implied Ratio of Transaction**

Price to:	Range	Median	
-	<del></del>	<del></del>	
LTM EPS	11.6x 38.2x	23.0x	
Estimated Forward EPS	11.3x 27.0x	19.5x	
Book Value	1.53x  4.03x	2.49x	
Tangible Book Value	1.53x 4.58x	3.15x	

#### **Implied Premium of Transaction**

Price to:	Range	Median
	<del></del>	
Closing Price 1-Day Prior to	0.7% 46.6%	10.7%
Announcement		
Closing Price 1-Month Prior to	2.9% 57.9%	20.8%
Announcement		
Deposits	7.5% 38.2%	24.2%

Based on the information derived for each of the groups of precedent transactions, Citigroup Global Markets derived reference ranges for the implied equity value per share of Roslyn common stock using historical financial information as of March 31, 2003 and forecasted information published by IBES. Citigroup Global Markets derived reference ranges both including and excluding the potential impact on Roslyn's forecasted earnings of the \$3.5 billion downsizing of Roslyn's securities portfolio expected by management to be effected following the merger. The reference ranges derived by Citigroup Global Markets were as follows:

Reference Group	Range w/o Downsizing	Range w/ Downsizing
New York Group	\$19.99 \$24.44	\$19.56 \$23.90
Northeast Group	\$20.68 \$25.57	\$20.44 \$24.99
National Group	\$20.14 \$24.62	\$21.12 \$25.82

Citigroup Global Markets noted that the implied equity value per share of Roslyn common stock of \$20.86 based on the exchange ratio in the merger and the closing price of New York Community common stock on June 25, 2003 was within five, and below one, of the six reference ranges for the implied equity value of Roslyn common stock derived by Citigroup Global Markets in its precedent transactions analysis. Citigroup Global Markets also noted that the implied equity value per share of Roslyn common stock of \$20.33 based on the exchange ratio in the merger and the closing price of New York Community common stock on June 26, 2003 was within three, and below three, of those derived reference ranges.

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis. Citigroup Global Markets performed a discounted cash flow analysis to estimate a range for the implied equity value per share of Roslyn common stock as of June 25, 2003, including certain potential expenses and cost savings forecasted by management to result from the merger. Citigroup Global Markets performed this analysis both including and excluding the potential impact on Roslyn s forecasted earnings of the \$3.5 billion downsizing of Roslyn s securities portfolio expected by management to be effected following the merger. In this analysis, Citigroup Global Markets assumed a weighted average cost of capital of 10.6%, and used it to derive the present value

of (1) Roslyn's estimated free cash flows available to stockholders from 2004 to 2008, plus (2) Roslyn's terminal value at the end of 2008. Terminal values for Roslyn were calculated based on a range of 9.0x to 12.0x estimated 2009 EPS. In performing this analysis, Citigroup Global Markets used IBES estimates of EPS as of June 25, 2003 for Roslyn and an estimated long-term annual growth rate for Roslyn's EPS (also obtained from IBES) of 9.0%. EPS data were adjusted to account for certain restructuring charges anticipated by management to result from the merger and management is assumptions of cost savings resulting from the merger of 35% of Roslyn's pre-tax controllable overhead expense, with an annual growth rate of such cost savings of 3% per year after 2004. In determining cash flows available to stockholders, Citigroup Global Markets used forecasted dividend payout ratios (in other words, percentages of adjusted EPS payable to stockholders), which assume the maintenance of a constant ratio of tangible common equity to tangible assets of 5.0% and an asset growth rate of 10% per annum.

40

Based on these assumptions, Citigroup Global Markets derived a reference range for the implied equity value per share of Roslyn common stock of \$23.51 to \$27.64, without taking into account the potential impact of the expected downsizing of Roslyn s securities portfolio. Citigroup Global Markets also derived a reference range for the implied equity value per share of Roslyn common stock of \$21.13 to \$24.77, taking the potential impact of the expected downsizing into account. Citigroup Global Markets noted that the implied value per share of Roslyn common stock of \$20.86 based on the exchange ratio in the merger and the closing price of New York Community common stock on June 25, 2003 and the implied value per share of Roslyn common stock of \$20.33 based on the exchange ratio in the merger and the closing price of New York Community common stock on June 26, 2003 were below both reference ranges for the implied equity value per share of Roslyn common stock derived by Citigroup Global Markets in its discounted cash flow analysis.

Contribution Analysis. Citigroup Global Markets analyzed the relative contribution that New York Community and Roslyn would each be making to the combined company with respect to certain financial and operating data. Citigroup Global Markets based its analyses on financial data as of or for the twelve-month period ended March 31, 2003 and market data as of June 25, 2003. Except as noted below with respect to consideration of the expected downsizing of Roslyn's securities portfolio following the merger, Citigroup Global Markets did not consider cost savings, restructuring adjustments or other expected effects of the merger in its contribution analysis. Forecasted information was based on the most recent IBES estimates available on June 25, 2003.

The following table sets forth the results of this analysis.

	<b>New York Community</b>	Roslyn	
	Contribution to	Contribution to	
	<b>Combined Company</b>	<b>Combined Company</b>	
Balance Sheet Data			
Securities	41.4%	58.6%	
Gross Loans	63.7%	36.3%	
Allowance for Loan Losses	48.0%	52.0%	
Goodwill and Intangibles	99.9%	0.1%	
Total Assets	52.5%	47.5%	
Deposits	45.9%	54.1%	
Other Liabilities	56.6%	43.4%	
Total Equity	71.1%	28.9%	
Total Liabilities and Equity	52.5%	47.5%	
Tier I Capital	63.0%	37.0%	
Tangible Common Equity	55.2%	44.8%	
Unadjusted Income			
Estimated 2003 Net Income	67.0%	33.0%	
Estimated 2004 Net Income	69.3%	30.7%	
Income Adjusted for Downsizing			
Estimated 2003 Net Income	75.2%	24.8%	
Estimated 2004 Net Income	77.1%	22.9%	
Fully Diluted Market Capitalization	72.1%	27.9%	

Citigroup Global Markets compared this data to the 71.4% and 28.6% pro forma fully diluted equity interest in the combined company of the current common stockholders of New York Community and Roslyn, respectively, resulting from the merger.

Forecasted Pro Forma Financial Analysis. Citigroup Global Markets analyzed the estimated financial impact of the merger on New York Community s 2004 and 2005 estimated EPS and 2004 and 2005 estimated cash EPS (CEPS). CEPS is determined by adding per share amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets to EPS. In the course of this analysis, Citigroup Global Markets used IBES estimates of EPS for 2004 and 2005, utilizing the IBES forecasted long-term EPS growth rate of 13.5%, and assumed, based on management forecasts, that the merger will result in cost savings equal to 35% of Roslyn s pre-tax controllable overhead expense. Based on its analysis, Citigroup Global Markets determined that the merger would be accretive to New York Community s estimated EPS and estimated CEPS for 2004 and 2005 and noted that the tangible common ratio would improve to surpass pre-transaction levels during that period.

\* \* \*

The preceding discussion is a summary of the material financial analyses furnished by Citigroup Global Markets Inc. to the New York Community board of directors, but it does not purport to be a complete description of the analyses performed by Citigroup Global Markets or of its presentation to the New York Community board of directors. The preparation of financial analyses and fairness opinions is a complex process involving subjective judgments and is not necessarily susceptible to partial analysis or summary description. Citigroup Global Markets made no attempt to assign specific weights to particular analyses or factors considered, but rather made qualitative judgments as to the significance and relevance of all the analyses and factors considered and determined to give its fairness opinion as described above. Accordingly, Citigroup Global Markets believes that its analyses, and the summary set forth above, must be considered as a whole, and that selecting portions of the analyses and of the factors considered by Citigroup Global Markets, without considering all of the analyses and factors, could create a misleading or incomplete view of the processes underlying the analyses conducted by Citigroup Global Markets and its opinion. With regard to the comparable companies and precedent transaction analyses summarized above, Citigroup Global Markets selected comparable public companies and precedent transactions on the basis of various factors, including size and similarity of the line of business of the relevant entities; however, no company utilized in these analyses is identical to New York Community or Roslyn and no precedent transaction is identical to the merger. As a result, these analyses are not purely mathematical, but also take into account differences in financial and operating characteristics of the subject companies and other factors that could affect the transaction or public trading value of the subject companies to which New York Community and Roslyn are being compared.

In its analyses, Citigroup Global Markets made numerous assumptions with respect to New York Community, Roslyn, industry performance, general business, economic, market and financial conditions and other matters, many of which are beyond the control of New York Community and Roslyn. Any estimates contained in Citigroup Global Markets—analyses are not necessarily indicative of actual values or predictive of future results or values, which may be significantly more or less favorable than those suggested by these analyses. Estimates of values of companies do not purport to be appraisals or to necessarily reflect the prices at which companies may actually be sold. Because these estimates are inherently subject to uncertainty, none of New York Community, Roslyn, the New York Community board of directors, the Roslyn board of directors, Citigroup Global Markets or any other person assumes responsibility if future results or actual values differ materially from the estimates.

Citigroup Global Markets analyses were prepared solely as part of Citigroup Global Markets analysis of the fairness of the exchange ratio in the merger and were provided to the New York Community board of directors in that connection. The opinion of Citigroup Global Markets was only one of the factors taken into consideration by the New York Community board of directors in making its determination to approve the merger agreement and the merger. See New York Community s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of New York Community s Board of Directors on page [•].

Citigroup Global Markets is an internationally recognized investment banking firm engaged in, among other things, the valuation of businesses and their securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions,

42

restructurings, leveraged buyouts, negotiated underwritings, competitive biddings, secondary distributions of listed and unlisted securities, private placements and valuations for estate, corporate and other purposes. New York Community selected Citigroup Global Markets to act as its financial advisor on the basis of Citigroup Global Markets international reputation and Citigroup Global Markets familiarity with New York Community. In the ordinary course of its business, Citigroup Global Markets and its affiliates may actively trade or hold the securities of both New York Community and Roslyn for its own account and for the account of customers and, accordingly, may at any time hold a long or short position in those securities. Citigroup Global Markets and its affiliates, including Citigroup Inc. and its affiliates, may maintain relationships with New York Community and Roslyn and their respective affiliates. Citigroup Global Markets may be deemed to beneficially own 6,606,730 shares of Roslyn s outstanding common stock, and Citigroup Inc. and certain of its affiliates may be deemed to beneficially own up to 9,205,687 shares of Roslyn s outstanding common stock.

Pursuant to its letter agreement with Citigroup Global Markets, New York Community has paid Citigroup \$1.5 million in fees in connection with the merger, and an additional \$5.0 million will become payable upon consummation of the merger. New York Community has also agreed to reimburse Citigroup Global Markets for its reasonable travel and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with its engagement, including the reasonable fees and expenses of its counsel, and to indemnify Citigroup Global Markets against specific liabilities and expenses relating to or arising out of its engagement, including liabilities under the federal securities laws.

#### Opinions of Roslyn s Financial Advisors

Roslyn retained Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. to act as Roslyn s financial advisors in connection with the merger. At the meeting of the board of directors of Roslyn on June 26, 2003, each of Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill rendered its oral opinion to the board of directors of Roslyn, each of which opinions subsequently was confirmed in writing, to the effect that, as of that date and based on and subject to the assumptions, qualifications and limitations described in their respective opinions, the exchange ratio pursuant to the merger agreement was fair from a financial point of view to the holders of shares of Roslyn common stock.

The full texts of the written opinions of Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill, each dated June 27, 2003, which set forth the procedures followed, assumptions made, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken by each of Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill in connection with their respective opinions, are attached as Annexes E and F, respectively, to this joint proxy statement/prospectus and are incorporated herein by reference. Holders of Roslyn common stock are urged to and should read each of these opinions in their entirety. Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill provided their respective advisory services and opinions for the information and assistance of the Roslyn board of directors in connection with its consideration of the merger. Neither the Goldman Sachs opinion nor the Sandler O Neill opinion is a recommendation as to how any holder of shares of Roslyn common stock should vote at the Roslyn meeting.

## Goldman Sachs Opinion

In connection with rendering its opinion and performing its related financial analyses, Goldman Sachs reviewed, among other things:

the merger agreement;

annual reports to stockholders and annual reports on Form 10-K of Roslyn for the five years ended December 31, 2002;

annual reports to stockholders and annual reports on Form 10-K of New York Community for the five years ended December 31, 2002;

certain interim reports to stockholders and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q of Roslyn;

certain interim reports to stockholders and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q of New York Community;

43

certain other communications from Roslyn and New York Community to their respective stockholders; and

certain internal financial analyses and forecasts for Roslyn and New York Community prepared by their respective managements, including certain synergies projected by the managements of Roslyn and New York Community to result from the transaction contemplated by the merger agreement and certain balance sheet restructuring initiatives contemplated by New York Community.

Goldman Sachs also held discussions with members of the senior managements of Roslyn and New York Community regarding their assessment of the strategic rationale for, and the potential benefits of, the transaction contemplated by the merger agreement and the past and current business operations, financial condition and future prospects of their respective companies. In addition, Goldman Sachs:

reviewed the reported price and trading activity for shares of Roslyn common stock and New York Community common stock,

compared certain financial and stock market information for Roslyn and New York Community with similar information for certain other companies the securities of which are publicly traded,

reviewed the financial terms of certain recent business combinations in the bank and thrift industry specifically and in other industries generally, and

performed such other studies and analyses as Goldman Sachs considered appropriate.

Goldman Sachs relied upon the accuracy and completeness of all of the financial, accounting and other information discussed with or reviewed by it and assumed such accuracy and completeness for purposes of rendering its opinion. In that regard, Goldman Sachs assumed with Roslyn s consent that the financial forecasts for Roslyn and New York Community prepared by their respective managements, the cost saving and operating synergies projected by the managements of Roslyn and New York Community to result from the transaction contemplated by the merger agreement and the anticipated impact of certain balance sheet restructuring initiatives contemplated by New York Community were reasonably prepared and reflect the best currently available estimates and judgments of the managements of Roslyn and New York Community.

Goldman Sachs is not an expert in the evaluation of loan and lease portfolios for purposes of assessing the adequacy of the allowances for losses for Roslyn and New York Community with respect thereto and, accordingly, it assumed that such allowances for losses for Roslyn and New York Community are in the aggregate adequate to cover such losses. In addition, Goldman Sachs did not review individual credit files nor did it make an independent evaluation or appraisal of the assets and liabilities (including any derivative or off-balance-sheet assets and liabilities) of Roslyn or New York Community or any of their respective subsidiaries, and it was not furnished with any such evaluation or appraisal. Goldman Sachs also assumed that all material governmental, regulatory or other consents and approvals necessary for the consummation of the transaction contemplated by the merger agreement will be obtained without any adverse effect on Roslyn, New York Community or the combined company or on the contemplated benefits of the transaction contemplated by the merger agreement.

Goldman Sachs opinion does not address the relative merits of the transaction contemplated by the merger agreement as compared to any alternative business transaction that might be available to Roslyn, nor does it address the underlying business decision of Roslyn to engage in the transaction contemplated by the merger agreement. In addition, Goldman Sachs did not express any opinion as to the actual value of the shares of Roslyn common stock or New York Community common stock or the prices at which the shares of Roslyn common stock or New York Community common stock will trade at any time.

44

## Sandler O Neill Opinion

T 4' '41 1 '		C ' ', 1,	10 1 1 0 11 0	NT '11 ' 1 41 '
in connection with rendering	its oninion and	nertorming its relate	a tinanciai analyses. Nandier C	Neill reviewed, among other things:
in connection with rendering	its opinion and	periorining its relate	a illialiciai aliaryses, ballaici e	riem reviewed, among other things.

the merger agreement;

the stock option agreements;

certain publicly available financial statements and other historical financial information of Roslyn that Sandler O Neill deemed relevant;

certain publicly available financial statements and other historical financial information of New York Community that Sandler O Neill deemed relevant;

internal financial projections for Roslyn for the years ending December 31, 2003 and 2004 prepared by and reviewed with management of Roslyn;

internal financial projections for New York Community for the years ending December 31, 2003 and 2004 prepared by and reviewed with management of New York Community;

earnings per share estimates for each of Roslyn and New York Community for the years ending December 31, 2003 and 2004 published by IBES;

the pro forma financial impact of the merger on New York Community, based on assumptions relating to earnings projections, transaction expenses, purchase accounting adjustments, and cost savings determined by the senior managements of Roslyn and New York Community, as well as certain balance sheet restructuring initiatives contemplated by New York Community;

the publicly reported historical price and trading activity for Roslyn s and New York Community s common stock, including a comparison of certain financial and stock market information for Roslyn and New York Community with similar publicly available information for certain other companies the securities of which are publicly traded;

the financial terms of certain recent business combinations in the bank and thrift institutions industry, to the extent publicly available;

the current market environment generally and the banking environment in particular; and

such other information, financial studies, analyses and investigations and financial, economic and market criteria as Sandler O Neill considered relevant.

Sandler O Neill also discussed with certain members of the senior managements of Roslyn and New York Community their views of the strategic rationale for the merger as well as the business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects of their respective companies.

In performing its review, Sandler O Neill relied upon the accuracy and completeness of all of the financial and other information that was available to Sandler O Neill from public sources, that was provided to Sandler O Neill by Roslyn or New York Community or their respective representatives or that was otherwise reviewed by Sandler O Neill and assumed such accuracy and completeness for purposes of rendering its opinion. Sandler O Neill further relied on the assurances of management of Roslyn and New York Community that they were not aware of any facts or circumstances that would make any of such information inaccurate or misleading. Sandler O Neill was not asked to and did not undertake an independent verification of any of such information and did not assume any responsibility or liability for the accuracy or completeness thereof. Sandler O Neill did not make an independent evaluation or appraisal of the specific assets, the collateral securing assets or the liabilities (contingent or otherwise) of Roslyn or New York Community or any of their subsidiaries, or the collectibility of any such assets, nor was Sandler O Neill furnished with any such evaluations or appraisals. Sandler O Neill did not make an independent evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses of Roslyn or New York

## **Table of Contents**

Community nor did Sandler O Neill review any individual credit files relating to Roslyn or New York Community. Sandler O Neill assumed, with Roslyn s consent, that the respective allowances for loan losses for both Roslyn and New York Community are adequate to cover such losses and will be adequate on a pro forma basis for the combined entity.

With respect to the financial projections for Roslyn and New York Community and all projections of transaction costs, purchase accounting adjustments, expected cost savings and the impact of the contemplated balance sheet restructuring initiatives prepared by and reviewed with the managements of Roslyn and New York Community and used by Sandler O Neill in its analyses, such managements confirmed to Sandler O Neill that they reflect the best currently available estimates and judgments of the respective managements of the respective future financial performance of Roslyn, New York Community and the combined company, and Sandler O Neill assumed that such projections would be achieved. Sandler O Neill expressed no opinion as to such financial projections or the assumptions on which they are based. Sandler O Neill also assumed that there has been no material change in Roslyn s or New York Community s assets, financial condition, results of operations, business or prospects since the date of the most recent financial statements made available to Sandler O Neill.

Sandler O Neill assumed in all respects material to its analysis that Roslyn and New York Community will remain as going concerns for all periods relevant to its analyses, that all of the representations and warranties contained in the merger agreement and all related agreements are true and correct, that each party to such agreements will perform all of the covenants required to be performed by such party under such agreements, that the conditions precedent in such agreements are not waived, and that the merger will qualify as a tax-free reorganization for federal income tax purposes. With Roslyn s consent, Sandler O Neill relied upon the advice Roslyn received from its legal, accounting and tax advisors as to all legal, accounting and tax matters relating to the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

## Joint Financial Analyses of Roslyn s Financial Advisors

In preparing their respective opinions to Roslyn s board of directors, Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill performed a variety of financial and comparative analyses, including those described below. The summary of the analyses of Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill described below is not a complete description of all of the analyses underlying their opinions, and the order in which these analyses are described below is not indicative of any relative weight or importance given to those analyses by Goldman Sachs or Sandler O Neill. The following summaries of financial analyses include information presented in tabular format. You should read these tables together with the full text of the summary of financial analyses, as the tables alone are not a complete description of the analyses.

The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process involving various determinations as to the most appropriate and relevant methods of financial analysis and the application of those methods to the particular circumstances, and, therefore, a fairness opinion is not readily susceptible to summary description. In arriving at their respective opinions, Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill considered the results of all of the analyses and factors and did not isolate specific analyses or factors and reach separate conclusions as to whether or not any particular analysis or factor supported their opinions; rather each of Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill made its determination as to fairness on the basis of its experience and professional judgment after considering the results of all the underlying analyses and factors. Accordingly, Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill believe that their analyses must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of their analyses or certain factors, without considering all analyses and factors as a whole, could create a misleading or incomplete view of the processes underlying their opinions.

In their analyses, Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill made numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance, general business, economic, market and financial conditions and various other matters, many of which are beyond the control of the parties and their advisers. Furthermore, no company or transaction used in Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill s analyses as a comparison is identical to Roslyn, New York Community or

46

the proposed merger. Rather, the analyses of comparable companies and transactions involve complex considerations and judgments concerning differences in financial and operating characteristics of the companies and other factors that could affect the acquisition, public trading or other values of the companies or transactions being compared.

Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill prepared their analyses solely for purposes of providing their respective opinions to Roslyn s board of directors as to the fairness from a financial point of view to holders of shares of Roslyn common stock of the exchange ratio. The analyses do not purport to be appraisals or necessarily reflect the prices at which businesses or securities actually may be sold. Analyses based upon forecasts of future results are not necessarily indicative of actual future results, which may be significantly more or less favorable than those suggested by these analyses. Because these analyses are inherently subject to uncertainty, being based upon numerous factors or events beyond the control of the parties or their respective advisors, none of Roslyn, New York Community, Goldman Sachs or Sandler O Neill assumes responsibility if future results are materially different from those forecast.

The opinions of Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill were only one of many factors considered by the board of directors of Roslyn in its evaluation of the merger and should not be viewed as determinative of the views of the board of directors of Roslyn or management with respect to the merger or the exchange ratio.

*Transaction Multiple Analysis.* Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill calculated an implied transaction value per share of Roslyn common stock of \$20.86, based on the exchange ratio of 0.75 and the \$27.81 closing price per share of New York Community common stock on June 25, 2003. This implied value per share represented a premium to the closing price per share of Roslyn common stock on June 25, 2003 of 3.2%.

Using this implied transaction value per share, Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill also calculated the following multiples and premiums:

the implied transaction value per share of \$20.86 as a multiple of:

median IBES EPS estimates for Roslyn for 2003 and 2004; and

Roslyn management s internal EPS estimates for 2003 and 2004, based on the interest rate environment remaining relatively stable through 2004 and excluding one-time gains from asset sales and adjusted further by Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill to exclude selected one-time items (referred to as the Roslyn flat-rate scenario );

the implied aggregate transaction value (based on the implied transaction value per share of \$20.86 and outstanding share, option and other information provided to Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill by Roslyn s management) as a multiple of Roslyn s:

tangible book value as of March 31, 2003; and

tangible book value as of March 31, 2003 after adjustment for the impact of a net pre-tax charge of \$178 million resulting from mark-to-market adjustments to Roslyn s balance sheet reviewed and agreed to by the managements of New York Community and Roslyn (referred to as the mark-to-market adjustments ); and

the premiums to Roslyn s core deposits and to Roslyn s core deposits adjusted for the after-tax impact of the mark-to-market adjustment (adjusted core deposits), each as of March 31, 2003, with core deposits calculated based on Roslyn s total non-time deposits of \$2.758 billion as of March 31, 2003. These premiums were calculated as the excess of the implied aggregate transaction value over Roslyn s tangible book value as of March 31, 2003, divided by Roslyn s core deposits and adjusted core deposits, respectively, as of March 31, 2003.

The results of these calculations are as follows:

Implied transaction value per share as a multiple of:	
Estimated 2003 EPS IBES median	11.0x
Estimated 2004 EPS IBES median	10.1x
Estimated 2003 EPS flat-rate scenario	11.8x
Estimated 2004 EPS flat-rate scenario	11.0x
Implied aggregate transaction value as a multiple of:	
Tangible book value	3.0x
Adjusted tangible book value	3.8x
Premium to:	
Core deposits	39.0%
Adjusted core deposits	43.2%

Historical Exchange Ratio Analysis. Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill calculated and reviewed the historical exchange ratios implied by dividing the daily closing price per share of Roslyn common stock by the daily closing price per share of New York Community common stock for each trading day in the one-year period ended June 25, 2003, as well as the average of these exchange ratios for this one-year period and for other specified periods within the one-year period.

The results of this analysis are as follows:

	Historical
Period	Exchange Ratio
One-year average	0.852
Six-month average	0.807
Three-month average	0.737
One-month average	0.710
One-week average	0.735
52-week high	1.097
52-week low	0.685
As of June 25, 2003	0.727

Selected Companies Analysis. Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill reviewed and compared selected financial and stock market information, ratios and multiples for Roslyn and New York Community to corresponding financial and stock market information, ratios and multiples for a group of ten selected publicly-traded thrift holding companies and a group of nine selected publicly-traded mid-cap regional bank holding companies set forth below:

Thrift Holding Companies
--------------------------

## Mid-Cap Regional Bank Holding Companies

Washington Mutual Inc.
Charter One Financial, Inc.
Hudson City Bancorp, Inc.
GreenPoint Financial Corp.
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.
Astoria Financial Corporation

M&T Bank Corporation North Fork Bancorporation, Inc. BankNorth Group, Inc. Mercantile Bankshares Corporation TCF Financial Corporation Commerce Bancorp, Inc.

People s Bank Webster Financial Corporation Independence Community Bank Corp. Staten Island Bancorp, Inc. Valley National Bancorp Fulton Financial Corporation

Hudson United Bancorp.

48

Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill calculated and compared selected percentages, multiples, ratios and other financial information for Roslyn, New York Community and the selected companies based on publicly available information. For companies that have recently made acquisitions, the calculations were made based on publicly available pro forma data reflecting those acquisitions. The selected percentages, multiples and ratios that were calculated and compared by Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill were as follows:

June 25, 2003 closing share price as a percentage of 52-week high share price;

June 25, 2003 closing share price as a multiple of median IBES EPS estimate for 2003;

June 25, 2003 closing share price as a multiple of median IBES EPS estimate for 2004 (referred to as the forward P/E multiple );

median IBES long-term earnings growth rate estimate;

ratio of the forward P/E multiple to the median IBES long-term earnings growth rate estimate;

ratio of total market capitalization as of June 25, 2003 to tangible book value as of March 31, 2003;

premium to core deposits reflected by total market capitalization as of June 25, 2003;

dividend yield represented by June 25, 2003 closing share price; and

ratio of tangible common equity to tangible assets.

The results of this analysis are summarized as follows:

			Selected Holding Companies		
	Roslyn	New York Community	Selected Thrift Holding Companies Median	Selected Mid-Cap Regional Bank Holding Companies Median	
June 25, 2003 closing share price as a					
percentage of the 52-week high share price	88%	96%	95%	96%	
June 25, 2003 share price as a multiple of:					
Median IBES estimated 2003 EPS	10.6x	13.5x	11.2x	13.9x	
Median IBES estimated 2004 EPS	9.8x	12.1x	10.1x	12.6x	
Roslyn 2003 flat-rate scenario EPS	11.4x	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Roslyn 2004 flat-rate scenario EPS	10.7x	N/A	N/A	N/A	
Median IBES long-term growth rate estimate	9.0%	13.5%	10.5%	10.0%	
	1.1x	0.9x	1.1x	1.4x	

Ratio of the forward P/E multiple to median

IBES long-term growth rate estimate

IBES long term growth rate estimate				
Ratio of total market capitalization as of June				
25, 2003 to tangible book value as of March 31,				
2003	2.9x*	6.0x	2.4x	3.6x
Premium to core deposits reflected by total				
market capitalization as of June 25, 2003	37.1%*	100.4%	34.3%	37.2%
Dividend yield represented by June 25, 2003				
closing share price	3.1%	3.0%	2.5%	3.2%
Ratio of tangible common equity to tangible				
assets	5.0%	5.9%	6.7%	5.4%

<sup>\*</sup> Adjusting for the impact of the mark-to-market adjustment, Roslyn s ratio of June 25, 2003 total market capitalization to March 31, 2003 tangible book value was 3.6x, and the premium to core deposits reflected by June 25, 2003 total market capitalization was 41.2%.

Selected Transactions Analysis. Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill reviewed publicly available financial information for the 36 bank and thrift merger and acquisition transactions announced since March 2002 which had an announced transaction value greater than \$100 million. Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill calculated and compared the following multiples and premiums with respect to these 36 transactions and the merger:

	High	Median	Low	Roslyn/New York Community
Total announced equity value of the transaction as a multiple of the acquired company s tangible book value	5.1x	2.7x	1.3x	3.0x
Premium of total announced equity value of the transaction to acquired company s tangible book value, over the acquired company s core deposits	41.7%	21.7%	7.9%	39.0%

Note: Financial information used in calculating the figures for the bank and thrift transactions in this table were taken from SNL Financial.

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis. Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill performed comparative discounted cash flow analyses to generate reference ranges for the implied present value per share of Roslyn common stock (1) assuming Roslyn continued to operate as a stand-alone company and (2) on a pro forma equivalent basis giving effect to the merger (0.75 shares of common stock of a combined New York Community/Roslyn). The reference ranges calculated for Roslyn both on a stand-alone basis and a pro-forma equivalent basis were calculated in the alternative using median IBES EPS estimates and the flat-rate scenario for Roslyn s EPS through 2009. These reference ranges were determined in each case by calculating a present value of the estimated future dividends of Roslyn and the combined company, respectively, through 2009, plus a present value of the estimated terminal value of Roslyn common stock and the common stock of the combined company, respectively, as of the end of calendar year 2009. Terminal value refers to the value of a particular asset at a specific future time. Present value refers to the current value of future cash flows or amounts and is obtained by discounting such future cash flows or amounts by an interest rate that takes into account risk, the opportunity cost of capital, expected returns and other appropriate factors.

Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill estimated alternative terminal value ranges for Roslyn on a stand-alone basis at the end of 2009 using:

the median IBES long-term EPS growth rate for Roslyn of 9% and a range of terminal P/E multiples of 9.0x to 12.0x; and

a terminal P/E multiple of 9.8x (the P/E multiple of Roslyn s median IBES EPS estimates for 2004 reflected by Roslyn s June 25, 2003 closing share price) and a range of long-term EPS growth rates for Roslyn of 7.0% to 11.0%.

Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill estimated alternative terminal value ranges for Roslyn on a pro-forma equivalent basis at the end of 2009 using:

the median IBES long-term EPS growth rate for New York Community of 13.5% and terminal P/E multiples of 9.8x, 12.1x and 11.4x (representing the P/E multiples of 2004 median IBES EPS estimates for Roslyn and New York Community, respectively, and the weighted average of these two P/E multiples, in each case as of June 25, 2003);

a terminal P/E multiple of 11.4x and long-term EPS growth rates of 9.0%, 13.5% and 12.2% (representing the median IBES long-term EPS growth rates of Roslyn and New York Community, respectively, and the weighted average of these two growth rates); and

a terminal P/E multiple of 9.8x and long-term EPS growth rates of 9.0%, 12.2% and 13.5%.

The estimated future dividends and terminal values resulting from each of these calculations then were discounted to present values using discount rates of 9.0%, 11% and 13%, which Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill viewed as appropriate for companies with Roslyn s and New York Community s risk characteristics.

50

This analysis resulted in the following reference ranges of indicated per share values for Roslyn common stock:

	Range
Roslyn Stand-Alone	
Median IBES EPS estimates	\$ 17.05 to \$27.68
Flat-rate scenario	\$ 14.55 to \$24.14
New York Community/Roslyn Combined	
Median IBES EPS estimates	\$ 20.82 to \$34.55
Flat-rate scenario	\$ 19.66 to \$32.79

Accretion/Dilution Analysis. Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill performed pro forma analyses of the financial impact of the merger on Roslyn's and New York Community's estimated earnings per share for 2004 and 2005 and estimated cash earnings per share for 2004 and 2005, using median IBES EPS estimates for 2004 for New York Community and both median IBES EPS estimates and the flat-rate scenario EPS estimates for 2004 for Roslyn, and applying the following assumptions:

2005 EPS estimates based on median IBES EPS long-term growth rates of 13.5% for New York Community and 9% for Roslyn;

pre-tax cost savings of \$30.8 million estimated by the managements of New York Community and Roslyn, representing 35% of Roslyn s controllable expense base, fully phased in for 2004 and growing 3% annually thereafter;

core deposit intangibles assumed at 3.0% of non-time deposits of Roslyn of \$2.758 billion at March 31, 2003, and amortized over 10 years on a straight-line basis;

impact of the mark-to-market adjustments;

\$85 million after-tax restructuring charge estimated by the management of New York Community capitalized on a pre-tax basis at \$130.8 million;

\$3.5 billion downsizing of the pro forma balance sheet, with 2.0% spread forgone, as contemplated by management of New York Community in connection with the merger; and

December 31, 2003 closing.

For the proforma analysis using median IBES estimates for both New York Community and Roslyn, Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill also assumed stock repurchases to target a 5.25% ratio of tangible common equity to tangible assets at closing. Cash earnings per share was determined by adding amortization of intangible assets to estimated earnings per share. Based on this analysis:

The merger would be dilutive to Roslyn s estimated EPS and estimated cash EPS for both 2004 and 2005 using both median IBES EPS estimates and the flat-rate scenario for Roslyn;

The merger would be accretive to New York Community s estimated EPS and estimated cash EPS for both 2004 and 2005 using Roslyn s median IBES EPS estimates; and

The merger would be accretive to New York Community s estimated EPS and estimated cash EPS in 2004 and slightly dilutive to New York Community s estimated EPS and estimated cash EPS in 2005 using Roslyn s EPS estimates from the flat-rate scenario.

Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill also estimated reference ranges for the implied per share value for Roslyn common stock using the pro forma generally accepted accounting principles and cash earnings per share estimates for 2004 and 2005 and applying both the trading multiples of New York Community s 2004 and 2005 estimated generally accepted accounting principles and cash EPS based on New York Community s June 25, 2003 closing share price and the weighted average of the trading multiples for 2004 and 2005 estimated generally accepted accounting principles and cash EPS of Roslyn and New York Community based on the June 25, 2003

51

closing share prices of Roslyn and New York Community. This analysis resulted in a reference range of \$20.49 to \$22.73 using Roslyn s median IBES EPS estimates and a reference range of \$19.61 to \$21.77 using Roslyn s EPS estimates from the flat-rate scenario.

Contribution Analysis. Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill computed the relative contributions of Roslyn and New York Community to (1) the total assets, net loans, total deposits, total borrowings and tangible equity of the pro forma combined company as of March 31, 2003, (2) the estimated 2003 and 2004 net income of the pro forma combined company using both median IBES and flat-rate scenario earnings per share estimates for 2003 and 2004 for Roslyn, and (3) the fully-diluted pro forma market capitalization of the combined company as of June 25, 2003. Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill then computed the pro forma ownership of Roslyn's and New York Community's shareholders in the combined company implied by the 0.75x exchange ratio in the merger. This analysis indicated a range of pro forma ownership of Roslyn's shareholders in the combined company of between 28% to 54%, as compared to 29% in the New York Community/Roslyn merger, as indicated in the following table:

			New Yor	k	
Contribution	Roslyn	Roslyn		Community	
Fully diluted market capitalization	\$ 1,570	28%	\$ 4,059	72%	
2003 median IBES estimated net income	137	33	279	67	
2004 median IBES estimated net income	137	31	310	69	
2003 flat-rate scenario net income	128	31	279	69	
2004 flat-rate scenario net income	125	29	310	71	
Total assets	10,882	48	12,020	52	
Net loans	3,224	36	5,691	64	
Total deposits	6,118	54	5,182	46	
Total borrowings	3,981	45	4,879	55	
Tangible equity	548	45	674	55	
% Ownership at 0.75 exchange ratio	1,624	29	4,059	71	

#### General

Goldman Sachs, as part of its investment banking business, is continually engaged in performing financial analyses with respect to businesses and their securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, negotiated underwritings, competitive biddings, secondary distributions of listed and unlisted securities and private placements as well as for estate, corporate and other purposes. In the ordinary course of its investment banking business, Sandler O Neill is regularly engaged in the valuation of financial institutions and their securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, public and private offerings of securities and other corporate transactions. The board of directors of Roslyn selected each of Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill as its financial advisers because they are nationally recognized investment banking firms that have substantial experience in transactions similar to the merger.

Goldman Sachs is familiar with Roslyn, having provided various investment banking services to Roslyn from time to time, including having acted as its financial advisor in connection with, and having participated in certain of the negotiations leading to, the merger agreement. Goldman Sachs also may provide investment banking services to New York Community in the future. Goldman Sachs provides a full range of financial advisory and securities services and, in the course of its normal trading activities, may from time to time effect transactions and hold positions in securities, including derivative securities, of Roslyn and New York Community for its own account and for the accounts of customers.

Sandler O Neill has provided certain investment banking services to Roslyn from time to time, including having acted as a financial advisor to Roslyn in connection with, and having participated in certain of the negotiations leading to, the merger agreement. Sandler O Neill also has provided certain investment banking

services to New York Community in the past and has received compensation for such services. Sandler O Neill also may provide investment banking services to New York Community in the future, including during the period prior to the closing of the merger and may receive compensation for such services. In the ordinary course of Sandler O Neill s business as a broker-dealer, Sandler O Neill may purchase securities from and sell securities to Roslyn and New York Community and their affiliates. Sandler O Neill may also actively trade the debt or equity securities of Roslyn and New York Community or their affiliates for Sandler O Neill s own account and for the accounts of Sandler O Neill s customers and, accordingly, may at any time hold a long or short position in such securities.

Roslyn has agreed to pay Goldman Sachs a transaction fee of \$1,937,500 upon execution of a definitive agreement with respect to the sale of all or a portion of Roslyn, including the merger agreement, and a transaction fee of \$7,750,000 upon completion of a transaction involving the purchase of all or a portion of the outstanding common stock or assets of Roslyn, including the merger. The fee paid to Goldman Sachs upon execution of the merger agreement will be applied against the fee due upon completion of the merger. Roslyn has agreed to pay Sandler O Neill a transaction fee of \$1,937,500 upon the signing of a definitive agreement pursuant to which Roslyn is sold to or merges with another company, including the merger agreement, and a transaction fee of \$7,750,000 upon the closing of such a sale or merger, including the merger with New York Community. The fee paid to Sandler O Neill upon the signing of the merger agreement will be applied against the fee due upon completion of the merger. Roslyn also has agreed to pay Sandler O Neill \$500,000 for the opinion rendered in connection with the merger, which amount also will be credited against the transaction fee payable to Sandler O Neill upon completion of the merger. Roslyn has also agreed to reimburse Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses, including fees of counsel, and to indemnify Goldman Sachs and Sandler O Neill and certain related persons against specified liabilities, including liabilities under the federal securities laws, relating to or arising out of their respective engagements.

## Board of Directors and Management of New York Community Following the Merger

Board of Directors of New York Community. Upon completion of the merger, the board of directors of New York Community will consist of the directors of New York Community in office immediately prior to the Effective Time of the Merger, and five additional directors designated by Roslyn (including Joseph L. Mancino) that are acceptable to New York Community. To date, New York Community and Roslyn have not identified the four additional directors who will serve as directors of New York Community upon completion of the merger. The New York Community board of directors currently has eleven members.

*Executive Officers of New York Community.* On July 2, 2003, New York Community and Roslyn announced the executive team that will lead the combined company upon completion of their proposed merger.

Joseph R. Ficalora, President and Chief Executive Officer of New York Community, will continue to serve in that capacity following the merger, and Joseph L. Mancino, Vice Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer of Roslyn, will serve together with current New York Community Chairman, Michael F. Manzulli, as Co-Chairmen of the Board of Directors.

Anthony E. Burke, currently Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of New York Community, will continue to serve as President of New York Community Bank, and John R. Bransfield, Jr., currently Vice Chairman of Roslyn and President and Chief Operating Officer of The Roslyn Savings Bank, will serve as President of The Roslyn Savings Bank Division of New York Community Bank.

Robert Wann, currently Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of New York Community, will serve as Chief Operating Officer of New York Community and New York Community Bank.

The combined company is expected to operate through four major groups: lending, retail banking, capital markets and investments, and finance. James J. O Donovan, currently Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer of New York Community, will continue to serve in that capacity. Daniel L. Murphy, currently

53

Executive Vice President and Retail Banking Officer of The Roslyn Savings Bank, will head up retail banking. Thomas R. Cangemi, currently Executive Vice President Capital Markets of New York Community, will continue to head up the capital markets and investments group. Michael P. Puorro, currently Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of Roslyn, will serve as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the combined company.

Information about the current New York Community directors and executive officers can be found in New York Community s proxy statement dated April 10, 2003. Information about the current Roslyn directors and executive officers can be found in Roslyn s proxy statement dated April 18, 2003. New York Community s and Roslyn s Annual Reports on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 are incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page [•].

For more information see THE MERGER Interests of Roslyn's Directors and Officers in the Merger that Differ From Your Interests on page [•].

### **Distribution of New York Community Certificates**

At or prior to the completion of the merger, New York Community will cause to be deposited, with the exchange agent, certificates representing shares of New York Community common stock for the benefit of the holders of certificates representing shares of Roslyn common stock and cash instead of any fractional shares that would otherwise be issued in the merger.

Promptly after the completion of the merger, New York Community will cause the exchange agent to send transmittal materials to each holder of a Roslyn stock certificate for use in exchanging Roslyn stock certificates for certificates representing shares of New York Community common stock and cash instead of fractional shares, if applicable. Holders of Roslyn stock certificates should NOT surrender their Roslyn stock certificates for exchange until they receive the letter of transmittal and instructions. The exchange agent will deliver certificates for New York Community common stock and/or a check instead of any fractional shares of New York Community common stock once it receives the properly completed transmittal materials together with certificates representing a holder s shares of Roslyn common stock.

Roslyn stock certificates may be exchanged for New York Community stock certificates with the exchange agent for up to one year after the completion of the merger. At the end of that period, any New York Community stock certificates and cash will be returned to New York Community. Any holders of Roslyn stock certificates who have not exchanged their certificates will be entitled to look only to New York Community, and only as general creditors of New York Community, for New York Community stock certificates and any cash to be received instead of fractional shares of New York Community common stock.

Until you exchange your Roslyn stock certificates for New York Community stock certificates, you will not receive any dividends or other distributions in respect of shares of New York Community stock. Once you exchange your Roslyn stock certificates for New York Community stock certificates, you will receive, without interest, any dividends or distributions with a record date after the effective time of the merger and payable with respect to your shares, as well as any dividends with respect to Roslyn common stock declared before the effective time of the merger but unpaid.

If your Roslyn stock certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed you may receive a New York Community stock certificate upon the making of an affidavit of that fact. New York Community may require you to post a bond in a reasonable amount as an indemnity against any claim that may be made against New York Community with respect to the lost, stolen or destroyed Roslyn stock certificate.

After completion of the merger, there will be no further transfers on the stock transfer books of Roslyn.

54

#### **Fractional Shares**

New York Community will not issue any fractional shares of New York Community common stock. Instead, a Roslyn stockholder who would otherwise have received a fraction of a share of New York Community common stock will receive an amount of cash equal to the fraction of a share of New York Community common stock to which such holder would otherwise be entitled multiplied by the average of the high and low per share sales price of New York Community common stock on the trading day immediately preceding the consummation of the merger as reported on the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. Composite Transactions Reporting System.

### **Public Trading Markets**

New York Community common stock is currently included for quotation on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol NYB. Roslyn common stock is currently included for quotation on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol RSLN. Upon completion of the merger, Roslyn common stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq National Market and deregistered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The newly issued New York Community common stock issuable pursuant to the merger agreement will be included for quotation on the New York Stock Exchange.

The shares of New York Community common stock to be issued in connection with the merger will be freely transferable under the Securities Act, except for shares issued to any stockholder who may be deemed to be an affiliate of Roslyn, as discussed in THE MERGER AGREEMENT Resales of New York Community Stock by Affiliates on page [•].

As reported on the New York Stock Exchange, the closing sale price per share of New York Community common stock on June 26, 2003 was \$27.10. The closing sale price per share of Roslyn common stock on June 26, 2003 was \$20.85, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market. Based on these closing sale prices per share, the implied per share value of Roslyn common stock was \$20.33 as of that date. The closing sale price per share of New York Community common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on [•], 2003, the last practicable trading day before the date of this document, was \$[•]. The closing sale price per share of Roslyn common stock on the Nasdaq National Market on [•], the last practicable trading day before the date of this document, was \$[•]. The implied per share value of Roslyn common stock was \$[•] as of that date. The implied value of one share of Roslyn common stock as of these dates was calculated by multiplying New York Community s closing sale price per share by 0.75, the exchange ratio. Because the stock price of both companies will fluctuate, you should obtain current quotations of these prices.

New York Community may from time to time repurchase shares of New York Community common stock and purchase shares of Roslyn common stock and Roslyn may from time to time repurchase shares of Roslyn common stock and purchase shares of New York Community common stock. During the course of the solicitation being made by this joint proxy statement/prospectus, New York Community or Roslyn may be bidding for and purchasing shares of Roslyn common stock.

### **New York Community Dividends**

New York Community currently pays a quarterly dividend of \$0.23 per share, which is expected to continue, although the New York Community board of directors may change this dividend policy at any time. During the first half of 2003, Roslyn paid cash dividends totaling \$0.305 per share, and New York Community paid cash dividends totaling \$0.40 per share (adjusted for a 4-for-3 stock split completed on May

21, 2003).

New York Community stockholders will be entitled to receive dividends when and if declared by the New York Community board of directors out of funds legally available for dividends. The New York Community board of directors will periodically consider the payment of dividends, taking into account New York Community s financial condition and level of net income, New York Community s future prospects, economic conditions, industry practices and other factors, including applicable banking laws and regulations. However,

55

until the merger is completed, New York Community is restricted by the merger agreement from declaring dividends of more than \$.30 per share per quarter.

### **Absence of Appraisal Rights**

Appraisal rights are statutory rights that enable stockholders who object to extraordinary transactions, such as mergers, to demand that the corporation pay the fair value for their shares as determined by a court in a judicial proceeding instead of receiving the consideration offered to stockholders in connection with the extraordinary transaction. Appraisal rights are not available in all circumstances, and exceptions to such rights are set forth in the laws of Delaware, which is the state of incorporation of both New York Community and Roslyn. These exceptions are applicable with respect to the rights of New York Community stockholders and Roslyn stockholders in the merger.

Neither Roslyn nor New York Community stockholders are entitled to appraisal rights under Delaware law in connection with the merger because the shares of Roslyn common stock are designated as a national market system security on an interdealer quotation system by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. and the shares of New York Community common stock are listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

#### Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger

We have agreed to make or cause to be made all filings required in order to obtain all regulatory approvals required to consummate the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, which includes approvals from the Federal Reserve Board, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the New York State Banking Department.

Federal Reserve Board. Consummation of the merger will require New York Community to receive the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended. We filed an application in connection therewith in July 2003.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. As the primary federal regulator of New York Community Bank and The Roslyn Savings Bank, the FDIC is required under the Bank Merger Act to approve the merger of The Roslyn Savings Bank into New York Community Bank. We filed this application with the FDIC in July 2003.

The New York State Banking Department. Consummation of each of the merger of New York Community and Roslyn and the merger of New York Community Bank and The Roslyn Savings Bank will require the prior approval of the New York State Banking Department. We filed the necessary applications with the New York State Banking Department in July 2003. In addition, the merger may be reviewed by the attorneys general in the states where New York Community and Roslyn banking subsidiaries operate. Such authorities may be empowered under the applicable state laws and regulations to investigate and/or disapprove the merger under the circumstances and based upon the review set forth in applicable state laws and regulations.

The merger cannot proceed in the absence of the above approvals. We cannot assure you that these regulatory approvals will be obtained, and, if obtained, we cannot assure you as to the date of any such approvals or the absence of any litigation challenging such approvals. Likewise, we cannot assure you that the United States Department of Justice or any state attorney general will not attempt to challenge the merger on antitrust grounds, and, if such a challenge is made, we cannot assure you as to its result.

Pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act and the Bank Merger Act, a transaction approved by the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC may not be consummated until 30 days after such approval is received, during which time the United States Department of Justice may challenge the merger on antitrust grounds. The commencement of an antitrust action would stay the effectiveness of such an approval unless a court specifically

56

ordered otherwise. With the approval of the Federal Reserve Board or the FDIC, as the case may be, and the concurrence of the Department of Justice, the waiting period may be reduced to no less than 15 days.

New York Community and Roslyn believe that the merger does not raise substantial antitrust or other significant regulatory concerns and that they will be able to obtain all requisite regulatory approvals on a timely basis without the imposition of any condition that would have a material adverse effect on New York Community or Roslyn.

We are not aware of any material governmental approvals or actions that are required for completion of the merger other than those described above. It is presently contemplated that if any such additional governmental approvals or actions are required, such approvals or actions will be sought. There can be no assurance, however, that any such additional approvals or actions will be obtained.

### Interests of Roslyn s Directors and Officers in the Merger that Differ From Your Interests

Certain members of Roslyn s management and board of directors may be deemed to have interests in the merger that are in addition to or different from their interests as stockholders of Roslyn. The Roslyn board was aware of these interests and considered them, among other matters, in approving the merger agreement.

New Employment Arrangements. Joseph L. Mancino, Vice Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Roslyn and Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of The Roslyn Savings Bank; John R. Bransfield, Jr., Vice Chairman of Roslyn and President and Chief Operating Officer of The Roslyn Savings Bank; John L. Klag, Executive Vice President and Investment Officer of The Roslyn Savings Bank; Nancy C. MacKenzie, Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer of The Roslyn Savings Bank; Mary Ellen McKinley, Executive Vice President and Human Resources Officer of The Roslyn Savings Bank; Daniel L. Murphy, Executive Vice President and Retail Banking Officer of The Roslyn Savings Bank; Michael P. Puorro, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Roslyn and Treasurer, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of The Roslyn Savings Bank; R. Patrick Quinn, Corporate Secretary of Roslyn and Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of The Roslyn Savings Bank, have entered into employment agreements with New York Community, Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank relating to their employment after the completion of the merger. These employment agreements supersede their current employment arrangements with Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank. In consideration of the termination of their current employment arrangements and the obligations of Roslyn to make payments thereunder, Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank have agreed not to terminate the executives employment without just cause prior to the effective time of the merger and to make certain payments described below.

Under their new employment agreements, Mr. Mancino will serve as Co-Chairman of the board of directors of New York Community, Co-Chairman of the Board of Directors of New York Community Bank and Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Roslyn Savings Division of New York Community Bank, Mr. Bransfield will serve as Executive Vice President of New York Community, Executive Vice President of New York Community Bank and President of Roslyn Savings Division for New York Community Bank, Mr. Klag will serve as Executive Vice President and Investment Officer of New York Community Bank, Ms. MacKenzie will serve as Executive Vice President of New York Community Bank, Mr. Murphy will serve as Executive Vice President and Retail Banking Officer of New York Community Bank, Mr. Puorro will serve as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of New York Community and Executive Vice President of New York Community Bank, and Mr. Quinn will serve as Executive Vice President and Corporate Secretary of New York Community Bank.

The employment agreements each have a term of three years from completion of the merger. The employment agreements provide that the executive s base salary will be not less than the executive s base salary with Roslyn or The Roslyn Savings Bank, as applicable, immediately prior to the merger and will be reviewed annually and may be increased. In addition to the base salary, the employment agreements provide for, among

### **Table of Contents**

other things, participation in benefits plans and other fringe benefits applicable to executive personnel of New York Community or New York Community Bank generally.

Under the employment agreements, New York Community may terminate the executive for just cause, as defined in the employment agreements, at any time. If New York Community chooses to terminate the executive s employment for reasons other than cause, or if the executive resigns as a result of a constructive termination as contemplated under the employment agreements (which is defined to include the executive s voluntary resignation with at least forty-five days prior written notice at any time during the sixty day period beginning on the eleventh month anniversary of the merger), New York Community would be required to pay to the executive an amount equal to three times the sum of the executive s base salary and annual bonus from New York Community for the last full calendar year prior to the date of termination plus the value of the benefits that would have been received by the executive for the three years following the date of termination had he or she been employed for that three-year period, and to continue the executive s welfare benefits for three years following the executive s date of termination.

The employment agreements also provide for severance payments to the executive if he or she resigns as a result of constructive termination as contemplated under the employment agreements or if the executive s employment is terminated (other than for just cause), in either case following a change in control of New York Community. Any such severance payments will be reduced by the amount of any payments and benefits provided to the executive as described in the immediately preceding paragraph as a result of a constructive termination or termination without just cause as described above. These payments will equal three times the average of the five preceding taxable years annual compensation (including base salary, annual bonus, income realized as a result of the vesting of any restricted stock granted to the executive by New York Community or Roslyn, the fair market value of allocations made on behalf of the executive to any tax-qualified defined contribution retirement plan sponsored by New York Community, New York Community Bank, Roslyn or The Roslyn Savings Bank (which will not include the value of any allocation under the Roslyn Savings Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan solely as a result of the merger) and the fair market value of credits made on behalf of the executive under any non-tax-qualified supplemental retirement plan sponsored by New York Community, New York Community Bank, Roslyn or The Roslyn Savings Bank (which will not include the value of any allocation under any supplemental plan related to the Roslyn Savings Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan solely made as a result of the merger)). New York Community would also continue the executive s life, health, and disability coverage for thirty-six months, and would continue specified fringe benefits for the remainder of the term. In addition, any stock options, restricted stock awards and other equity-based awards previously awarded to the executive by Roslyn or New York Community and outstanding on the date of his or her termination of employment will immediately vest and become exercisable. The executive would also be entitled to receive an additional tax indemnification payment if payments under the employment agreement or otherwise triggered liability under Internal Revenue Code Section 4999 for the excise tax applicable to excess parachute payments.

New York Community will pay all reasonable costs and legal fees paid or incurred by the executive under any dispute or question of interpretation relating to the executive s termination of employment if the executive is successful on the merits in a legal judgment, arbitration or settlement. The employment agreements also provide that New York Community will indemnify the executive to the fullest extent legally allowable for all expenses and liabilities he or she may incur in connection with any suit or proceeding in which he or she may be involved by reason of his or her having been a director or officer of New York Community or any of its affiliates.

In consideration of having accepted employment with New York Community, Mr. Mancino, Mr. Bransfield, Mr. Puorro, Mr. Klag, Ms. MacKenzie, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Quinn and Ms. McKinley will receive retention bonuses of \$2,000,000, \$1,000,000, \$600,000, \$600,000, \$650,000, \$650,000, \$600,000 and \$500,000 respectively, upon completion of the merger. However, if the executive voluntarily terminates employment during the twelve month period following completion of the merger (other than as a result of a constructive termination) or is terminated for cause within that period, he or she must return a proportionate share of the bonus. In consideration of the termination of their current employment agreements, Roslyn will make a lump

### **Table of Contents**

sum payment, upon completion of the merger, to each of Mr. Mancino, Mr. Bransfield, Mr. Puorro, Mr. Klag, Ms. MacKenzie, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Quinn and Ms. McKinley in approximately the following amounts: \$7,470,000, \$3,850,000, \$2,430,000, \$2,340,000, \$2,050,000, \$2,080,000, \$1,570,000 and \$1,140,000, respectively.

Noncompetition Agreements. Mr. Mancino, Mr. Bransfield, Mr. Puorro, Mr. Klag, Ms. MacKenzie, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Quinn and Ms. McKinley have also entered into noncompetition agreements with New York Community, Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank. In consideration for having entered into the noncompetition agreements, Mr. Mancino, Mr. Bransfield, Mr. Puorro, Mr. Klag, Ms. MacKenzie, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Quinn and Ms. McKinley will receive payments of approximately \$8.3 million, \$4.8 million, \$2.4 million, \$2 million, \$800,000, \$1.9 million, \$700,000 and \$1.2 million, respectively. These payments will be made upon completion of the merger provided that the executive is still employed by Roslyn or The Roslyn Savings Bank, as applicable, at that time.

Pursuant to the noncompetition agreements, each executive has agreed to keep confidential all business-related information about New York Community and its subsidiaries, Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank and to return all confidential information upon termination of employment. Each executive has further agreed that while employed by New York Community or New York Community Bank and for the 12-month period following termination of employment, but not less than 36 months (and in the case of Messrs. Mancino and Bransfield, for not less than 60 months) following the completion of the merger, he or she will not (1) own, manage, operate, join, control or otherwise carry on or be engaged in any business competitive with that of New York Community, New York Community Bank or their affiliates, (2) solicit or induce any employee of New York Community, New York Community Bank or their affiliates in order to enter into any employment relationship with him or a competitor of New York Community, New York Community Bank or their affiliates, or (3) solicit any customer of New York Community, New York Community Bank or their affiliates with or to interfere with or damage any relationship between New York Community, New Yo

Effect of the Merger on The Roslyn Savings Bank s Employee Stock Ownership Plan. The Roslyn Savings Bank s Employee Stock Ownership Plan provides that, in the event of a change of control (as defined in the ESOP), shares of Roslyn stock held by the ESOP but not yet allocated to participants accounts will be so allocated, following the sale of a sufficient number of such shares to repay any outstanding loan incurred in connection with the purchase of such shares. In addition, all participants will be fully vested in their accounts upon a change in control. The merger will constitute a change of control for purposes of the ESOP. Mr. Mancino, Mr. Bransfield, Mr. Puorro, Mr. Klag, Ms. MacKenzie, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Quinn and Ms. McKinley participate in the ESOP.

Equity-Based Awards. Pursuant to the terms of Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank s equity-based compensation plans, including plans assumed by Roslyn or The Roslyn Savings Bank in connection with previous acquisitions, all unvested options to purchase Roslyn common stock held by Roslyn s executive officers and directors will become vested and exercisable upon completion of the merger. In addition, upon completion of the merger, restrictions will lapse with respect to shares of restricted stock issued under Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank s equity-based compensation plans. Notwithstanding the terms of these plans, Mr. Mancino, Mr. Bransfield, Mr. Puorro, Mr. Klag, Ms. MacKenzie, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Quinn and Ms. McKinley have waived the accelerated vesting of their stock options and restricted stock as a result of the merger. As of [•], the aggregate number of unvested options and shares of unvested restricted stock held by executive officers and directors of Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank was [•].

The merger agreement provides that, upon completion of the merger, each outstanding and unexercised option to acquire shares of Roslyn common stock will cease to represent the right to acquire shares of Roslyn

### **Table of Contents**

common stock and will become a right to acquire New York Community common stock. The number of shares and the exercise price subject to the converted options will be adjusted for the exchange ratio in the merger. The duration and other terms of the new New York Community options will otherwise be the same as the prior Roslyn options.

Roslyn Director Representation. Pursuant to the merger agreement, Mr. Mancino and four other members of the current Roslyn board of directors selected by Roslyn and acceptable to New York Community will join the New York Community board of directors. In addition, each of the current Roslyn board members will be elected or appointed to New York Community Bank s divisional board for the future Roslyn Savings Bank division of New York Community Bank. The divisional board will advise New York Community Bank with respect to deposit and lending activities in The Roslyn Savings Bank s former market area and to maintain and develop customer relationships. Each member of the divisional board (other than members of the New York Community or New York Community Bank boards) will receive an annual retainer equivalent to the amount of directors fees those members received as member of the Roslyn board in 2002. The Divisional Board will exist for three years beginning on the effective date of the merger of The Roslyn Savings Bank and New York Community Bank.

Protection of Roslyn Directors and Officers Against Claims. New York Community has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless each present and former director and officer of Roslyn from liability and expenses for matters arising at or prior to the consummation of the merger to the same extent that they would have been indemnified as a director or officer of Roslyn. New York Community has also agreed that it will maintain Roslyn's current policy of directors and officers liability insurance coverage for the benefit of Roslyn's directors and officers for six years following consummation of the merger, subject to certain limitations on the annual premium.

## **Acquisitions Generally**

New York Community routinely evaluates opportunities to expand through merger or acquisition, and frequently conducts due diligence activities in connection with such opportunities. As a result, merger or acquisition discussions and, in some cases, negotiations may take place in the future, and mergers and acquisitions involving cash, debt or equity securities may occur. The impact of a merger or an acquisition would likely be reflected in New York Community s financial condition and results of operations.

60

#### THE MERGER AGREEMENT

The following describes certain aspects of the proposed merger, including material provisions of the merger agreement. The following description of the merger agreement is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by reference to, the merger agreement, which is attached as Appendix A to this document and is incorporated by reference into this document. We urge you to read the merger agreement carefully and in its entirety.

## Terms of the Merger

The merger agreement provides for the merger of Roslyn with and into New York Community. New York Community will be the surviving corporation after the merger. Each share of Roslyn common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the completion of the merger, except for certain shares of Roslyn common stock, will be converted into 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock.

New York Community will not issue any fractional shares of New York Community in the merger. Instead, a Roslyn stockholder who otherwise would have received a fraction of a share of New York Community common stock will receive an amount in cash rounded to the nearest cent. This cash amount shall be determined by multiplying the fraction of a share of New York Community common stock to which such holder would otherwise be entitled by the average of the high and low per share sales price of New York Community common stock on the trading day immediately preceding the consummation of the merger as reported by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. Composite Transaction Reporting System.

### **Treatment of Roslyn Stock Options**

At the effective time of the merger, each outstanding Roslyn stock option granted under the Roslyn stock option plans will be converted into options to purchase New York Community common stock.

The number of shares of New York Community common stock underlying the new New York Community stock option will equal the number of shares of Roslyn common stock to which the corresponding Roslyn option was subject immediately prior to the effective time, multiplied by the 0.75 exchange ratio, rounded to the nearest whole share. The per share exercise price of each new New York Community option will equal the exercise price of the corresponding Roslyn option immediately prior to the effective time divided by the 0.75 exchange ratio, rounded to the nearest cent. All other terms of the Roslyn stock options will remain unchanged after the conversion.

New York Community has agreed to assume Roslyn s obligations with respect to the Roslyn stock options that are converted into New York Community options as described above and the plans under which they have been issued. New York Community has agreed to reserve additional shares of New York Community stock to satisfy its obligations under the converted options and file a registration statement with the SEC on an appropriate form to the extent necessary to register New York Community common stock subject to the converted options.

# Closing and Effective Time of the Merger

TI	ne merger will	he	consummated	only	if al	1 of	the	follox	ving	occur:

the merger agreement is adopted by New York Community stockholders,

the merger agreement is adopted by Roslyn stockholders,

we obtain all required consents and approvals, and

all other conditions to the merger discussed in this document and the merger agreement are either satisfied or waived.

61

The merger will become effective when a certificate of merger is filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, or at a later time as may be agreed upon by us and indicated in the certificate of merger in accordance with applicable law. In the merger agreement, we have agreed to cause the completion of the merger to occur on the fifth business day following the satisfaction or waiver of the last of the conditions specified in the merger agreement, or on another mutually agreed date. It is currently anticipated that the effective time will occur during the fourth quarter of 2003, but we cannot guarantee when or if the merger will be consummated.

### Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Agreements

The merger agreement contains reciprocal representations and warranties of Roslyn and New York Community relating to their respective businesses that are customary in merger transactions. With the exception of certain representations that must be true and correct in all material respects, no representation will be deemed untrue or incorrect as a consequence of the existence or absence of any fact or event unless that fact or event has had or is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the company making the representation. The representations in the merger agreement do not survive the effective time of the merger.

New York Community and Roslyn have each undertaken customary covenants that place restrictions on it and its subsidiaries until the effective time of the merger. In general, New York Community and its subsidiaries and Roslyn and its subsidiaries are required to use their reasonable best efforts to preserve intact their business organizations and assets and to maintain their rights, franchises and relationships with others having business dealings with them. In addition, Roslyn and its subsidiaries are required to conduct their business in the ordinary and usual course. New York Community and Roslyn have also agreed to various specific restrictions relating to the conduct of their respective businesses, including, with respect to Roslyn, restrictions with respect to selling stock of it or its subsidiaries, disposing or encumbering property or assets, authorizing capital expenditures, incurring debt, changing compensation, benefits or stock option plans of its employees and hiring new employees and settling material claims and litigation. The merger agreement also contains mutual covenants relating to the preparation of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and the holding of special meetings of New York Community and Roslyn stockholders, access to information of the other party and public announcements with respect to the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

### **Declaration and Payment of Dividends**

We have agreed that, until the merger is completed, we will each only pay regular quarterly dividends or distributions, provided that New York Community s dividends do not exceed \$0.30 per share per quarter and Roslyn s dividends do not exceed \$0.155 per share per quarter. Roslyn has also agreed to cause its dividend payment schedule to be the same as New York Community Bank s dividend payment schedule. The intent of this action is to coordinate our declaration of dividends so that holders of Roslyn common stock or New York Community common stock will not receive two dividends, or fail to receive one dividend, for any quarter with respect to their Roslyn common stock and/or New York Community common stock and any New York Community common stock any such holder receives in the merger.

### **Agreement Not to Solicit Other Offers**

Each of New York Community and Roslyn has also agreed that it and its subsidiaries and their respective officers and directors will not, and will direct and use its reasonable best efforts to cause its employees and agents not to:

initiate, solicit or encourage, directly or indirectly, any inquiries or the making or implementation of any Acquisition Proposal (as defined below);

except to the extent that its board of directors determines, in good faith, after consultation with its outside financial and legal advisors, that the failure to do so would breach its fiduciary obligations under applicable law, engage in any negotiations concerning, or provide any confidential information or data to, or have any discussions with, any person relating to an Acquisition Proposal; or

62

### **Table of Contents**

otherwise facilitate any effort or attempt to implement or make an Acquisition Proposal, including amending its Stockholder Rights Protection Agreement.

Each of New York Community and Roslyn has agreed to notify the other party immediately of any such Acquisition Proposal, including describing the material terms and conditions of the Acquisition Proposal and providing updates of any developments with respect to an Acquisition Proposal.

For purposes of the merger agreement, an Acquisition Proposal means any proposal or offer with respect to the following involving New York Community or Roslyn or any of their material subsidiaries:

any merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination or other similar transaction, except that in New York Community s case, any such transaction must involve the conversion of New York Community s outstanding shares of common stock into shares, securities or other property of an unaffiliated third party and immediately after giving effect to such transaction, New York Community s stockholders own less than 50% of the voting stock of the resulting entity s (or its ultimate parent s, if appropriate) voting shares:

any sale, lease, exchange, pledge, transfer or other disposition of 35% or more of its consolidated assets or liabilities in a single transaction or series of transactions;

any tender offer or exchange offer for 10% or more of the outstanding shares of its capital stock; or

any public announcement of a proposal, plan or intention to do any of the foregoing or any agreement to engage in any of the foregoing.

## **Expenses and Fees**

In general, each party will be responsible for all expenses incurred by it in connection with the negotiation and consummation of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. However, New York Community and Roslyn will each pay one-half of the following expenses: (i) the costs (excluding the fees and disbursements of counsel and accountants) incurred in connection with the preparation (including copying and printing) of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and applications to governmental entities for the approval of the merger and (ii) all listing, filing or registration fees, including fees paid for filing the joint proxy statement/prospectus with the SEC and fees paid for filings with governmental entities.

### **Conditions to Consummation of the Merger**

Our respective obligations to consummate the merger are subject to the fulfillment or waiver of certain conditions, including:

the adoption of the merger agreement by the holders of the requisite number of shares of New York Community common stock and Roslyn common stock;

the receipt and effectiveness of all governmental and other approvals, registrations and consents, and the expiration of all related waiting periods required to consummate the merger and to issue New York Community common stock;

the absence of any law, statute, regulation, judgment, decree, injunction or other order in effect by any court or other governmental entity that prohibits consummation of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement;

the registration statement with respect to the New York Community common stock to be issued pursuant to the merger shall have become effective under the Securities Act and no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the registration statement will have been issued and no proceedings for that purpose will have been initiated or threatened by the SEC or any other governmental entity;

63

### **Table of Contents**

all permits and other authorizations under state and federal securities laws and other authorizations necessary to consummate the merger and to issue the shares of New York Community common stock in the merger will have been received and be in full force and effect:

the truth and correctness of the representations and warranties of each of us in the merger agreement, subject to certain specified exceptions, and the performance by each of us in all material respects of our obligations under the merger agreement and the receipt by each of us of certificates from the other to that effect; and

the receipt by each of New York Community and Roslyn of a legal opinion with respect to certain federal income tax consequences of the merger.

We cannot provide assurance as to when or if all of the conditions to the merger can or will be satisfied or waived by the appropriate party. As of the date of this document, we have no reason to believe that any of these conditions will not be satisfied.

#### **Possible Alternative Merger Structure**

The merger agreement provides that New York Community and Roslyn may mutually agree to change the structure of the merger. However, no change may be made that:

alters or changes the number of shares of New York Community common stock into which shares of Roslyn common stock will be converted.

adversely affects the tax treatment of New York Community or Roslyn or their respective shareholders pursuant to the merger agreement, or

materially impedes or delays consummation of the merger.

### Amendment, Waiver and Termination of the Merger Agreement

The merger agreement may be amended or modified, in accordance with applicable law, by our written agreement. The provisions of the merger agreement may be waived by the party benefited by those provisions.

The merger agreement may be terminated, and the merger abandoned, by us at any time before the merger is scheduled to be completed if both of our boards of directors vote to do so. In addition, the merger agreement may be terminated, and the merger abandoned, by action of a majority of either of our entire boards of directors if

the merger is not consummated by April 27, 2004, unless the failure to consummate the merger is due to the failure to comply by the terminating party with any provision contained in the merger agreement,

any governmental approval, consent or authorization required for the consummation of the merger is denied, or any court or governmental authority having jurisdiction over either of us shall have issued a final, non-appealable order enjoining or otherwise prohibiting consummation of the transactions contemplated in the merger agreement,

the stockholders of either New York Community or Roslyn fail to adopt the merger agreement at the special stockholders meetings called for the purpose of considering and voting upon the merger agreement, provided that the terminating party has used its reasonable best efforts to obtain the approval of the merger agreement, or

the non-terminating party materially breaches any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement contained in the merger agreement that causes the failure of certain conditions to closing and such breach cannot be or has not been cured within 30 days after written notice of such breach is given.

64

Effect of Termination. If the merger agreement is terminated, it will become void and there will be no liability on the part of New York Community or Roslyn, except that:

termination will not relieve a breaching party from liability for any willful breach giving rise to such termination,

New York Community and Roslyn will keep confidential and will not use any information obtained from the other party for any purpose unrelated to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. New York Community and Roslyn will also promptly return or destroy all copies of documents containing information and data regarding the other party, and

New York Community and Roslyn will each bear its own expenses in connection with the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, except as otherwise provided in the merger agreement.

## Resales of New York Community Stock by Affiliates

Affiliates of Roslyn, as defined under Rule 145 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, generally may not sell their shares of New York Community common stock acquired in the merger except pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, including Rules 144 and 145 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act. Affiliates include directors, executive officers, and beneficial owners of 10% or more of any class of capital stock.

Under the merger agreement, Roslyn agreed to provide, and has provided, New York Community with a list of the persons who, to Roslyn s knowledge, may be deemed to be affiliates of Roslyn. Roslyn has also delivered a letter of agreement from each of these persons by which that person agrees, among other things, not to offer to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any of the shares of New York Community common stock distributed to him or her pursuant to the merger except in compliance with Rule 144 and Rule 145 under the Securities Act, in a transaction that is otherwise exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, or in an offering registered under the Securities Act. New York Community may place restrictive legends on its common stock certificates that are issued to persons who are deemed to be affiliates of Roslyn under the Securities Act.

This document does not cover any resales of New York Community common stock received in the merger by any person who may be deemed an affiliate of Roslyn.

### **New York Community Employee Benefit Plans**

The merger agreement provides that as soon as practicable after the completion of the merger, New York Community and New York Community Bank will implement a program of compensation and benefits designed to cover all similarly situated employees of New York Community, including employees of Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank, on a uniform basis. At New York Community s discretion, this program may contain any combination of new plans, continuation of plans maintained by New York Community or New York Community Bank and continuation of plans maintained by Roslyn or The Roslyn Savings Bank immediately prior to the merger.

The new plans instituted by New York Community shall recognize, for purposes of eligibility, participation, vesting and benefit accrual (but not for benefit accrual under any defined pension plan) except for purposes of any post-retirement, health and life insurance benefits, all service with New York Community, New York Community Bank, Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank as service with New York Community or New York Community will also assume all obligations of Roslyn and The Roslyn Savings Bank in accordance with the terms of Roslyn s or The Roslyn Savings Bank s plans, contracts, arrangements or understandings as identified by Roslyn in accordance with the merger agreement.

65

#### THE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENTS

The following description, which sets forth the material provisions of the New York Community stock option agreement and the Roslyn stock option agreement, is subject to the full text of, and qualified in its entirety by reference to, the stock option agreements, which are attached as Appendices B and C to this document and are incorporated by reference into this document. We urge you to read the stock option agreements carefully and in their entirety.

## The Stock Options

At the same time we entered into the merger agreement, we also entered into reciprocal stock option agreements. Under the terms of the stock option granted by New York Community to Roslyn, Roslyn may purchase up to 27,000,000 shares of New York Community common stock at an exercise price of \$27.10 per share. Under the terms of the stock option granted by Roslyn to New York Community, New York Community may purchase up to 15,000,000 shares of Roslyn common stock at an exercise price of \$20.85 per share. However, the number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options cannot exceed 19.9% of the New York Community or Roslyn common stock outstanding without giving effect to any shares issued pursuant to the option. These exercise prices represent our closing stock prices on June 26, 2003, the day prior to the execution of the merger agreement and the stock option agreements. The terms of these stock option agreements are similar in most respects and are summarized below.

#### **Purpose of the Stock Option Agreements**

The stock option agreements may have the effect of making an acquisition or other business combination of either New York Community or Roslyn by a third party more costly because of the need in any transaction to acquire any shares issued pursuant to the stock option agreements or because of any cash payments made pursuant to the stock option agreements. The stock option agreements may, therefore, discourage certain third parties from proposing an alternative transaction to the current merger proposed by us, including one that might be more favorable from a financial point of view to the stockholders of New York Community or Roslyn, as the case may be, than the merger.

To our best knowledge, no event giving rise to the right to exercise the stock option has occurred as of the date of this document.

### **Exercise**; Expiration

Each of New York Community and Roslyn can exercise its option if both an initial triggering event and a subsequent triggering event occur prior to the occurrence of an exercise termination event, as these terms are described below. The purchase of any shares of New York Community or Roslyn stock pursuant to the options is subject to compliance with applicable law, which may require regulatory approval.

The stock option agreements describe a number of different events as initial triggering events. Generally, an initial triggering event will occur if New York Community or Roslyn enter into, propose to enter into, or are the subject of an acquisition transaction or a proposed acquisition transaction other than the merger agreement.

As used in each stock option agreement, initial triggering events, generally mean the following:

New York Community or Roslyn respectively, or any of its subsidiaries, without the other party s prior written consent, enters into an agreement to engage in an acquisition transaction (as defined below) with a third party or its board of directors recommends that its stockholders approve or accept any acquisition transaction other than the New York Community/Roslyn merger transaction;

66

Any third party acquiring beneficial ownership or the right to acquire beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock or 10% or more of the outstanding shares of Roslyn common stock, respectively;

The stockholders of New York Community or Roslyn, respectively, shall have voted and failed to approve the merger agreement and the merger at the special stockholder meeting, or such meeting was not held in violation of the merger agreement or was canceled prior to termination of the merger agreement if, prior to such meeting or termination, it shall have been publicly announced that any person made, or disclosed an intention to make, a proposal to engage in an acquisition transaction;

The board of directors of New York Community or Roslyn, respectively, shall have withdrawn or modified or qualified (or publicly announced its intention to withdraw or modify or qualify) or failed to make in any manner adverse in any respect to Roslyn or New York Community, respectively, its recommendation that its stockholders approve the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement after its shall have been publicly announced that any third person made, or disclosed an intention to make, or otherwise made a bona fide proposal to engage in an acquisition transaction, or New York Community or Roslyn, respectively, or its subsidiary has authorized, recommended or proposed (or publicly announced its intention to authorize, recommend or propose) an agreement to engage in an acquisition transaction with any third person;

Any third person, without the written consent of New York Community or Roslyn, respectively, files with the SEC a registration statement or tender offer materials with respect to a potential exchange or tender offer that would constitute an acquisition transaction (or files a preliminary proxy statement with the SEC with respect to a potential vote by its stockholders to approve the issuance of shares to be offered in such an exchange offer); or

Any third person, without the written consent of New York Community or Roslyn, respectively, files an application or notice with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or other federal or state bank regulatory or antitrust authority for approval to engage in an acquisition transaction.

As used in each stock option agreement, the term acquisition transaction means:

a merger or consolidation or any similar transaction involving New York Community or Roslyn or any of their respective significant subsidiaries, other than certain mergers (i) involving only New York Community or Roslyn and its respective wholly-owned subsidiaries or (ii) after which the common stockholders of New York Community immediately prior thereto in the aggregate own or continue to own at least 50% of the common stock of New York Community or the surviving entity or parent, provided the transaction is not entered into in violation of the merger agreement;

a purchase, lease or other acquisition of all or any substantial part of the assets or deposits of New York Community or Roslyn or any of their respective significant subsidiaries; or

a purchase or other acquisition of securities representing 50% or more of the voting power of New York Community or its significant subsidiaries or 25% or more of the voting power of Roslyn or its significant subsidiaries.

Each stock option agreement generally defines the term subsequent triggering event to mean any of the following events or transactions:

the acquisition by a third party of beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the outstanding common stock of New York Community or 25% or more of the outstanding common stock of Roslyn; or

New York Community or Roslyn enters into, proposes to enter into, or is the subject of an acquisition transaction or proposed acquisition transaction other than the merger agreement.

67

Each stock option agreement defines the term exercise termination event to mean any of the following:

completion of the merger;

termination of the merger agreement in accordance with its terms before an initial triggering event, except a termination of the merger agreement by New York Community or Roslyn based on a willful breach by the other party of a representation, warranty, covenant or other agreement contained in the merger agreement; or

the passage of nine months, subject to the extension described below, after termination of the merger agreement, if the termination follows the occurrence of an initial triggering event or is a termination of the merger agreement by New York Community or Roslyn based on a willful breach by the other party of a representation, warranty, covenant or other agreement contained in the merger agreement.

If either option becomes exercisable, it may be exercised in whole or in part within six months following the subsequent triggering event. New York Community and Roslyn's right to exercise the option and certain other rights under the stock option agreements are subject to an extension in order to obtain required regulatory approvals and comply with applicable regulatory waiting periods and to avoid liability under the short-swing trading restrictions contained in Section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act and during any period that it is enjoined or legally restricted from exercising the option plus any additional period reasonably necessary to exercise the option after obtaining such approval or the expiration of such periods. Nevertheless, neither New York Community nor Roslyn may exercise its option if it is in breach of any of its covenants or agreements so that the other party would be entitled to terminate the merger agreement. Finally, an option agreement will terminate upon the proper termination of the merger agreement by New York Community or Roslyn, as issuer of the option, as a result of the other party s material breach of its covenants or agreements under the merger agreement.

### **Rights Under the Stock Option Agreements**

At any time after a repurchase event, as this term is described below, and prior to the date that is 12 months immediately thereafter, and prior to an exercise termination event subject to extension as described above, upon the request of New York Community or Roslyn the other party may be required to repurchase the option and all or any part of the shares issued under the option. The repurchase of the option will be at a price per share equal to the amount by which the market/offer price, as that term is defined in the stock option agreement, exceeds the option price. The repurchase of the option shares will be at the market/offer price, as that term is defined in the stock option agreement. The term repurchase event is defined to mean:

the acquisition by any third party of beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the then-outstanding shares of New York Community or Roslyn common stock; or

the consummation of an acquisition transaction, provided that for purposes of the definition of repurchase event, in the case of Roslyn, the percentage referred to in the third definition of acquisition transaction above is 50% rather than 25%.

Each stock option agreement also provides that New York Community and Roslyn may, at any time after a repurchase event and prior to the occurrence of an exercise termination event, subject to extension as described above, surrender the option and any shares issued under the option held by New York Community or Roslyn to Roslyn or New York Community, respectively, for a cash fee equal to \$39 million, adjusted for our purchase price of option shares surrendered and gains on sales of stock purchased under the option, provided that neither New York Community nor Roslyn may exercise its surrender right if the other party repurchases the option, or a portion of the option.

If, prior to an exercise termination event, either New York Community or Roslyn enters into certain mergers, consolidations or other transactions, certain fundamental changes in its capital stock occur, or it sells all

68

### **Table of Contents**

or substantially all of its assets or deposits on a consolidated basis, the option will be converted into, or be exchanged for, a substitute option, at the other party selection of:

the continuing or surviving person of a consolidation or merger with the New York Community or Roslyn;

the acquiring person in a plan of exchange in which New York Community or Roslyn is acquired;

New York Community or Roslyn in a merger or plan of exchange in which it is the acquiring person;

the transferee of all or a substantial part of the consolidated assets or deposits of New York Community or Roslyn; or

any person that controls any of these entities, as the case may be.

The substitute option will have the same terms as the original option (including a repurchase right, but based on the closing price of the common stock of the substitute issuer). However, if because of legal reasons the terms of the substitute option cannot be the same as those of the original option, the terms of the substitute option will be as similar as possible and at least as advantageous to Roslyn or New York Community. Also, the number of shares exercisable under the substitute option is essentially capped at 19.9% of the shares of common stock outstanding prior to exercise. In the event of this cap would be exceeded, the issuer of the substitute option will pay New York Community or Roslyn, respectively, the difference between the value of a capped and non-capped option.

The stock option agreements provide that in no event shall the total profit realized by New York Community or Roslyn as a result of an option agreement exceed \$47,000,000.

69

### ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The merger will be accounted for as a purchase, as that term is used under generally accepted accounting principles, for accounting and financial reporting purposes. Under purchase accounting, the assets and liabilities of Roslyn as of the effective time of the merger will be recorded at their respective fair values and added to those of New York Community. Any excess of purchase price over the fair values is recorded as goodwill. Financial statements of New York Community issued after the merger would reflect such fair values and would not be restated retroactively to reflect the historical financial position or results of operations of Roslyn.

70

### MATERIAL FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE MERGER

The following section describes the anticipated material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the merger to holders of Roslyn common stock. This discussion addresses only those Roslyn stockholders that hold their Roslyn common stock as a capital asset within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and does not address all the U.S. federal income tax consequences that may be relevant to particular Roslyn stockholders in light of their individual circumstances or to Roslyn stockholders that are subject to special rules, such as:

financial institutions,
insurance companies,
tax-exempt organizations,
dealers in securities or currencies,
traders in securities that elect to use a mark to market method of accounting,
persons that hold Roslyn common stock as part of a straddle, hedge, constructive sale or conversion transaction,
persons who are not citizens or residents of the United States, and
stockholders who acquired their shares of Roslyn common stock through the exercise of an employee stock option or otherwise as compensation.

The following is based upon the Internal Revenue Code, its legislative history, existing and proposed regulations thereunder and published rulings and decisions, all as currently in effect as of the date hereof, and all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. Tax considerations under state, local and foreign laws, or federal laws other than those pertaining to the income tax, are not addressed in this document. Determining the actual tax consequences of the merger to you may be complex. They will depend on your specific situation and on factors that are not within our control. You should consult with your own tax advisor as to the tax consequences of the merger in your particular circumstances, including the applicability and effect of the alternative minimum tax and any state, local or foreign and other tax laws and of changes in those laws.

Tax Consequences of the Merger Generally. New York Community and Roslyn have structured the merger to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is a condition to Roslyn's obligation to complete the merger that Roslyn receive an opinion of its special counsel, Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz, dated the effective date of the merger, to the effect that (i) the merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, (ii) each of Roslyn and New York Community will be a party to that reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(b) of the Internal Revenue Code and (iii) no gain or loss will be recognized by stockholders of Roslyn who receive shares of New York Community common stock in exchange for Roslyn common stock, except with respect to cash received instead of fractional share interests. It is a condition to New York Community s obligation to complete the merger that New York Community receive an opinion of its special counsel, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, dated the

effective date of the merger, to the effect that (i) the merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, and (ii) each of Roslyn and New York Community will be a party to that reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.

In rendering these opinions, counsel may require and rely upon representations contained in letters and certificates to be received from Roslyn and New York Community. Neither of these tax opinions will be binding on the Internal Revenue Service. Neither New York Community nor Roslyn intends to request any ruling from the Internal Revenue Service as to the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the merger.

71

### **Table of Contents**

Assuming the merger qualifies as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code:

no gain or loss will be recognized by stockholders of Roslyn who receive shares of New York Community common stock in exchange for shares of Roslyn common stock, except with respect to cash received instead of fractional share interests in New York Community common stock;

the aggregate basis of the New York Community common stock received in the merger will be the same as the aggregate basis of the Roslyn common stock for which it is exchanged, less any basis attributable to fractional share interests in New York Community common stock for which cash is received; and

the holding period of New York Community common stock received in exchange for shares of Roslyn common stock will include the holding period of the Roslyn common stock for which it is exchanged.

Cash Received Instead of a Fractional Share of New York Community Common Stock. A stockholder of Roslyn who receives cash instead of a fractional share of New York Community common stock will be treated as having received the fractional share pursuant to the merger and then as having exchanged the fractional share for cash in a redemption by New York Community. As a result, a Roslyn stockholder will generally recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount of cash received and the basis in his or her fractional share interest as set forth above. This gain or loss will generally be capital gain or loss, and will be long-term capital gain or loss if, as of the effective date of the merger, the holding period for such shares is greater than one year. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting. Payments of cash to a holder of Roslyn common stock instead of a fractional share of New York Community common stock may, under certain circumstances, be subject to information reporting and backup withholding at a rate of 28% of the cash payable to the holder, unless the holder provides proof of an applicable exemption or furnishes its taxpayer identification number, and otherwise complies with all applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules. Any amounts withheld from payments to a holder under the backup withholding rules are not additional tax and will be allowed as a refund or credit against the holder s U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the required information is furnished to the Internal Revenue Service.

72

#### DESCRIPTION OF NEW YORK COMMUNITY CAPITAL STOCK

In this section, we describe the material features and rights of the New York Community capital stock after the merger. This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to applicable Delaware law, New York Community s certificate of incorporation, New York Community s bylaws and the New York Community rights agreement, as described below. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page [•].

#### General

New York Community is currently authorized to issue 300,000,000 shares of common stock having a par value of \$0.01 per share and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock having a par value of \$0.01 per share. Each share of New York Community common stock has the same relative rights as, and is identical in all respects to, each other share of New York Community common stock.

As of [•], 2003, there were [•] shares of common stock of New York Community outstanding, [•] shares of common stock of New York Community held in treasury and [•] shares of common stock of New York Community reserved for issuance pursuant to New York Community semployee benefit plans and the New York Community stock option agreement. After giving effect to the merger on a pro forma basis, approximately [•] shares of New York Community common stock will be outstanding.

### **Common Stock**

Dividends. Subject to certain regulatory restrictions, New York Community can pay dividends out of statutory surplus or from certain net profits if, as and when declared by its board of directors. Funds for New York Community dividends are generally provided through dividends from New York Community Bank. The payment of dividends by New York Community Bank is subject to limitations which are imposed by law and applicable regulation. See New York Community Dividends on page [•]. The holders of common stock of New York Community are entitled to receive and share equally in such dividends as may be declared by the board of directors of New York Community out of funds legally available therefor. If New York Community issues preferred stock, the holders thereof may have a priority over the holders of the common stock with respect to dividends.

Voting Rights. The holders of common stock of New York Community possess exclusive voting rights in New York Community. They elect the New York Community board of directors and act on such other matters as are required to be presented to them under Delaware law or as are otherwise presented to them by the board of directors. Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote per share and does not have any right to cumulate votes in the election of directors. If New York Community issues preferred stock, holders of the preferred stock may also possess voting rights. Certain matters require an 80% stockholder vote, which is calculated after giving effect to a provision limiting voting rights. This provision in New York Community s certificate of incorporation provides that stockholders who beneficially own in excess of 10% of the then-outstanding shares of common stock of New York Community are not entitled to any vote with respect to the shares held in excess of the 10% limit. A person or entity is deemed to beneficially own shares that are owned by an affiliate as well as persons acting in concert with such person or entity.

Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of New York Community Bank, New York Community, as holder of New York Community Bank s capital stock, would be entitled to receive, after payment or provision for payment of all debts and liabilities of

New York Community Bank (including all deposit accounts and accrued interest thereon) and after distribution of the balance in the special liquidation account to eligible account holders, all assets of New York Community Bank available for distribution. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of New York Community, the holders of its common stock would be entitled to receive, after payment or provision for payment of all of its debts and liabilities, all of the assets of New York Community available for distribution. If preferred stock is issued, the holders thereof may have a priority over the holders of the New York Community common stock in the event of liquidation or dissolution.

73

### **Table of Contents**

*Preemptive Rights.* Holders of New York Community common stock are not entitled to preemptive rights with respect to any shares which may be issued. The New York Community common stock is not subject to redemption.

### **Preferred Stock**

Shares of New York Community preferred stock may be issued with such designations, powers, preferences and rights as the New York Community board of directors may from time to time determine. The New York Community board of directors can, without stockholder approval, issue preferred stock with voting, dividend, liquidation and conversion rights which could dilute the voting strength of the holders of the common stock and may assist management in impeding an unfriendly takeover or attempted change in control.

74

#### NEW YORK COMMUNITY STOCKHOLDER PROTECTION RIGHTS AGREEMENT

The following is a description of the rights issued under the New York Community stockholder protection rights agreement, as amended. This description is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the text of the rights agreement. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page [•].

Each issued share of New York Community common stock has attached to it one right issued pursuant to a Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement, dated as of January 16, 1996 and amended on March 27, 2001 and June 27, 2003, between New York Community and Registrar and Transfer Company (successor to Mellon Investor Services), as rights agent. Each right entitles its holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of participating preferred stock of New York Community at an exercise price of \$120, subject to adjustment, after the separation time, which means after the close of business on the earlier of

the tenth business day after commencement of a tender or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in the offeror becoming an acquiring person, which is defined in the rights agreement as a person beneficially owning 10% or more of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock; and

the tenth business day after the first date of public announcement that a person has become an acquiring person, which is also called the flip-in date.

The rights are not exercisable until the business day following the separation time. The rights expire on the earlier of

the close of business on January 16, 2006;

redemption, as described below;

an exchange for common stock, as described below; or

the merger of New York Community into another corporation pursuant to an agreement entered into prior to a flip-in date.

The New York Community board of directors may, at any time prior to the occurrence of a flip-in date, redeem all the rights at a price of \$0.01 per right.

If a flip-in date occurs, each right, other than those held by the acquiring person or any affiliate or associate of the acquiring person or by any transferees of any of these persons, will constitute the right to purchase shares of New York Community common stock having an aggregate market price equal to \$240 in cash, subject to adjustment. In addition, the New York Community board of directors may, at any time between a flip-in date and the time that an acquiring person becomes the beneficial owner of more than 50% of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock, elect to exchange the rights for shares of New York Community common stock at an exchange ratio of one share of New York Community common stock per right.

Under the rights agreement, after a flip-in date occurs, New York Community may not consolidate or merge, or engage in other similar transactions, with an acquiring person without entering into a supplemental agreement with the acquiring person providing that, upon consummation or occurrence of the transaction, each right shall thereafter constitute the right to purchase common stock of the acquiring person having an aggregate market price equal to \$240 in cash, subject to adjustment.

These rights may not prevent a takeover of New York Community. The rights, however, may have antitakeover effects. The rights may cause substantial dilution to a person or group that acquires 10% or more of the outstanding New York Community common stock unless the rights are first redeemed by the New York Community board of directors.

On June 27, 2003, New York Community and Registrar and Transfer Company amended the rights agreement to substantially prevent the merger agreement, the stock option agreements, and the merger with Roslyn from triggering the provisions of the rights agreement.

A description of the rights agreement specifying the terms of the rights has been included in reports filed by New York Community under the Securities Exchange Act. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page [•].

75

#### COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDERS RIGHTS

#### General

New York Community and Roslyn are incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware and, accordingly, the rights of New York Community stockholders and Roslyn stockholders are governed by the laws of the State of Delaware. As a result of the merger, Roslyn stockholders will become stockholders of New York Community. Thus, following the merger, the rights of Roslyn stockholders who become New York Community stockholders in the merger will continue to be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware and will also then be governed by the New York Community certificate of incorporation and the New York Community bylaws. The New York Community certificate of incorporation will be unaltered by the merger. In connection with the merger, the board of directors of New York Community has amended the bylaws of New York Community as contemplated by the merger agreement with such amendment to become effective upon the consummation of the merger. The following description gives effect to such amendment.

## Comparison of Stockholders Rights

Set forth on the following pages is a summary comparison of material differences between the rights of a New York Community stockholder under the New York Community certificate of incorporation, the New York Community bylaws that will be in effect at the completion of the merger, and Delaware law (right column) and the rights of a stockholder under the Roslyn certificate of incorporation, Roslyn bylaws and Delaware law (left column). The summary set forth below is not intended to provide a comprehensive summary of Delaware law or of each company s governing documents. This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the New York Community certificate of incorporation and Roslyn bylaws.

**ROSLYN** 

**NEW YORK COMMUNITY** 

# CAPITAL STOCK

## **Authorized Capital**

200 million shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, 10 million shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share. As of [•], 2003, there were [•] shares of Roslyn common stock issued and outstanding, [•] shares reserved for issuance and no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding.

300 million shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, 5 million shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share. As of [•], 2003, there were [•] shares of New York Community common stock issued and outstanding, [•] shares reserved for issuance and no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding.

## **BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

**Number of Directors** 

Such number as is fixed by the board of directors from time to time. New York Community currently has eleven directors and Roslyn has twelve directors. See  $\$ THE MERGER Board of Directors and Management of New York Community Following the Merger  $\$ on page  $[\bullet]$  for a description of the New York Community board of directors after the merger.

76

#### **ROSLYN**

#### **NEW YORK COMMUNITY**

## Vacancies And Newly Created Directorships

Filled by a majority vote of the directors then in office. The person who fills any such vacancy holds office for the unexpired term of the director to whom such person succeeds.

Filled by a majority vote of the directors then in office. The person who fills any such vacancy holds office for the unexpired term of the director to whom such person succeeds.

The New York Community bylaws provide that until the annual meeting of stockholders in 2004, unless two thirds of the directors decide otherwise, any vacancy on the board of directors created by a director designated by Richmond County Financial Corp. in connection with the merger on July 31, 2001 of Richmond County Financial Corp. with New York Community or a successor of such a director will be filled with a new director selected by a majority of the remaining designees of Richmond County Financial Corp., as applicable, on the New York Community board of directors.

## Special Meeting of the Board

Special meetings of the board of directors may be called by one-third of the directors then in office, or by the Chairman of the Board or the President.

Special meetings of the board of directors may be called by one-half of the directors then in office, or by a Chairman of the Board or the Chief Executive Officer.

## **Stockholder Rights Plans**

On September 26, 2000, Roslyn adopted a stockholder protection rights agreement, pursuant to which each issued share of Roslyn common stock has attached to it one right to purchase, under certain conditions, a fraction of a share of participating preferred stock of Roslyn. On June 27, 2003, Roslyn and the rights agent under the Roslyn stockholder protection rights agreement amended the rights agreement to substantially prevent the merger agreement, the stock option agreements, and the merger with New York Community from triggering the provisions of the rights agreement.

On January 16, 1996, New York Community adopted a stockholder protection rights agreement, pursuant to which each issued share of New York Community common stock has attached to it one right to purchase, under certain conditions, a fraction of a share of participating preferred stock of New York Community. On June 27, 2003, New York Community and the rights agent under the New York Community stockholder protection rights agreement amended the rights agreement to substantially prevent the merger agreement, the stock option agreements, and the merger with Roslyn from triggering the provisions of the rights agreement. The New York Community stockholder protection rights agreement, including rights thereunder currently held by New York Community stockholders, will remain in place after the merger.

See NEW YORK COMMUNITY STOCKHOLDER PROTECTION RIGHTS AGREEMENT on page [•].

77

# DISCUSSION OF ANTI-TAKEOVER PROTECTION IN NEW YORK COMMUNITY S CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION AND BYLAWS

### General

Certain provisions of the New York Community certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have anti-takeover effects. These provisions may discourage attempts by others to acquire control of New York Community without negotiation with the New York Community board of directors. The effect of these provisions is discussed briefly below. In addition to these provisions of the New York Community certificate of incorporation and bylaws, the rights agreement discussed in NEW YORK COMMUNITY STOCKHOLDER PROTECTION RIGHTS AGREEMENT on page [•] may also have anti-takeover effects. All of the provisions discussed below are contained in New York Community s certificate of incorporation and bylaws currently. Roslyn s certificate of incorporation and bylaws have substantially similar provisions.

### **Authorized Stock**

The shares of New York Community common stock and New York Community preferred stock authorized by New York Community s certificate of incorporation but not issued provide the New York Community board of directors with the flexibility to effect certain financings, acquisitions, stock dividends, stock splits and stock-based grants without the need for a stockholder vote. The New York Community board of directors, consistent with its fiduciary duties, could also authorize the issuance of these shares, and could establish voting, conversion, liquidation and other rights for the New York Community preferred stock being issued, in an effort to deter attempts to gain control of New York Community.

## Classification of Board of Directors; No Cumulative Voting

New York Community s certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that the board of directors of New York Community is divided into three classes of as nearly equal size as possible, with one class elected annually to serve for a term of three years. This classification of the New York Community board of directors may discourage a takeover of New York Community because a stockholder with a majority interest in New York Community would have to wait for at least two consecutive annual meetings of stockholders to elect a majority of the members of the New York Community board of directors. New York Community s certificate of incorporation also does not and will not, after the merger, authorize cumulative voting for the election of directors of New York Community.

#### Size of Board; Vacancies; Removal of Directors

The provisions of New York Community s certificate of incorporation and bylaws giving the New York Community board of directors the power to determine the exact number of directors and to fill any vacancies or newly created positions, and allowing removal of directors only for cause upon an 80% vote of stockholders are intended to insure that the classified board provisions discussed above are not circumvented by the removal of incumbent directors. Furthermore, since New York Community stockholders do not, and will not, after the merger, have the ability to call special meetings of stockholders, a stockholder seeking to have a director removed for cause generally will be able to do so only at an annual meeting of stockholders. These provisions could make the removal of any director more difficult, even if such removal were desired by the stockholders of New York Community. In addition, these provisions of New York Community s certificate of incorporation and bylaws could make a takeover of New York Community more difficult under circumstances where the potential acquiror seeks to do so through obtaining

control of the New York Community board of directors.

# **Special Meetings of Stockholders**

The provisions of New York Community s certificate of incorporation and bylaws relating to special meetings of stockholders are intended to enable the New York Community board of directors to determine if it is

78

### **Table of Contents**

appropriate for New York Community to incur the expense of a special meeting in order to present a proposal to New York Community stockholders. If the New York Community board of directors determines not to call a special meeting, stockholder proposals could not be presented to the stockholders for action until the next annual meeting, or until such proposal is properly presented before an earlier duly called special meeting, because stockholders cannot call a special meeting. In addition, these provisions could make a takeover of New York Community more difficult under circumstances where the potential acquiror seeks to do so through obtaining control of the New York Community board of directors.

### Stockholder Action by Unanimous Written Consent

The purpose of the provision in New York Community s certificate of incorporation prohibiting stockholder action by written consent is to prevent any person or persons holding the percentage of the voting stock of New York Community otherwise required to take corporate action from taking such action without giving notice to other stockholders and without the procedures of a stockholder meeting.

# Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws

The requirements in New York Community s certificate of incorporation and bylaws for an 80% stockholder vote for the amendment of certain provisions of New York Community s certificate of incorporation and New York Community s bylaws is intended to prevent a stockholder who controls a majority of the New York Community stock from avoiding the requirements of important provisions of New York Community s certificate of incorporation or bylaws simply by amending or repealing them. Thus, the holders of a minority of the shares of the New York Community stock could block the future repeal or modification of New York Community s bylaws and certain provisions of the certificate of incorporation, even if such action were deemed beneficial by the holders of more than a majority, but less than 80%, of the New York Community stock.

## **Voting Limitation**

New York Community s certificate of incorporation provides that holders of common stock who beneficially own in excess of 10% of the outstanding shares of New York Community common stock are not entitled to vote any shares held in excess of 10% of the outstanding shares of common stock.

## **Business Combinations with Interested Stockholders**

New York Community s certificate of incorporation provides that any Business Combination (as defined below) involving New York Community and an Interested Stockholder must be approved by the holders of at least 80% of the voting power of the outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote, unless either a majority of the Disinterested Directors (as defined in the certificate) of New York Community has approved the Business Combination or the terms of the proposed Business Combination satisfy certain minimum price and other standards. For purposes of these provisions, an Interested Stockholder includes:

any person (with certain exceptions) who is the Beneficial Owner (as defined in the certificate) of more than 10% of New York Community common stock;

any affiliate of New York Community which is the Beneficial Owner of more than 10% of New York Community common stock during the prior two years; or

any transferee of any shares of New York Community common stock that were beneficially owned by an Interested Stockholder during the prior two years.

For purposes of these provisions, a Business Combination is defined to include:

any merger or consolidation of New York Community or any subsidiary with or into an Interested Stockholder or affiliate of an Interested Stockholder;

79

### **Table of Contents**

the disposition of the assets of New York Community or any subsidiary having an aggregate value of 25% or more of the combined assets of New York Community and its subsidiaries;

the issuance or transfer by New York Community or any subsidiary of any of its securities to any Interested Stockholder or affiliate of an Interested Stockholder in exchange for cash, securities or other property having an aggregate value of 25% or more of the outstanding common stock of New York Community and its subsidiaries;

any reclassification of securities or recapitalization that would increase the proportionate share of any class of equity or convertible securities owned by an Interested Stockholder or affiliate of an Interested Stockholder; and

the adoption of any plan for the liquidation or dissolution of New York Community proposed by, or on behalf of, an Interested Stockholder or an affiliate of an Interested Stockholder.

This provision is intended to deter an acquiring party from utilizing two-tier pricing and similar coercive tactics in an attempt to acquire control of New York Community. However, it is not intended to, and will not, prevent or deter all tender offers for shares of New York Community.

#### **Business Combination Statutes And Provisions**

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law ( DGCL ) prohibits business combinations, including mergers, sales and leases of assets, issuances of securities and similar transactions by a corporation or a subsidiary, with an interested stockholder, which is someone who beneficially owns 15% or more of a corporation s voting stock, within three years after the person or entity becomes an interested stockholder, unless

the transaction that caused the person to become an interested stockholder was approved by the board of directors of the target prior to the transaction:

after the completion of the transaction in which the person becomes an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder holds at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation not including (a) shares held by persons who are both officers and directors of the issuing corporation and (b) shares held by specified employee benefit plans;

after the person becomes an interested stockholder, the business combination is approved by the board of directors and holders of at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock, excluding shares held by the interested stockholder; or

the transaction is one of certain business combinations that are proposed after the corporation had received other acquisition proposals and that are approved or not opposed by a majority of certain continuing members of the board of directors, as specified in the DGCL.

Neither of New York Community s certificate of incorporation or bylaws contains an election, as permitted by Delaware law, to be exempt from the requirements of Section 203.

#### COMPARATIVE MARKET PRICES AND DIVIDENDS

New York Community common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and Roslyn common stock is included for quotation on the Nasdaq National Market. The following table sets forth the high and low closing prices of shares of New York Community common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange and Roslyn common stock as reported on the Nasdaq National Market, and the quarterly cash dividends declared per share for the periods indicated.

	1	New York Comm	nunity			Roslyn				
	Common Stock					Common Stock				
	High	Low	Divi	dend(1)(2)	High	Low	Divid	lend(3)(4)		
2000										
Third Quarter	\$ 9.627	\$ 6.230	\$	0.8333	\$ 15.210	\$ 12.210	\$	0.103		
Fourth Quarter	12.500	8.770		0.8333	18.540	12.750		0.107		
2001										
First Quarter	14.348	11.043		0.8333	17.670	14.670		0.110		
Second Quarter	18.740	14.501		0.1000	18.610	14.500		0.113		
Third Quarter	23.533	14.344		0.1000	22.380	15.920		0.117		
Fourth Quarter	21.178	16.377		0.1200	19.880	16.500		0.120		
2002										
First Quarter	22.243	17.307		0.1200	20.700	17.660		0.125		
Second Quarter	22.596	18.890		0.1500	24.010	20.750		0.130		
Third Quarter	23.991	18.597		0.1500	22.930	16.860		0.135		
Fourth Quarter	22.506	18.867		0.1500	18.810	15.460		0.140		
2003										
First Quarter	22.270	20.410		0.1875	20.210	17.790		0.150		
Second Quarter	29.090	22.040		0.2100	21.750	17.660		0.155		

- (1) Pursuant to the merger agreement, New York Community may not, without the prior written consent of Roslyn, pay any dividends in excess of \$0.30 per share per quarter. New York Community and Roslyn have also agreed to coordinate their declaration of dividends.
- (2) Reflects shares issued as a result of a 3-for-2 stock split on March 29, 2001 and September 20, 2001, and a 4-for-3 stock split on May 21, 2003. New York Community s high and low stock prices and dividends for prior periods have been adjusted to reflect the effect of such stock splits.
- (3) Pursuant to the merger agreement, Roslyn may not, without the prior written consent of New York Community, pay any dividends in excess of \$0.155 per share. New York Community and Roslyn have also agreed to coordinate their declaration of dividends.
- (4) Reflects shares issued as a result of a 3-for-2 stock split on August 22, 2001.

New York Community and Roslyn stockholders are advised to obtain current market quotations for New York Community common stock and Roslyn common stock. The market price of New York Community common stock will fluctuate between the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and the completion of the merger. No assurance can be given concerning the market price of New York Community common stock before or after the Effective Date.

New York Community may from time to time repurchase shares of New York Community common stock and purchase shares of Roslyn common stock and Roslyn may from time to time repurchase shares of Roslyn common stock and purchase shares of New York Community Community common stock. During the course of the solicitation being made by this joint proxy statement/prospectus, New York Community or Roslyn may be bidding for and purchasing shares of Roslyn common stock.

#### PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

New York Community Bancorp, Inc. and Roslyn Bancorp, Inc.

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition and Statements of Income

The following Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition combines the historical Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition of New York Community and subsidiaries and the historical Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition of Roslyn and subsidiaries giving effect to the consummation of the merger on June 30, 2003, using the purchase method of accounting and giving effect to the related pro forma adjustments described in the accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and the year ended December 31, 2002 combine the historical Consolidated Statements of Income of New York Community and subsidiaries and Roslyn and subsidiaries giving effect to the merger as if the merger had become effective at the beginning of the period presented, using the purchase method of accounting and giving effect to the related pro forma adjustments described in the accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

The unaudited pro forma combined condensed consolidated financial statements included herein are presented for informational purposes only. This information includes various estimates and may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or results of operations that would have occurred if the merger had been consummated on the date or at the beginning of the period indicated or which may be obtained in the future. The unaudited pro forma combined condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes should be read in conjunction with and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the historical financial statements and related notes thereto of New York Community and subsidiaries and Roslyn and subsidiaries information and notes thereto appearing elsewhere herein.

We anticipate that the merger will provide the combined company with financial benefits that include reduced operating expenses. The pro forma information, while helpful in illustrating the financial characteristics of the combined company under one set of assumptions, does not reflect the benefits of expected cost savings or opportunities to earn additional revenue and, accordingly, does not attempt to predict or suggest future results. It also does not necessarily reflect what the historical results of the combined company would have been had our companies been combined during these periods.

82

# NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC. AND ROSLYN BANCORP, INC.

# **Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition**

# As of June 30, 2003

(In thousands)

	New York Community Historical	Roslyn Pro Forma Historical Adjustment		Pro Forma Combined
ASSETS				
Cash and due from banks	\$ 114,093	\$ 70,028	\$ (138,100)(B)	\$ 63,127
			(43,542)(B) 60,648 (C)	
Money market investments	1,000		00,046 (C)	1,000
Securities available-for-sale, net	4,276,612	6,556,811	44,000 (C)	7,343,885
socialities a value to to said, not	.,_, 0,012	0,000,011	(33,538)(C)	7,5 .5,665
			(3,500,000)(F)	
Securities held-to-maturity, net	1,068,740	283,491	. , , , , , ,	1,352,231
Loans held-for-sale		5,969		5,969
Loans receivable, net:				
Loans receivable	5,851,366	3,552,208	60,000 (C)	9,463,574
Allowance for loan losses	(40,500)	(44,326)		(84,826)
Loans receivable, net	5,810,866	3,507,882	60,000	9,378,748
Excess of cost over fair value of net assets acquired				
and other intangibles	673,018	797	(797)(C)	1,905,956
			1,232,938 (D)	
Other assets	445,730	384,471	61,534 (B)	992,312
			25,000 (C)	
			75,577 (C)	
Total assets	\$ 12,390,059	\$ 10,809,449	\$ (2,156,279)	\$ 21,043,229
I VA DVI VOVIC		<del></del>		
LIABILITIES Demosits	\$ 5,099,847	¢ 6.005.115	\$ 37.000 (C)	¢ 11 221 062
Deposits Federal funds purchased and securities sold under	\$ 3,099,847	\$ 6,085,115	\$ 37,000 (C)	\$ 11,221,962
agreements to repurchase	3,007,297	2,410,299	(3,500,000)(F)	1,917,596
Other short-term borrowings	589,300	2,110,277	(3,500,000)(1)	589,300
Long-term debt	2,264,836	1,633,582(J)	250,000 (C)	4,148,418(J)
Other liabilities	102,807	142,534		245,341
Total liabilities	11,064,087	10,271,530	(3,213,000)	18,122,617
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY				
Common stock	\$ 1,443	\$ 1,188	\$ (1,188)(E)	\$ 2,012
			569 (B)	
Additional paid-in capital	1,116,482	509,800	(509,800)(E)	2,581,465
			1,464,983 (B)	
Retained earnings	337,215	728,088	(728,088)(E)	337,215

Edgar Filing: NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP INC - Form S-4

Treasury stock	(129,088)	(661,470)	661,470 (E)	
Unearned Compensation and			129,088 (E)	
ESOP shares	(22,667)	(60,648)	60,648 (E)	(22,667)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax effect	22,587	20,961	(20,961)(E)	22,587
Total stockholders equity	\$ 1,325,972	\$ 537,919	\$ 1,056,721	\$ 2,920,612
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$ 12,390,059	\$ 10,809,449	\$ (2,156,279)	\$ 21,043,229

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited pro forma

combined condensed consolidated financial information.

# NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC. AND ROSLYN BANCORP, INC.

# **Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income**

# For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

	New York Community Historical	ommunity Roslyn Pro		Pro Forma Combined
			<del></del>	
Interest income:				
Loans	\$ 403,407	\$ 231,664	\$ (24,000)(F)	\$ 611,071
Securities	195,077	369,290	(140,000)(F) (16,211)(F)	408,156
Money market investments	1,023	1,336		2,359
Total interest income	599,507	602,290	(180,211)	1,021,586
Interest expense:				
Deposits	95,857	130,950	(18,500)(F)	208,307
Borrowed funds	130,394	193,266	(70,000)(F) (125,000)(F)	128,660
Total interest expense	226,251	324,216	(213,500)	336,967
Net interest income	373,256	278,074	33,289	684,619
Provision for loan losses		3,000		3,000
Net interest income after provision for loan losses	373,256	275,074	33,289	681,619
Other operating income:				
Net gains on sales activities	16,986	10,257		27,243
Fee and other	84,834	43,448		128,282
rec and oner		13,110		120,202
Total non-interest income	101,820	53,705		155,525
Non-interest expense				
General and administrative expense:				
Compensation and benefits	72,084	55,126		127,210
Occupancy and equipment	23,230	13,228	1,500(H)	37,958
Other	37,748	33,551(J)		71,299(J)
Amortization of core deposit intangible	6,000	126	7,630(H)	13,756
Total non-interest expense	139,062	102,031	9,130	250,223
Income before income tax expense	336,014	226,748	24,159	586,921
Income tax expense	106,784	80,342	9,060	196,186
Income from continuing operations	\$ 229,230	\$ 146,406	\$ 15,159	\$ 390,795

Edgar Filing: NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP INC - Form S-4

						_		
Income from continuing operations applicable to								
common stockholders:								
Basic	\$	229,230	\$	146,406	\$ 15,159	\$	;	390,795
Diluted		229,230		146,406	15,159			390,795
Income from continuing operations per share:								
Basic	\$	1.69	\$	1.85		\$	,	2.03
Diluted		1.67		1.82				2.01
Weighted average common shares:								
Basic	1:	35,670,184	79	9,024,610			192	2,540,373
Diluted	1:	37,419,476	80	0,521,687			194	1,289,665

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited pro forma

combined condensed consolidated financial information.

# NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC. AND ROSLYN BANCORP, INC.

# **Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income**

# For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2003

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

	New York Community Historical	•		ommunity Pro Form		Pro Forma Combined
*						
Interest income:	¢ 200.066	¢ 102.624	¢ (12,000)(E)	¢ 200.500		
Loans Securities	\$ 208,966	\$ 103,624	\$ (12,000)(F)	\$ 300,590		
Securities	119,325	186,753	(70,000)(F)	227,973		
Management in the second	593	355	(8,105)(F)	948		
Money market investments			<u> </u>	940		
Total interest income	328,884	290,732	(90,105)	529,511		
Interest expense:						
Deposits	32,845	64,190	(9,250)(F)	87,785		
Borrowed funds	79,382	94,396	(35,000)(F)	76,278		
			(62,500)(F)			
Total interest expense	112,227	158,586	(106,750)	164,063		
Net interest income	216,657	132,146	16,645	365,448		
Provision for loan losses		1,000		1,000		
Net interest income after provision for loan losses	216,657	131,146	16,645	364,448		
Other operating income:						
Net gains on sales activities	17,066	7,635		24,701		
Fee and other	43,054	13,958		57,012		
Total non-interest income	60,120	21,593		81,713		
Non-interest expense						
General and administrative expense:						
Compensation and benefits	38,868	23,268		62,136		
Occupancy and equipment	11,519	7,438	750 (H)	19,707		
Other	17,487	13,420(J)		30,907(J)		
Amortization of core deposit intangible	3,000	63	3,815 (H)	6,878		
Total non-interest expense	70,874	44,189	4,565	119,628		
Income before income tax expense	205,903	108,550	12,080	326,533		
Income tax expense	66,783	35,480	4,530	106,793		
Income from continuing operations	\$ 139,120	\$ 73,070	\$ 7,550	\$ 219,740		

Edgar Filing: NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP INC - Form S-4

\$	139,120	\$	73,070	\$	7,550		\$	219,740
	139,120		73,070		7,550			219,740
\$	1.03	\$	1.00				\$	1.15
	1.01		0.98					1.13
13	34,552,472	73	,356,238				19	1,422,661
13	37,090,145	74	,362,226				19	3,960,334
	\$	139,120 \$ 1.03	139,120 \$ 1.03 1.01 134,552,472 73	139,120 73,070 \$ 1.03 \$ 1.00 1.01 0.98 134,552,472 73,356,238	139,120 73,070 \$ 1.03 \$ 1.00 1.01 0.98 134,552,472 73,356,238	139,120 73,070 7,550 \$ 1.03 \$ 1.00 1.01 0.98 134,552,472 73,356,238	139,120 73,070 7,550 \$ 1.03 \$ 1.00 1.01 0.98 134,552,472 73,356,238	139,120 73,070 7,550 \$ 1.03 \$ 1.00 \$ 1.01 0.98 134,552,472 73,356,238 19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited pro forma

combined condensed consolidated financial information.

### NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC. AND ROSLYN BANCORP, INC.

**Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined** 

**Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements** 

December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003

#### (A) Basis of Presentation

The Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition of New York Community and subsidiaries and Roslyn and subsidiaries at June 30, 2003 has been prepared as if the merger had been consummated on that date. The Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the six months ended June 30, 2003 were prepared as if the merger had been consummated at the beginning of the periods presented. The unaudited pro forma combined condensed consolidated financial statements are based on the historical financial statements of New York Community and Roslyn after giving effect to the merger under the purchase method of accounting and the assumptions and adjustments in the notes that follow.

Assumptions relating to the pro forma adjustments set forth in the unaudited pro forma combined condensed consolidated financial statements are summarized as follows:

- (i) Estimated fair values Estimated fair value for securities available for sale, loans, deposits and borrowings were determined by New York Community and Roslyn with the assistance of Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. and Goldman, Sachs & Co. The resulting net discount/premium on securities held-to-maturity and loans, respectively, for purposes of these pro forma financial statements, is being accreted/amortized to interest income on a sum-of-the-years digits method over three to four years, respectively. The actual discount/premium will be accreted/amortized to interest income to produce a constant yield to maturity. The resulting net premium and discount on deposits and borrowings, respectively, is being amortized/accreted into interest expense on a sum-of-the-years digits method over their remaining estimated lives.
- (ii) Income taxes A net deferred tax asset was recorded equal to the deferred tax consequences associated with the differences between the tax basis and book basis of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, using an effective tax rate of 37.5%.

Certain reclassifications have been made to Roslyn s historical financial information in order to conform to New York Community s financial information.

86

## NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC. AND ROSLYN BANCORP, INC.

## **Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined**

## **Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)**

(B)

	Cash	100% Stock	Total
		(In thousands)	
Roslyn s total common shares outstanding(1)(2)		\$ 1,594,640	\$ 1,594,640
Cash-out of incremental stock options, net of tax(3)	\$ 27,214		27,214
Estimated transaction cost, net of tax(4)	92,894		92,894
	\$ 120,107	\$ 1,594,640	\$ 1,714,747

<sup>(1)</sup> Based on 75,826,918 shares of Roslyn common stock outstanding as of June 30, 2003.

<sup>(4)</sup> Estimated transaction costs net of tax are \$92.9 million:

	(In thousands)
Merger-related compensation and severance	\$ 98,600
Professional services	25,500
System and facilities conversion and other expense	14,000
Subtotal	138,100
Tax at effective tax rate of 37.5%	(45,206)
Estimated transaction cost, net of tax	\$ 92,894

The estimated transaction costs, net of tax, are expected to be offset by approximately \$60.6 million due to termination of the Roslyn benefit plans.

<sup>(2)</sup> Based on average market closing price between June 24 and June 30, 2003 of \$28.04 of New York Community common stock, and an exchange ratio of 0.75 of a share of New York Community common stock per share of Roslyn common stock.

<sup>(3)</sup> Assumes that none of the holders of Roslyn s stock options elect to exchange such options for New York Community stock options. As of June 30, 2003, there were 8,760,929 outstanding options to purchase Roslyn common stock with a weighted average price of \$16.06. The amount shown is net of tax, which is calculated assuming an effective tax rate of 37.5%.

# NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC. AND ROSLYN BANCORP, INC.

# **Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined**

# **Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)**

(C) Purchase accounting adjustments are estimated as follows:

		(In	thousands)
Roslyn s net assets historical at June 30, 2003		\$	537,919
Adjustments to Roslyn's statement of condition:			
Termination of Roslyn s ESOP (payoff of loan payable)	\$ 42,147		
Termination of Roslyn s RRP	15,266		
Termination of Roslyn s unearned compensation	3,235		
Subtotal			60,648
The excess of Roslyn s cost over the fair value of net assets acquired	(797)		
Subtotal			(797)
Fair value adjustment(1):			
Securities available-for-sale	44,000		
Securities available-for-sale (to restore the markdown on June 30, 2003)	(33,538)		
Loans receivable	60,000		
Buildings/land	25,000		
Deposits	(37,000)		
Borrowings	(250,000)		
Subtotal net fair value adjustments	(191,538)		
Tax effect of fair value adjustments at 37.5%	75,577		
Total net adjustments to net assets acquired			(115,961)
Adjusted net assets acquired		\$	481,809

(D) The excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired is set forth below:

	(In thousands)
Total cost:	
Stock portion	\$ 1,594,640
Cash portion	120,107
Subtotal	1,714,747
Net assets acquired	481,809
Total excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired	\$ 1,232,938

(E) Purchase accounting adjustments to eliminate Roslyn s stockholders equity account.

88

<sup>(1)</sup> Fair value adjustments in accordance with purchase accounting under generally accepted accounting principles.

# NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC. AND ROSLYN BANCORP, INC.

## **Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined**

# **Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)**

(F) Pro forma adjustments to interest income and interest expense were calculated as follows:

	For the Year	T	4h Ct
	Ended December 31, 2002	Mo	or the Six onths ended ne 30, 2003
	(In thou	ısands)	
Reduction in interest income on securities sold in restructuring (\$3,500,000 at 4.00%)	\$ (140,000)	\$	(70,000)
Amortization of premium on securities (3.5 years by using Sum of Year method)	(16,211)		(8,105)
Amortization of premium on loans (4 years by using Sum of Year method)	(24,000)		(12,000)
		_	
Total net adjustments interest income	(180,211)		(90,105)
		_	
Reduction in interest expense on borrowings (\$3,500,000 at 2.00%)	\$ (70,000)	\$	(35,000)
Amortization of premium on deposits (3 years by using Sum of year method)	(18,500)		(9,250)
Amortization of premium on borrowings (3 years by using Sum of year method)	(125,000)		(62,500)
		_	
Total net adjustments interest expense	\$ (213,500)	\$	(106,750)
		_	

- (G) The core deposit premium intangible asset is amortized over 13 years on an accelerated basis.
- (H) The following table summarizes the estimated impact of the amortization and accretion of the purchase accounting adjustments made in connection with the merger on New York Community s results of operations for the following years:

Projected Future			
Amounts for the			Net increase (decrease)
Years Ended December 31,	Core Deposit Intangible	Net (Accretion) Amortization	in income Before Taxes
		(In thousands)	
2003	\$ 7,630	\$ (101,789)	\$ 94,159
2004	6,672	(62,272)	55,600
2005	5,124	(25,070)	19,946
2006	3,970	12,132	(16,102)
2007	3,104	1,500	(4,604)
2008 and thereafter	10,645	7,500	(18,145)

- (I) Basic and fully diluted weighted average number of common and common stock equivalents utilized for the calculation of earnings per share for the periods presented were calculated using New York Community s historical weighted average common and common stock equivalents plus 56,870,189 shares to be issued to Roslyn stockholders under the terms of the merger agreement.
- (J) Includes certain amounts that have been reclassified to conform to New York Community s form of presentation.

89

#### PROPOSAL TO AMEND NEW YORK COMMUNITY S

### CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION TO INCREASE THE NUMBER OF

#### AUTHORIZED SHARES OF COMMON STOCK

The New York Community board of directors has unanimously approved and declared advisable, and recommends to the New York Community shareholders, an amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of New York Community to increase the number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance from 300,000,000 to 600,000,000. The New York Community board of directors believes that this proposal is in the best interests of New York Community and its shareholders and recommends a vote **FOR** the proposed amendment.

Currently, ARTICLE FOURTH, Section A of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation states:

The total number of shares of stock of all classes which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is three hundred five million (305,000,000) consisting of:

- 1. Five million (5,000,000) shares of Preferred Stock, par value one cent (\$0.01) per share (the Preferred Stock); and
- 2. Three hundred million (300,000,000) shares of Common Stock, par value one cent (\$0.01) per share (the Common Stock ).

The proposed amendment would revise ARTICLE FOURTH, Section A of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to state:

The total number of shares of stock of all classes which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is six hundred five million (605,000,000) consisting of:

- 1. Five million (5,000,000) shares of Preferred Stock, par value one cent (\$0.01) per share (the Preferred Stock); and
- 2. Six hundred million (600,000,000) shares of Common Stock, par value one cent (\$0.01) per share (the Common Stock).

The proposed amendment is subject to the approval of New York Community s shareholders.

## **Vote Required**

Approval of the proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the special meeting.

### Purpose and Effect of the Amendment

Currently, the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 300,000,000 shares of common stock and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock. As of [•], 2003, New York Community had [•] shares of common stock outstanding, [•] shares of common stock held in treasury, [•] shares of common stock reserved for issuance to directors and employees under various compensation and benefits plans, and approximately [•] shares of common stock reserved for issuance in connection with outstanding warrants, with the remaining [•] shares being authorized, unissued, and unreserved shares available for other corporate purposes. There were no shares of preferred stock outstanding as of the record date. While New York Community currently does not have any plans to issue or reserve additional common stock other than in connection with (1) the merger, which, provided the merger agreement is adopted at the special meeting, will involve the issuance of approximately [•] shares of common stock (including shares reserved for issuance in connection with assumed stock options) and (2) various compensation and benefit plans and warrants, the board of directors considers the proposed increase in the number of authorized shares desirable as it would give the board the necessary flexibility to issue common stock in connection with stock splits and dividends, mergers,

90

### **Table of Contents**

acquisitions, financing corporate activities, employee benefits and for other general corporate purposes. Without an increase in the number of authorized shares of common stock, the number of available shares for issuance may be insufficient to consummate one or more of the above transactions. However, the proposed amendment does not need to be approved to approve or to complete the merger.

Increasing the number of shares of common stock that New York Community is authorized to issue would give New York Community additional flexibility with the respect to future stock splits and stock dividends. On eight occasions, New York Community has effected a stock split in the form of a stock dividend. The last such action was a 4-for-3 stock split in the form of a 33 ½ stock dividend payable on May 21, 2003. In addition, in 2001, New York Community issued approximately 30,000,000 shares of common stock (including shares reserved for issuance in connection with assumed stock options) in connection with its acquisition of Richmond County Financial Corp., Inc. In 2000, New York Community issued approximately 10,120,130 shares of common stock (including shares reserved for issuance pursuant to assumed stock options) in connection with its acquisition of Haven Bancorp, Inc. New York Community also issued 5,865,000 shares of common stock in April 2002 as part of a primary offering of common stock and has reserved 7,720,400 shares of common stock for issuance in connection with warrants issued as part of a November 2002 Bifurcated Option Note Unit SecuritiES (BONUSES<sup>SM</sup>) Units offering.

Approving an increase in the number of authorized shares at this time would enable New York Community to take advantage of market conditions and favorable opportunities at the time they occur, without the expense and delay incidental to obtaining shareholder approval of an amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation increasing the number of authorized shares, except as may be required by applicable law for a particular issuance. As a result, the board is proposing an amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase the number of shares of common stock from 300,000,000 to 600,000,000, which would increase the authorized, unissued, and unreserved shares of common stock available for issuance from [•] to [•] shares after giving effect to the merger. Authorized unissued and unreserved shares of common stock may be issued from time to time for any proper purpose without further action of the shareholders, except as may be required by the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, applicable law, or the listing requirements for the NYSE, on which the common stock is listed.

Each share of common stock authorized for issuance has the same rights and is identical in all respects with each other share of common stock. The newly authorized shares of common stock will not affect the rights, such as voting and liquidation rights, of the shares of common stock currently outstanding. Under the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, New York Community s stockholders do not have pre-emptive rights. Therefore, should the board of directors elect to issue additional shares of common stock, existing shareholders would not have any preferential rights to purchase those shares and such issuance could have a dilutive effect on earnings per share, book value per share, and the voting power and shareholdings of current stockholders, depending on the particular circumstances in which the additional shares of common stock are issued. The board of directors does not intend to issue any additional shares of common stock except on terms that it deems to be in the best interests of New York Community and its shareholders. New York Community currently has no current plans to issue newly authorized shares of common stock.

The ability of the board of directors to issue additional shares of common stock without additional shareholder approval may be deemed to have an anti-takeover effect because the board of directors could issue unissued and unreserved shares of common stock in circumstances that may have the effect of deterring takeover bids by making a potential acquisition more expensive, particularly in connection with the operation of New York Community s Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement. Newly authorized shares of common stock, when issued, would have attached to them one right issued pursuant to the Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement, dated as of January 16,1996 and amended on March 27, 2001 and August 1, 2001, between New York Community and Registrar and Transfer company, as rights agent. Each right entitles the holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of New York Community s participating preferred stock at an exercise price of \$120, subject to adjustment, upon the occurrence of certain specified events as described in the Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement. No shares of preferred stock of New York Community are issued or

### **Table of Contents**

outstanding. Authorized unissued and unreserved shares of preferred stock may be issued from time to time for any proper purpose without further action of the shareholders, except as may be required by the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, applicable law, or the listing requirements for the NYSE. No change to New York Community s preferred stock authorization is requested by the amendment.

If the proposed amendment is adopted, it will become effective upon filing of a Certificate of Amendment to New York Community s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation with the Delaware Secretary of State. However, if New York Community s stockholders approve the proposed amendment, the board retains discretion under Delaware law not to implement the proposed amendment. If the board were to exercise such discretion, the number of authorized shares would remain at current levels.

92

#### **EXPERTS**

The consolidated financial statements of New York Community and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, have been incorporated by reference into this document in reliance upon the report of KPMG LLP, independent certified public accountants, incorporated by reference in New York Community s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, which is incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing. The report of KPMG LLP refers to changes, in 2002, as New York Community adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangibles. The report of KPMG LLP also refers to changes in 2001, as New York Community adopted the provisions of Statement of Accounting Standard No. 141, Business Combinations.

The consolidated financial statements of Roslyn and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, have been incorporated by reference in this document in reliance upon the report of KPMG LLP, independent certified public accountants, incorporated by reference in Roslyn s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, which is incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

New York Community expects representatives of KPMG LLP to attend New York Community s special meeting, and Roslyn expects representatives of KPMG LLP to attend Roslyn s special meeting. These representatives will have an opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so, and we expect that they will be available to respond to any appropriate questions you may have.

#### OTHER MATTERS

As of the date of this document, the New York Community board of directors and the Roslyn board of directors know of no matters that will be presented for consideration at their respective special meetings other than as described in this document. However, if any other matter shall properly come before these special meetings or any adjournment or postponement thereof and shall be voted upon, the proposed proxy will be deemed to confer authority to the individuals named as authorized therein to vote the shares represented by the proxy as to any matters that fall within the purposes set forth in the notice of special meeting. However, no proxy that is voted against the merger agreement will be voted in favor of any adjournment or postponement.

#### New York Community 2004 Annual Meeting Stockholder Proposals

To be considered for inclusion in New York Community s proxy statement and form of proxy relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2004, the Secretary of New York Community, at the address set forth on the first page of this Proxy Statement, not later than December 12, 2003, must receive a stockholder proposal. If such Annual Meeting is held on a date more than thirty (30) days from May 14, 2004, a stockholder proposal must be received within a reasonable time before New York Community begins to print and mail its proxy solicitation materials for such Annual Meeting. Any such proposal will be subject to 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-8 of the Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

The bylaws of New York Community, a copy of which may be obtained from New York Community, set forth the procedures by which a stockholder may properly bring business before a meeting of stockholders. Pursuant to the bylaws, only business brought by or at the direction of the board of directors may be conducted at a special meeting. The bylaws of New York Community provide an advance notice procedure for

a stockholder to properly bring business before an annual meeting. The stockholder must give written advance notice to the Secretary of New York Community not less than ninety (90) days before the date originally fixed for such meeting; *provided*, *however*, that in the event that less than one hundred (100) days notice or prior public disclosure of the date of the meeting is given or made to stockholders, notice by the stockholder, to be timely, must be received not later than the close of business on the tenth day following the date on which New York Community s notice to stockholders of the annual meeting date was mailed or such public disclosure was made.

93

### **Table of Contents**

## Roslyn 2004 Annual Meeting Stockholder Proposals

Roslyn will hold a 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders only if the merger is not consummated before the time of such meeting. In order to be eligible for inclusion in Roslyn s proxy materials for next year s Annual Meeting of Stockholders, any stockholder proposal to take action at such meeting must be received by the Corporate Secretary of Roslyn at its main office at One Jericho Plaza, Jericho, New York 11753, no later than December 20, 2003. If next year s Annual Meeting is held on a date more than 30 calendar days from May 20, 2004, a stockholder proposal must be received by a reasonable time before Roslyn begins to print and mail its proxy solicitation for such Annual Meeting. Any stockholder proposals will be subject to the requirements of the proxy rules adopted by the SEC.

Roslyn s bylaws provide that in order for a stockholder to make nominations for the election of directors or proposals for business to be brought before the Annual Meeting, a stockholder must deliver notice of such nominations to the Secretary not less than 90 days before the date of the Annual Meeting; provided that if less than 100 days notice or prior public disclosure of the date of the Annual Meeting is given to stockholders, such notice must be delivered not later than the close of the tenth day following the day on which notice of the date of the Annual Meeting was mailed to stockholders or prior public disclosure of the meeting date was made. A copy of the full text of the bylaw provisions discussed above may be obtained by writing to Roslyn s Corporate Secretary at One Jericho Plaza, Jericho, New York 11753.

94

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

New York Community has filed with the SEC a registration statement under the Securities Act that registers the distribution to Roslyn stockholders of the shares of New York Community common stock to be issued in connection with the merger. The registration statement, including the attached exhibits and schedules, contains additional relevant information about New York Community and New York Community stock. The rules and regulations of the SEC allow us to omit certain information included in the registration statement from this document.

You may read and copy this information at the Public Reference Room of the SEC at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the SEC s Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an internet worldwide web site that contains reports, proxy statements and other information about issuers, like New York Community and Roslyn, who file electronically with the SEC. The address of the site is <a href="http://www.sec.gov">http://www.sec.gov</a>. The reports and other information filed by New York Community with the SEC are also available at New York Community s internet worldwide web site. The address of the site is <a href="http://www.mynycb.com">http://www.roslyn.com</a>. The reports and other information filed by Roslyn with the SEC are also available at Roslyn s internet worldwide web site. The address of the site is <a href="http://www.roslyn.com">http://www.roslyn.com</a>.

You should also be able to inspect reports, proxy statements and other information about New York Community at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange at 20 Broad Street, 17th Floor, New York, New York 10004 and Roslyn at the offices of the Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc., 33 Whitehall Street, New York, New York 10004.

The SEC allows New York Community and Roslyn to incorporate by reference information into this document. This means that New York Community and Roslyn can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this document, except for any information that is superseded by information that is included directly in this document.

95

This document incorporates by reference the documents listed below that New York Community and Roslyn previously filed with the SEC. They contain important information about the companies and their financial condition.

### **New York Community SEC Filings**

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q

Current Reports on Form 8-K

The description of New York Community common stock set forth in the registration statement on Form 8-A (No. 0-22278) filed pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act, including any amendment or report filed with the SEC for the purpose of updating this description

The description of the rights agreement, contained in the registration statement on Form 8-A filed pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act, including any amendment or report filed with the SEC for the purpose of updating this description.

Amendment to the registration statement on Form 8-A filed pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act

#### Roslyn SEC Filings

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q

Current Reports on Form 8-K

#### Period or Date Filed

Year ended December 31, 2002

Quarters ended March 31, 2003 and June 30, 2003

Filed on January 22, 2003; January 28, 2003; January 31, 2003; March 5, 2003; April 2, 2003; April 14, 2003; April 16, 2003; April 17, 2003; April 22, 2003; April 28, 2003; April 9, 2003; May 5, 2003; May 14, 2003; May 16, 2003; May 28, 2003; June 16, 2003; and July 16, 2003 (other than those portions furnished under Item 12 of Form 8-K)

Filed on August 19, 1993

Filed on January 23, 1996

Filed on July 31, 2003

#### **Period or Date Filed**

Year ended December 31, 2002

Quarters ended March 31, 2003 and June 30, 2003

Filed on April 21, 2003; May 7, 2003; June 19, 2003; and July 18, 2003 (other than those portions furnished under Item 12 of Form 8-K)

In addition, New York Community and Roslyn also incorporate by reference additional documents that either company may file with the SEC between the date of this document and the date of the New York Community special meeting or Roslyn special meeting. These documents include periodic reports, such as Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K, as well as proxy statements.

New York Community has supplied all information contained or incorporated by reference in this document relating to New York Community, as well as all pro forma financial information, and Roslyn has supplied all information relating to Roslyn.

Documents incorporated by reference are available from New York Community and Roslyn without charge, excluding any exhibits to those documents unless the exhibit is specifically incorporated by reference as an

exhibit in this document. You can obtain documents incorporated by reference in this document by requesting them in writing or by telephone from the appropriate company at the following addresses:

New York Community Bancorp, Inc. Roslyn Bancorp, Inc.

Ilene A. Angarola Mary M. Feder

First Senior Vice President, Investor Relations Vice President, Investor Relations

615 Merrick Avenue One Jericho Plaza

Westbury, New York 11590 Jericho, New York 11753-8905

Phone: (516) 683-4420 Phone: (516) 942-6150

New York Community and Roslyn stockholders requesting documents should do so by [five days before special meeting], 2003 to receive them before the special meetings. You will not be charged for any of these documents that you request. If you request any incorporated documents from New York Community or Roslyn, New York Community or Roslyn will mail them to you by first class mail, or another equally prompt means, within one business day after it receives your request.

Neither New York Community nor Roslyn has authorized anyone to give any information or make any representation about the merger or our companies that is different from, or in addition to, that contained in this document or in any of the materials that have been incorporated into this document. Therefore, if anyone does give you information of this sort, you should not rely on it. If you are in a jurisdiction where offers to exchange or sell, or solicitations of offers to exchange or purchase, the securities offered by this document or the solicitation of proxies is unlawful, or if you are a person to whom it is unlawful to direct these types of activities, then the offer presented in this document does not extend to you. The information contained in this document speaks only as of the date of this document unless the information specifically indicates that another date applies.

97

APPENDIX A

# AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

dated as of June 27, 2003

by and between

# NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.

and

# ROSLYN BANCORP, INC.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

			Page
	R	ECITALS	
٨	NYCB		1
A. B.	NTCB Roslyn		1
Б. С.	The Stock Option Agreements		1
D.	Intention of the Parties		1
E.	Approvals		1
F.	Employment and Noncompetition Ag	reements	1
	A	RTICLE I	
	T	he Merger	
1.1	The Merger		2
1.2	Directors of the Surviving Corporation	<u>n</u>	2
1.3	Officers of the Surviving Corporation		2
1.4	Effective Time		2
1.5	Closing		2
1.6	Bank Merger		3
	Al	RTICLE II	
	Conversion or	Cancellation of Shares	
2.1	Conversion or Cancellation of Shares		3
	(a)	Roslyn Common Stock	3
	(b)	NYCB Common Stock	3
	(c)	Cancellation of Old Shares	3
2.2	Fractional Shares		3
2.3	Exchange of Old Certificates for New		3
	(a)	Appointment of Exchange Agent	3
	(b)	Exchange Procedures	4
	(c)	Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares	4
	(d)	<u>Transfers</u>	4
	(e)	Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates	4
2.4	Adjustment of Exchange Ratio		4
		RTICLE III	
	Representat	ions and Warranties	
3.1	Disclosure Letters		5
3.2	<u>Standards</u>		5
3.3	Representations and Warranties of NY	CB and Roslyn	5
	(a)	Corporate Organization and Qualification	5
	(b)	<u>Subsidiaries</u>	6
	(c)	<u>Capital Stock</u>	6
	(d)	Corporate Authority and Action	6
	(e)	Governmental Filings; No Violations	7
	(f)	Reports and Financial Statements	8
	(g)	Absence of Certain Events and Changes	8
	(h)	Compliance with Laws and Other Matters	8
	(i)	<u>Litigation</u>	9

			Page
	(j)	Taxes	9
	(k)	<u>Internal Controls</u>	10
	(1)	<u>Insurance</u>	10
	(m)	Books and Records	10
	(n)	<u>Labor Matters</u>	10
	(o)	Employee Benefits	10
	(p)	Environmental Matters	12
	(q)	<u>Agreements</u>	12
	(r)	Knowledge as to Conditions	12
	(s)	<u>Fairness Opinions</u>	12
	(t)	Brokers and Finders	13
	(u)	Risk Management Instruments	13
	(v)	Employment and Noncompetition Agreements	13
		ARTICLE IV	
		Covenants	
4.1	Conduct of Business Pending	the Effective Time	13
4.2	<u>Dividends</u>		15
4.3	Acquisition Proposals		15
4.4	Stockholder Approval		16
4.5	Filings; Other Actions		16
4.6	Information Supplied		17
4.7	Access and Investigations		17
4.8 4.9	Certain Modifications; Restructure Takeover Laws; No Rights Tri		18
4.9 4.10	Options	ggered	18 18
+.10	Options (a)	Conversion of Options	18
	(a) (b)	Assumption by NYCB	19
	(c)	Reservation and Registration of Shares	19
4.11	Benefit Plans	Reservation and Registration of Shares	19
4.12	Indemnification and Insurance		20
4.13	Affiliate Agreements		20
4.14	Publicity		21
4.15	Reasonable Best Efforts; Addi	tional Agreements	21
4.16	Notification of Certain Matters		21
4.17	<u>Expenses</u>		21
4.18	Section 16(b) Exemption		21
4.19	<u>Divisional Board</u>		22
		ARTICLE V	
		Conditions	
5.1	Conditions to Each Party s Ol	oligation to Effect the Merger	22
	(a)	Stockholder Approval	22
	(b)	Governmental and Regulatory Consents	22
	(c)	Third Party Consents	22
	(d)	No Prohibitions	23
	(e)	Registration Statement	23
	(f)	<u>Blue Sky Approvals</u>	23

A-ii

Table of Contents			
			Page
5.2	Conditions to Obligation of NYCB		23
	(a)	Representations and Warranties	23
	(b)	Performance of Obligations of Roslyn	23
	(c)	Opinion of Tax Counsel	23
5.3	Conditions to Obligation of Roslyn		23
	(a)	Representations and Warranties	23
	(b)	<u>Performance of Obligations of NYCB</u>	23
	(c)	Opinion of Tax Counsel	24
		TICLE VI	
	Tei	mination	
6.1	Termination by Mutual Consent		24
6.2	Termination by Nittual Consent Termination by Either NYCB or Roslyn		24
6.3	Termination by Roslyn		24
6.4	Termination by NYCB		24
6.5	Effect of Termination and Abandonme	e <u>nt</u>	24
	ART	TICLE VII	
	Mise	cellaneous	
7.1	<u>Survival</u>		25
7.2	Modification or Amendment		25
7.3	Waiver of Conditions		25
7.4	Counterparts		25
7.5	Governing Law		25
7.6	<u>Notices</u>		25
7.7	Entire Agreement, Etc		25
7.8		ate ; Covenants with Respect to Subsidiaries and Affiliates	25
7.9	Interpretation; Effect		26
7.10	<u>Severability</u>		26
7.11	No Third Party Beneficiaries		26
7.12	Waiver of Jury Trial		26
	AN	NNEXES	
A-1.	Form of NYCB Stock Option Agreeme		
A-2.	Form of Roslyn Stock Option Agreeme	ent (Recital C)	

A-iii

Form of Amendment to the NYCB Rights Agreement (Section 3.3(d))

Form of Amendment to the Roslyn Rights Agreement (Section 3.3(d))

Form of Roslyn Affiliate Agreement (Section 4.13)

B.

C.

D.

### INDEX OF DEFINED TERMS

Term	Location of Definition
Acquisition Proposal	4.3
Affiliate	7.8(a)
Bank Merger	1.6
BHC Act	3.3(e)(i)
Certificate of Merger	1.4(a)
Closing	1.5
Closing Date	1.5
Compensation Plans	3.3(o)(i)
Contracts	3.3(e)(ii)
DGCL	1.1(b)
Disclosure Letter	3.1
Divisional Board	4.19
Effective Time	1.4(a)
Employees	3.3(o)(i)
Environmental Laws ERISA	3.3(p) 3.3(o)(i)
ERISA Affiliate	3.3(o)(iii)
ERISA Affiliate Plan	3.3(o)(iii)
ERISA Plan	3.3(o)(ii)
Exception Shares	2.1(a)
Exchange Act	3.3(e)(i)
Exchange Agent	2.3(a)
Exchange Ratio	2.1(a)
FDIC	3.3(h)(iii)
Federal Reserve Board	3.3(e)(i)
Financial Statements	3.3(f)(iii)
Governmental Entity	3.3(e)(i)
HSR	3.3(e)(i)
Indemnified Party	4.12(a)
Internal Revenue Code	Recital D
IRS	3.3(o)(ii)
Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus	4.5(a)
Liens Material Adverse Effect	3.3(c)(v)
Maximum Amount	3.2(b) 4.12(b)
Merger Merger	4.12(b) 1.1(a)
New Certificate	2.1(c)
New Compensation and Benefits Program	4.11(b)
New Option	4.10(a)
New Shares	2.1(c)
NYCB	Preamble
NYCB Bank	1.6
NYCB Common Stock	Recital A
NYCB Meeting	4.4(a)
NYCB Preferred Stock	Recital A
NYCB Preferred Stock Series A	Recital A
NYCB Rights Agreement	Recital A

Location of Term **Definition** NYCB Stock Option Agreement Recital C Recital A NYCB Stockholder Rights **NYSE** 2.2 Old Certificate 2.1(c)Old Share 2.1(c) **PBGC** 3.3(o)(iii) Pension Plan 3.3(o)(ii) Person 2.3(b)Plan Preamble Registration Statement 4.5(a)Regulatory Approvals 3.3(e)(i)3.3(f)(i) Reports Representatives 4.3 Rights 3.3(c)(iv) Rights Agreements Recital B Risk Management Instruments 3.3(u) Roslyn Preamble Roslyn Bank 1.6 Roslyn Common Stock Recital B Roslyn Employee 4.11(a) Roslyn ESOP 4.11(f)Roslyn Insiders 4.18 Roslyn Meeting 4.4(b)Roslyn Option 4.10(a) Roslyn Preferred Stock Recital B Roslyn Preferred Stock Series A Recital B Roslyn Rights Agreement Recital B Roslyn Section 16 Information 4.18 Roslyn Stock Option Agreement Recital C Roslyn Stockholder Rights Recital B Rule 145 Affiliates 4.13(a) SEC 3.3(f)(i)Securities Act 3.3(e)(i)Securities Laws 3.3(e)(i)Stock Option Agreements Recital C Subsidiary 7.8(a)Surviving Bank 1.6 Surviving Corporation 1.1(a) Takeover Laws 3.3(d)(ii) Tax 3.3(j)Termination Date 6.2(a)Transferred Employees 4.11(a)

A-v

**AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER**, dated as of June 27, 2003 (this *Plan*), by and between New York Community Bancorp, Inc. ( *NYCB*) and Roslyn Bancorp, Inc. ( *Roslyn*).

#### RECITALS

- A. NYCB. NYCB is a Delaware corporation with its principal executive offices located in Westbury, New York. As of the date hereof, NYCB has (i) 300,000,000 authorized shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share ( NYCB Common Stock ), of which not more than 138,678,193 shares are outstanding, together with the rights ( NYCB Stockholder Rights ) issued pursuant to the Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement, dated as of January 16, 1996 and amended on March 27, 2001 and August 1, 2001, between NYCB and Registrar and Transfer Company, as Rights Agent ( NYCB Rights Agreement ); and (ii) 5,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share ( NYCB Preferred Stock ), of which 100,000 shares have been designated as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, without par value ( NYCB Preferred Stock Series A ), of which no shares are outstanding.
- B. Roslyn. Roslyn is a Delaware corporation with its principal executive offices located in Jericho, New York. As of the date hereof, Roslyn has (i) 200,000,000 authorized shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share ( Roslyn Common Stock ), of which not more than 75,827,000 shares are outstanding, together with the rights ( Roslyn Stockholder Rights ) issued pursuant to the Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement, dated as of September 26, 2000, between Roslyn and Registrar and Transfer Company, as Rights Agent ( Roslyn Rights Agreement and, together with the NYCB Rights Agreement, the Rights Agreements ); and (ii) 10,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share ( Roslyn Preferred Stock ), of which 3,000,000 shares have been designated as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, without par value ( Roslyn Preferred Stock Series A ), of which no shares are outstanding.
- C. The Stock Option Agreements. As an inducement and condition to NYCB s entering into this Plan, Roslyn is granting to NYCB an option pursuant to a stock option agreement substantially in the form of Annex A to this Plan (the Roslyn Stock Option Agreement). As an inducement and condition to Roslyn s entering into this Plan, NYCB is granting to Roslyn an option pursuant to a stock option agreement substantially in the form of Annex A to this Plan (the NYCB Stock Option Agreement and, together with the Roslyn Stock Option Agreement, the Stock Option Agreements).
- D. *Intention of the Parties*. Each of the parties to this Plan intends that the Merger (as hereinafter defined) shall qualify as a reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the *Internal Revenue Code*) and that this Plan shall constitute a plan of reorganization for purposes of Sections 354 and 361 of the Internal Revenue Code.
- E. Approvals. The Board of Directors of each of NYCB and Roslyn has (i) determined that this Plan and the transactions contemplated hereby are advisable and in the best interests of NYCB and Roslyn, respectively, and in the best interests of their respective stockholders, (ii) determined that this Plan and the transactions contemplated hereby are consistent with, and in furtherance of, its respective business strategies and (iii) authorized and approved this Plan and its respective Stock Option Agreement.
- F. Employment and Noncompetition Agreements. Simultaneously with the execution and delivery of this Plan, NYCB and Roslyn are entering into employment agreements and noncompetition agreements with certain executive officers of Roslyn.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of their mutual promises and obligations, the parties hereto approve, adopt and make this Plan and prescribe the terms and conditions hereof and the manner and mode of carrying it into effect, which are as follows:

#### **ARTICLE I**

#### The Merger

1.1 The Merger. (a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Plan, at the Effective Time (as hereinafter defined), Roslyn shall merge with
and into NYCB (the Merger ), and the separate corporate existence of Roslyn shall thereupon cease. NYCB shall be the surviving corporation in
the Merger (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the Surviving Corporation ) and shall continue to be governed by the laws of the State of
Delaware. Upon their mutual agreement and without additional approval of their respective Boards of Directors, Roslyn and NYCB may at any
time prior to the Effective Time change the method of effecting the combination of Roslyn and NYCB (including the provisions of this Article I)
if and to the extent they both deem such change to be necessary, appropriate or desirable, including, without limitation, a merger of either party
with a wholly owned subsidiary of the other; provided, however, that no such change shall (i) alter or change the Exchange Ratio (as hereinafter
defined), (ii) adversely affect the tax treatment of NYCB s stockholders or Roslyn s stockholders pursuant to this Plan, (iii) adversely affect the
tax treatment of Roslyn or NYCB pursuant to this Plan or (iv) materially impede or delay consummation of the transactions contemplated by this
Plan. The parties agree to reflect any such change in an appropriate amendment to this Plan executed by both parties.

- (b) The Merger shall have the effects specified in this Plan and the Delaware General Corporation Law (the DGCL).
- (c) At the Effective Time, the Certificate of Incorporation of NYCB, as then in effect, shall be the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation and the Bylaws of NYCB, as then in effect, shall be the Bylaws of the Surviving Corporation.
- (d) The name of the Surviving Corporation shall be New York Community Bancorp, Inc.
- 1.2 Directors of the Surviving Corporation. Immediately after the Effective Time, the directors of the Surviving Corporation shall consist of the directors of NYCB in office immediately prior to the Effective Time together with five additional directors of Roslyn designated by Roslyn that are acceptable to NYCB, until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified.
- 1.3 Officers of the Surviving Corporation. Immediately after the Effective Time, Joseph L. Mancino and Michael F. Manzulli shall become Co-Chairmen of the Board of Directors of NYCB.
- 1.4 Effective Time. (a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Plan, on or before the Closing Date, NYCB will cause a certificate of merger to be filed with the Office of the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware as provided in Section 251 of the DGCL (the Certificate of Merger). The Merger shall become effective at such time as the Certificate of Merger has been filed, or at such other time as may be specified therein. The date and time at which the Merger becomes effective is herein referred to as the Effective Time.

(b) NYCB and Roslyn will each cause the Effective Time to occur on the fifth business day following the satisfaction or waiver of the last of the conditions specified in Sections 5.1(a), (b), (c), (e) and (f) of this Plan. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 1.4(b), NYCB and Roslyn may cause the Effective Time to occur on such earlier or later day following the satisfaction or waiver of such conditions as they may agree, consistent with the provisions of the DGCL.

1.5 Closing. The closing of the Merger (the Closing ) shall take place at such time and place as NYCB and Roslyn shall agree, on the date when the Effective Time is to occur (the Closing Date ).

A-2

1.6 Bank Merger. NYCB and Roslyn shall take all action necessary and appropriate to cause, including causing the entering into of a merger agreement, their respective subsidiaries New York Community Bank (the NYCB Bank) and Roslyn Savings Bank (the Roslyn Bank) to merge (the Bank Merger) immediately after the consummation of the Merger, with the NYCB Bank being the surviving bank (Surviving Bank) thereof pursuant to the provisions of applicable law. At the effective time of the Bank Merger, the Certificate of Organization and Bylaws of the Surviving Bank shall be the Certificate of Organization and Bylaws of the NYCB Bank in effect immediately prior to the effective time of the Bank Merger.

#### **ARTICLE II**

#### **Conversion or Cancellation of Shares**

- 2.1 Conversion or Cancellation of Shares. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of any stockholder:
- (a) Roslyn Common Stock. Each share of Roslyn Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, other than Exception Shares (as hereinafter defined), shall be converted into and constitute 0.75 of a share of NYCB Common Stock (subject to Section 2.4, the Exchange Ratio). Exception Shares means shares of Roslyn Common Stock owned or held, other than in a bona fide fiduciary or agency capacity or in satisfaction of a debt previously contracted in good faith, by Roslyn or by NYCB.
- (b) NYCB Common Stock. Each share of NYCB Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall remain outstanding as one share of common stock of the Surviving Corporation.
- (c) Cancellation of Old Shares. Each Exception Share shall cease to be outstanding, shall be canceled and retired and shall cease to exist, and no consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor. Each share of Roslyn Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, other than Exception Shares, is hereinafter defined as an Old Share . Old Shares shall cease to be outstanding, shall be canceled and retired and shall cease to exist, and each holder of a certificate (an Old Certificate ) formerly representing Old Shares shall thereafter cease to have any rights with respect to such shares, except the right to receive, without interest, upon exchange of such Old Certificate in accordance with Section 2.3, a certificate (a New Certificate ) representing the shares of NYCB Common Stock (New Shares ) and any payment to which such holder is entitled pursuant to this Article II.
- 2.2 Fractional Shares. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article II, no fractional shares of NYCB Common Stock will be issued pursuant to the Merger. Instead, NYCB will pay or cause to be paid to the holder of any Old Shares that would, pursuant to paragraph 2.1(a), otherwise be entitled to receive fractional shares of NYCB Common Stock an amount in cash, rounded to the nearest cent and without interest, equal to the product of (i) the fraction of a share to which such holder would otherwise have been entitled and (ii) the average of the high and low per share sales prices of NYCB Common Stock on the trading day immediately preceding the Closing Date as reported by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (the NYSE) Composite Transactions Reporting System (as reported in The Wall Street Journal or, if not reported therein, in another authoritative source).
- 2.3 Exchange of Old Certificates for New Certificates.

(a) Appointment of Exchange Agent. Until the first anniversary of the Effective Time, NYCB shall make available or cause to be made available to an exchange agent agreed upon by NYCB and Roslyn (the Exchange Agent) New Certificates and cash in amounts sufficient to allow the Exchange Agent to make all deliveries of New Certificates and payments that may be required in exchange for Old Certificates pursuant to this Article II. Upon such anniversary, any such New Certificates and cash remaining in the possession of the Exchange Agent (together with any dividends or earnings in respect thereof) shall be delivered to NYCB. Any holder of Old Certificates who has not theretofore exchanged his or her Old Certificates for New Certificates and cash pursuant

A-3

to this Article II shall thereafter be entitled to look exclusively to NYCB, and only as a general creditor thereof, for the shares of NYCB Common Stock and/or cash to which he or she may be entitled upon exchange of such Old Certificates pursuant to this Article II. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Exchange Agent nor any party hereto, shall be liable to any holder of Old Certificates for any amount properly delivered to a public official pursuant to applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar laws.

- (b) Exchange Procedures. Promptly after the Effective Time, NYCB shall cause the Exchange Agent to mail or deliver to each individual, bank, corporation, partnership, trust, association or other entity or organization (any of the foregoing, a Person ) who was, immediately prior to the Effective Time, a holder of record of Roslyn Common Stock a form of letter of transmittal in form reasonably satisfactory to NYCB and Roslyn containing instructions for use in effecting the surrender of Old Certificates in exchange for New Certificates and any payments in lieu of fractional shares pursuant to this Article II. Upon surrender to the Exchange Agent of an Old Certificate for cancellation together with such letter of transmittal, duly executed and completed in accordance with the instructions thereto, the holder of such Old Certificate shall be entitled to receive in exchange therefor a New Certificate representing the New Shares and, if applicable, a check in the amount to which such holder is entitled pursuant to this Article II, and the Old Certificate so surrendered shall forthwith be canceled. No interest will accrue or be paid with respect to any property to be delivered upon surrender of Old Certificates. If any New Certificate is to be issued, or cash payment made, in a name other than that in which the Old Certificate surrendered in exchange therefor is registered, it shall be a condition of such exchange that the Person requesting such exchange shall pay any transfer or other taxes required by reason of the issuance of such New Certificate or the making of such cash payment in a name other than that of the registered holder of the Old Certificate surrendered, or shall establish to the satisfaction of the Surviving Corporation and the Exchange Agent that any such taxes have been paid or are not applicable. An Affiliate (as hereinafter defined) of Roslyn or NYCB shall not be entitled to receive any New Certificate or payment pursuant to this Article II until such Affiliate shall have duly executed and delivered
- (c) Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan, no dividends or other distributions in respect of New Shares with a record date after the Effective Time shall be paid to any Person holding an Old Certificate until such Old Certificate has been surrendered for exchange as provided herein. Subject to the effect of applicable laws and the immediately preceding sentence, following surrender of any such Old Certificates, there shall be paid to the holder of the New Certificates issued in exchange therefor, without interest, at the time of such surrender, the amount of dividends or other distributions with a record date on or after the Effective Time theretofore payable with respect to the New Shares represented thereby, as well as any dividends with respect to Roslyn Common Stock declared prior to the Effective time but unpaid.
- (d) *Transfers*. At or after the Effective Time, there shall be no transfers on the stock transfer books of the Surviving Corporation of Old Shares.
- (e) Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates. If any Old Certificate shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the Person claiming such Old Certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed and, if required by the Surviving Corporation or the Exchange Agent, the posting by such Person of a bond in such reasonable amount as the Surviving Corporation or the Exchange Agent may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made against it with respect to such Old Certificate, the Surviving Corporation or the Exchange Agent shall, in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed Old Certificate, issue or cause to be issued a New Certificate and pay or cause to be paid the amounts, if any, deliverable in respect to the Old Shares formerly represented by such Old Certificate pursuant to this Article II.
- 2.4 Adjustment of Exchange Ratio. In the event that, subsequent to the date of this Plan but prior to the Effective Time, the shares of NYCB Common Stock issued and outstanding shall, through a reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification, stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock split or other similar change in the capitalization of NYCB, increase or decrease in number or be changed into or exchanged for a different kind or number of securities, then an appropriate and proportionate adjustment shall be made to the Exchange Ratio.

A-4

#### ARTICLE III

#### Representations and Warranties

- 3.1 Disclosure Letters. Prior to the execution and delivery hereof, Roslyn has delivered to NYCB, and NYCB has delivered to Roslyn, a letter (as the case may be, its Disclosure Letter) setting forth, among other things, items the disclosure of which is necessary or appropriate either in response to an express disclosure requirement contained in a provision hereof or as an exception to one or more of such party s representations or warranties contained in Section 3.3 or to one or more of its covenants contained in Article IV; provided, that (a) no such item is required to be set forth in the Disclosure Letter as an exception to a representation or warranty if its absence would not result in the related representation or warranty being deemed untrue or incorrect under the standard established by Section 3.2, and (b) the mere inclusion of an item in a Disclosure Letter as an exception to a representation or warranty shall not be deemed an admission by a party that such item represents a material exception or fact, event or circumstance or that such item is reasonably likely to result in a Material Adverse Effect (as hereinafter defined) with respect to either Roslyn or NYCB, respectively.
- 3.2 Standards. (a) No representation or warranty of any party hereto contained in Section 3.3 (other than the representations and warranties in Sections 3.3(c), 3.3(d)(i) and (ii), 3.3(g)(ii), 3.3(s) and 3.3(v) which shall be true and correct in all material respects) shall be deemed untrue or incorrect, and no party hereto shall be deemed to have breached a representation or warranty, as a consequence of the existence or absence of any fact, circumstance or event unless such fact, circumstance or event, individually or taken together with all other facts, circumstances or events inconsistent with any representation or warranty contained in Section 3.3, has had or is reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect on such party.
- (b) The term *Material Adverse Effect* means an effect which (A) is materially adverse to the business, properties, financial condition or results of operations of NYCB or Roslyn, as the context may dictate, and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (B) materially impairs the ability of NYCB or Roslyn to consummate the Merger; *provided*, *however*, that in determining whether a Material Adverse Effect has occurred there shall be excluded any effect to the extent attributable to or resulting from (i) any changes in laws, regulations or interpretations of laws or regulations generally affecting the banking or bank holding company businesses, but not uniquely relating to NYCB or Roslyn, (ii) any change in generally accepted accounting principles or regulatory accounting requirements, generally affecting the banking or bank holding company businesses, but not uniquely relating to NYCB or Roslyn, (iii) events, conditions or trends in economic, business or financial conditions generally or affecting the banking or bank holding company businesses specifically, except to the extent any such events, conditions or trends in economic, business or financial conditions have a disproportionately adverse effect upon NYCB or Roslyn, as the context may dictate, (iv) changes in national or international political or social conditions including the engagement by the United States in hostilities, whether or not pursuant to the declaration of a national emergency or war, or the occurrence of any military or terrorist attack upon or within the United States, or any of its territories, possessions or diplomatic or consular offices or upon any military installation, equipment or personnel of the United States and (v) the effects of the actions contemplated by Section 4.8.
- 3.3 Representations and Warranties of NYCB and Roslyn. Subject to and giving effect to Sections 3.1 and 3.2 and except as set forth in the relevant Disclosure Letter, NYCB hereby represents and warrants to Roslyn, and Roslyn hereby represents and warrants to NYCB, that:
- (a) Corporate Organization and Qualification. It is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware. It is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation in each jurisdiction where the properties owned, leased or operated or the business conducted by it require such qualification. It has the requisite corporate power and authority to own or lease its properties and assets and to carry on its businesses as they are now being conducted. It has made available to the other party hereto a complete and correct copy of its certificate of incorporation and bylaws, each as amended to the date hereof and as in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

A-5

## **Table of Contents**

(b) <i>Subsidiaries</i> . Each of its subsidiaries is duly organized, and (to the extent applicable) validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of incorporation or organization of such subsidiary, and is duly qualified to do business in each jurisdiction where the property owned, leased or operated, or the business conducted, by such subsidiary requires such qualification. Each of its subsidiaries has the requisite corporate power and authority to own or lease its properties and assets and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted. A true and complete list of its direct and indirect subsidiaries as of the date hereof is set forth in Section 3.3(b) of its Disclosure Letter.
(c) Capital Stock.
(i) The information in Recital A, in the case of NYCB, and in Recital B, in the case of Roslyn, is true and correct.
(ii) As of the date hereof, no shares of its common stock or preferred stock were held in treasury by it or otherwise owned by it or its subsidiaries for its own account.
(iii) All the outstanding shares of its common stock, and its preferred stock, if any, have been duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable and were not issued in violation of any preemptive or similar rights.
(iv) As of the date hereof, except as set forth in this Plan, its Stock Option Agreement and its Rights Agreement (1) there are no shares of its common stock or its preferred stock authorized and reserved for issuance, (2) it does not have any Rights issued or outstanding with respect to any of its capital stock and (3) it does not have any commitment to authorize, issue or sell any shares of its capital stock or Rights. As used herein, <i>Rights</i> means, with respect to any Person, securities or obligations convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or giving any person any right to subscribe for or acquire, or any options, calls or commitments relating to, or any stock appreciation right or other instrument the value of which is determined in whole or in part by reference to the market price or value of, shares of capital stock or earnings of such Person.
(v) All the outstanding shares of capital stock of each of its subsidiaries owned by it or a subsidiary of it have been duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and (except, with respect to bank subsidiaries, as provided under applicable state law) nonassessable, and are owned by it or a subsidiary of it free and clear of all liens, pledges, security interests, claims, proxies, preemptive or subscriptive rights or other encumbrances or restrictions of any kind or Rights ( Liens ).
(vi) In the case of NYCB only, the shares of NYCB Common Stock to be issued in the Merger, when so issued in accordance with this Plan, will have been duly authorized and validly issued and will be fully paid and nonassessable and not subject to any preemptive rights.
(d) Corporate Authority and Action.

Table of Contents 195

(i) It has the requisite corporate power and authority and has taken all corporate action necessary, including obtaining the unanimous approval of its board of directors, in order to authorize the execution and delivery of, and performance of its obligations under, this Plan and to consummate the Merger, subject only to receipt of the requisite approval of (A) in the case of Roslyn, the holders of at least a majority of the

outstanding shares of Roslyn Common Stock and (B) in the case of NYCB, the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of NYCB Common Stock. This Plan is a valid and legally binding agreement of it enforceable in accordance with the terms hereof. Its stockholders have no dissenters—or similar rights in connection with the Merger.

(ii) It has taken all action required to be taken by it in order to exempt this Plan, the Stock Option Agreement under which it is the issuer and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby from, and this Plan, such Stock Option Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby are exempt from, the requirements of (A) any moratorium, control share, fair price, supermajority, affiliate transactions, business combination or other state antitakeover laws and regulations (collectively, *Takeover Laws*), including Section 203 of the DGCL, (B) in the case of Roslyn, the

A-6

#### **Table of Contents**

provisions of Section A of Article Eighth of its certificate of incorporation (but subject to the provisions of Section C of Article Fourth of its certificate of incorporation) (C) in the case of NYCB, the provisions of Section A of Article Eighth of its certificate of incorporation (but subject to the provisions of Section C of Article Fourth of its certificate of incorporation).

- (iii) In the case of NYCB, it has taken all action, if any, necessary or appropriate so that the entering into of this Plan and the NYCB Stock Option Agreement, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (individually or in conjunction with any other event) do not and will not result in the ability of any Person to exercise any NYCB Stockholder Rights under the NYCB Rights Agreement or enable or require the NYCB Stockholder Rights to separate from the shares of NYCB Common Stock to which they are attached or to be triggered or become exercisable or unredeemable. No Separation Time or Stock Acquisition Date (as such terms are defined in the NYCB Rights Agreement) has occurred. NYCB has duly adopted an amendment to the NYCB Rights Agreement substantially in the form of *Annex B*.
- (iv) In the case of Roslyn, it has taken all action, if any, necessary or appropriate so that the entering into of this Plan and the Roslyn Stock Option Agreement, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (individually or in conjunction with any other event) do not and will not result in the ability of any Person to exercise any Roslyn Stockholder Rights under the Roslyn Rights Agreement or enable or require the Roslyn Stockholder Rights to separate from the shares of Roslyn Common Stock to which they are attached or to be triggered or become exercisable or unredeemable. No Separation Time or Stock Acquisition Date (as such terms are defined in the Roslyn Rights Agreement) has occurred. Roslyn has duly adopted an amendment to the Roslyn Rights Agreement substantially in the form of *Annex C*.
- (v) As of the date hereof, its Board has approved the Merger and this Plan and has determined to recommend them to its stockholders and has directed that the Plan be submitted to its stockholders.
- (e) Governmental Filings; No Violations.
- (i) Other than the applications, notices, reports and other filings required to be made by it in connection with the approval of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the Federal Reserve Board) under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the BHC Act), and the approvals of other federal, state and local, domestic and foreign authorities regulating financial institutions; other than as required under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (including the rules and regulations thereunder, the Exchange Act), the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (including the rules and regulations thereunder, the Securities and Blue Sky laws (together with the Exchange Act and the Securities Act, the Securities Laws), the rules of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., the NYSE and other applicable securities exchanges and self-regulatory organizations and the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act (HSR), and other than as set forth in Section 3.3(e) of its Disclosure Letter (the Regulatory Approvals), no applications, notices, reports or other filings are required to be made by it with, nor are any consents, registrations, approvals, permits or authorizations required to be obtained by it from, any governmental or regulatory authority, agency, court, commission or other entity, domestic or foreign (Governmental Entity), in connection with the execution, delivery or performance of this Plan or the NYCB Stock Option Agreement or the Roslyn Stock Option Agreement, as the case may be, by it and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.
- (ii) The execution, delivery and performance of this Plan does not and will not, and the consummation by it of any of the transactions contemplated hereby will not (individually or in conjunction with any other event), constitute or result in (A) a breach or violation of, or a default under, its certificate of incorporation or bylaws, or the comparable governing instruments of any of its subsidiaries, or (B) a breach or violation of, or a default under, or the acceleration of or the creation of a Lien (with or without the giving of notice, the lapse of time or both) pursuant to, any provision of any

A-7

#### **Table of Contents**

agreement, lease, contract, note, mortgage, indenture, arrangement or other obligation (written or oral) ( *Contracts* ) of it or any of its subsidiaries or (C) a violation of any law, rule, ordinance or regulation or judgment, decree, order, award or governmental or non-governmental permit or license to which it or any of its subsidiaries is subject, or any change in the rights or obligations of any party under any of the Contracts.

- (f) Reports and Financial Statements.
- (i) It has made available to the other party each registration statement, offering circular, report, definitive proxy statement or information statement filed, used or circulated by it under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act and state securities and Blue Sky laws with respect to periods since January 1, 2002 through the date of this Plan and will promptly deliver each such registration statement, offering circular, report, definitive proxy statement or information statement filed, used or circulated after the date hereof (collectively, whether filed before or after the date hereof, its *Reports*), each in the form (including exhibits and any amendments thereto) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the *SEC*) (or if not so filed, in the form used or circulated).
- (ii) As of their respective dates (and without giving effect to any amendments or modifications filed after the date of this Plan), each of the Reports, including the financial statements, exhibits and schedules thereto, filed, used or circulated prior to the date hereof complied (and each of the Reports filed after the date of this Plan, will comply) in all material respects with applicable Securities Laws and did not (or in the case of Reports filed after the date of this Plan, will not) contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
- (iii) Each of its consolidated statements of condition or balance sheets included in or incorporated by reference into its Reports, including the related notes and schedules, fairly presented (or, in the case of Reports prepared after the date of this Plan, will fairly present) the consolidated financial position of it and its subsidiaries as of the date of such statement of condition or balance sheet and each of the consolidated statements of income, cash flows and changes in stockholders equity included in or incorporated by reference into its Reports, including any related notes and schedules, fairly presented (or, in the case of Reports prepared after the date of this Plan, will fairly present) the consolidated results of operations, retained earnings and cash flows, as the case may be, of it and its subsidiaries for the periods set forth therein (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments), in each case in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied during the periods involved, except as may be noted therein. Collectively, its foregoing consolidated statements of condition or balance sheets, statements of income, cash flows and stockholders equity are referred to as its *Financial Statements*.
- (g) Absence of Certain Events and Changes. Since December 31, 2002, except as disclosed in its Reports filed on or prior to the date hereof, (i) in the case of Roslyn only, it and its subsidiaries have conducted their respective businesses only in the ordinary and usual course of such businesses, and (ii) there has not been any change or development or combination of changes or developments which, individually or in the aggregate, has resulted in, or is reasonably likely to result in, a Material Adverse Effect on it.
- (h) Compliance with Laws and Other Matters. It and each of its subsidiaries:
- (i) is in compliance, in the conduct of its business, with all applicable federal, state, local and foreign statutes, laws, regulations, ordinances, rules, judgments, orders or decrees applicable thereto or to the employees conducting such businesses, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act, the Community Reinvestment Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism (USA PATRIOT ACT) Act of 2001, all other applicable fair lending laws or other laws relating to discrimination and the Bank Secrecy Act, and, as of the date hereof, each of its subsidiaries that is an insured depository institution has a Community Reinvestment Act rating of satisfactory or better;

A-8

#### **Table of Contents**

- (ii) has all permits, licenses, franchises, certificates of authority, orders, and approvals of, and has made all filings, applications, and registrations with, Governmental Entities that are required in order to permit it or such subsidiary to carry on its business as currently conducted;
- (iii) has, since December 31, 2000, received no notification or communication from any Governmental Entity (including the Federal Reserve Board and any other bank, insurance or securities regulatory authority) (A) asserting that it or any of its subsidiaries is not in compliance with any statutes, regulations or ordinances, (B) threatening to revoke any permit, license, franchise, certificate of authority or other governmental authorization, or (C) threatening or contemplating revocation or limitation of, or which would have the effect of revoking or limiting, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ( FDIC ) deposit insurance; and
- (iv) is not a party to or subject to any order, decree, agreement, memorandum of understanding or similar arrangement with, or a commitment letter, supervisory letter or similar submission to, any Governmental Entity charged with the supervision or regulation of depository institutions or engaged in the insurance of deposits (including, the FDIC) or the supervision or regulation of it or any of its subsidiaries and neither it nor any of its subsidiaries has been advised by any such Governmental Entity that such Governmental Entity is contemplating issuing or requesting (or is considering the appropriateness of issuing or requesting) any such order, decree, agreement, memorandum of understanding, commitment letter, supervisory letter or similar submission.
- (i) *Litigation*. There are no criminal or administrative investigations or hearings of, before or by any Governmental Entity, or civil, criminal or administrative actions, suits, claims or proceedings of, before or by any Person (including any Governmental Entity) pending or, to its knowledge, threatened, against or affecting it or any of its subsidiaries (including under the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act, the Community Reinvestment Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act or any other fair lending law or other law relating to discrimination, or the Bank Secrecy Act).
- (j) Taxes. All federal, state, local and foreign Tax (as hereinafter defined) returns, including all information returns, required to be filed by or on behalf of it or any of its subsidiaries have been timely filed or requests for extensions have been timely filed and any such extension has been granted and has not expired, and all such filed returns are complete and accurate in all material respects. It has made available to the other party true and correct copies of the United States federal income Tax returns filed by it or its subsidiaries for each of the three most recent fiscal years ended on or before December 31, 2002. Except as disclosed in its Reports, all Taxes attributable to it or any of its subsidiaries that are or were due or payable (without regard to whether such Taxes have been assessed) have been paid in full or have been adequately provided for on its consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of earnings or income (in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles). As of the date of this Plan and except as disclosed in its Reports, there is no outstanding audit examination, deficiency, refund or other tax litigation or outstanding waivers or agreements extending the applicable statute of limitations for the assessment or collection of any Taxes for any period with respect to any Taxes of it or its subsidiaries. All Taxes due with respect to completed and settled examinations or concluded litigation relating to it or any of its subsidiaries have been paid in full or have been recorded on its or such subsidiary s balance sheet and consolidated statement of earnings or income (in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles). Neither it nor any of its subsidiaries is a party to a Tax sharing, indemnification or similar agreement or any agreement pursuant to which it or any of its subsidiaries has any obligation to any party (other than it or one of its subsidiaries) with respect to Taxes. The proper and accurate amounts have been withheld from all employees, creditors, or third parties (and timely paid to the appropriate Governmental Entity or set aside in an account for such purposes) for all periods through the Closing Date in compliance with all Tax withholding provisions of applicable federal, state, local and foreign laws (including income, social security and employment tax withholding for all types of compensation). Neither it nor any of its subsidiaries has been a party to any distribution occurring during the last three (3) years in which the parties to such distribution treated the distribution as one to which Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code applied. Neither it nor any of its subsidiaries is a party to any listed transaction as defined in Treasury Regulation

A-9

#### **Table of Contents**

Section 1.6011-4(b)(2). No Liens for Taxes exist with respect to it or its subsidiaries, except for statutory Liens for Taxes not yet due and payable or that are being contested in good faith and reserved for (in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles). The term *Tax* includes any tax or similar governmental charge, impost or levy (including income taxes, franchise taxes, transfer taxes or fees, stamp taxes, sales taxes, use taxes, excise taxes, ad valorem taxes, withholding taxes, employee withholding taxes, worker s compensation, payroll taxes, unemployment insurance, social security, minimum taxes or windfall profits taxes), together with any related liabilities, penalties, fines, additions to tax or interest, imposed by any federal, state or local, domestic or foreign government or subdivision or agency thereof.

- (k) Internal Controls. None of its or its subsidiaries records, systems, controls, data or information are recorded, stored, maintained, operated or otherwise wholly or partly dependent on or held by any means (including any electronic, mechanical or photographic process, whether computerized or not) which (including all means of access thereto and therefrom) are not under the exclusive ownership and direct control of it or its subsidiaries or accountants except as would not reasonably be expected to have a materially adverse effect on the system of internal accounting controls described in the next sentence. It and its subsidiaries have devised and maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
- (1) Insurance. It and its subsidiaries are insured with reputable insurers against such risks and in such amounts as its management reasonably has determined to be prudent in accordance with industry practices.
- (m) *Books and Records*. Its and its subsidiaries books and records have been fully, properly and accurately maintained in all material respects, and there are no material inaccuracies or discrepancies of any kind contained or reflected therein, and they fairly present their financial position.
- (n) Labor Matters. Neither it nor any of its subsidiaries is a party to, or is bound by, any collective bargaining agreement, contract or other agreement or understanding with a labor union or labor organization, nor is it or any of its subsidiaries the subject of any proceeding asserting that it or any such subsidiary has committed an unfair labor practice or seeking to compel it or such subsidiary to bargain with any labor organization as to wages or conditions of employment, nor is there any strike involving it or any of its subsidiaries pending or, to its knowledge, threatened, nor is it aware of any activity involving its or any of its subsidiaries employees seeking to certify a collective bargaining unit or engaging in any other organizational activity.
- (o) Employee Benefits. (i) Paragraph 3.3(o)(i) of its Disclosure Letter sets forth (in case of NYCB only, as of the date of this Plan) a list of each employee benefit plan , as such term is defined in Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ( ERISA ), and each bonus, deferred compensation, pension, retirement, profit-sharing, thrift, savings, employee stock ownership, stock bonus, stock purchase, restricted stock and stock option plan, employment or severance contract and all other employee benefit plans that cover current or former officers or employees ( Employees ) or current or former directors of it and its subsidiaries, including all amendments, supplements or other related documents thereto (all of the foregoing being its Compensation Plans ). In the case of Roslyn only, it has made available true and complete copies of each Compensation Plan as in effect on the date hereof, including, but not limited to, any trust instruments, insurance contracts and, with respect to any employee stock ownership plan, loan agreements forming a part of any Compensation Plans, and all amendments, supplements or related documents thereto. In the case of NYCB only, it has heretofore made available to the other party true and complete copies of each Compensation Plan as in effect on the date hereof, including, but not limited to, any trust instruments, insurance contracts and, with respect to any employee stock ownership plan, loan agreements forming a part of any Compensation Plans, and all amendments thereto.
- (ii) All of its Compensation Plans are in substantial compliance with all applicable laws, including ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code. Each of its Compensation Plans which is an employee pension benefit plan within the meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA ( *Pension Plan* ) and that is

intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code has received a favorable determination letter

A-10

#### **Table of Contents**

from the Internal Revenue Service covering all tax law changes prior to the Economic Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001 or has applied to the Internal Revenue Service (the *IRS*) for such favorable determination letter within the applicable remedial amendment period under Section 401(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, and it is not aware of any circumstances likely to result in the loss of the qualification of such Compensation Plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. As of the date hereof, there is no pending or, to its knowledge, threatened litigation relating to its Compensation Plans. Neither it nor any of its subsidiaries has engaged in a transaction with respect to any Compensation Plan subject to ERISA (an *ERISA Plan*) that, assuming the taxable period of such transaction expired as of the date hereof, could subject it or any of its subsidiaries to a tax or penalty imposed by either Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code or Section 502(i) of ERISA in an amount that would be material. Neither it nor any of its subsidiaries has incurred nor reasonably expects to incur a material tax or penalty imposed by Section 4980F of the Internal Revenue Code or Section 502 of ERISA.

- (iii) No liability under Subtitle C or D of Title IV of ERISA has been or is expected to be incurred by it or any of its subsidiaries with respect to any ongoing, frozen or terminated single-employer plan , within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(15) of ERISA, currently or formerly maintained by any of them, or the single-employer plan of any entity ( *ERISA Affiliate Plan* ) which is considered one employer with it under Section 4001 of ERISA or Section 414 of the Internal Revenue Code ( *ERISA Affiliate* ). It and its subsidiaries have neither contributed to nor been obligated to contribute to any multiemployer plan within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA, regardless of whether based on contributions of an ERISA Affiliate. No notice of a reportable event , within the meaning of Section 4043 of ERISA, for which the 30-day reporting requirement has not been waived or extended, other than pursuant to Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation ( *PBGC* ) Reg. Section 4043.66, has been required to be filed for any of its Pension Plans or by any of its ERISA Affiliates within the 12-month period ending on the date hereof, or will be required to be filed as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Plan.
- (iv) All contributions required to be made by it and its subsidiaries under the terms of any of its Compensation Plans, as of the date hereof, have been timely made or have been reflected on its Audited Financial Statements or Preliminary Financial Statements. Neither any Pension Plans nor any single-employer plan of an ERISA Affiliate has an accumulated funding deficiency (whether or not waived) within the meaning of Section 412 of the Internal Revenue Code or Section 302 of ERISA and no ERISA Affiliate has an outstanding funding waiver. It is not reasonably anticipated that required minimum contributions to any Pension Plan under Section 412 of the Internal Revenue Code will be materially increased by application of Section 412(l) of the Internal Revenue Code. None of it, its subsidiaries or its ERISA Affiliates has provided, or is required to provide, security to any Pension Plan pursuant to Section 401(a)(29) of the Internal Revenue Code.
- (v) Under each Pension Plan which is a single-employer plan, as of the last day of the most recent plan year ended prior to the date hereof, the actuarially determined present value of all benefit liabilities , within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(16) of ERISA (as determined on the basis of the actuarial assumptions contained in the most recent actuarial valuation of such Pension Plan), did not exceed the then current value of the assets of such Pension Plan, and there has been no material change in the financial condition of such Pension Plan since the last day of the most recent plan year.
- (vi) Neither it nor its subsidiaries have any obligations for retiree health and life benefits under any ERISA Plan. It or its subsidiaries may amend or terminate any such plan at any time without incurring any liability thereunder other than in respect of claims incurred prior to such amendment or termination.
- (vii) There has been no amendment to, announcement by it or any of its subsidiaries relating to, or change in employee participation or coverage under, any Compensation Plan which would increase materially the expense of maintaining such Compensation Plan above the level of the expense incurred therefor for the most recent fiscal year. Neither the execution of this Plan, stockholder approval of this Plan nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby (individually or in conjunction with any other event) will (A) accelerate the time of payment or vesting or result in any payment or funding (through

A-11

a grantor trust or otherwise) of compensation or benefits or increase in the amounts payable or result in any other material obligation pursuant to any Compensation Plan, (B) limit or restrict its right or, after the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, the right of NYCB to merge, amend or terminate any Compensation Plan, (C) entitle any Employee to severance pay or any increase in severance pay upon any termination of employment after the date hereof, (D) result in any payment under any Compensation Plan which would not be deductible under Section 162(m) or Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code or (E) cause it or any of its subsidiaries to record additional compensation expense on its income statement with respect to any outstanding stock option or other equity-based award.

- (p) Environmental Matters. Neither the conduct nor operation of it or its subsidiaries nor any condition of any property presently or previously owned, leased or operated by any of them (including in a fiduciary or agency capacity), or on which any of them holds a Lien, violates or violated Environmental Laws (as hereinafter defined) and no condition has existed or event has occurred with respect to any of them or any such property that, with notice or the passage of time, or both, is reasonably likely to result in liability under Environmental Laws. Neither it nor any of its subsidiaries has received any notice from any person or entity that it or its subsidiaries or the operation or condition of any property ever owned, leased, operated, or held as collateral or in a fiduciary capacity by any of them are or were in violation of or otherwise are alleged to have liability under Environmental Law, including, but not limited to, responsibility (or potential responsibility) for the cleanup or other remediation of any pollutants, contaminants, or hazardous or toxic wastes, substances or materials at, on, beneath, or originating from any such property. As used herein, Environmental Laws means all applicable local, state and federal environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, including the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, the Clean Water Act, the Federal Clean Air Act, and the Occupational Safety and Health Act, each as amended, regulations promulgated thereunder, and state counterparts.
- (q) Agreements. (i) Except for this Plan and the Stock Option Agreements, it and its subsidiaries (in the case of NYCB only, as of the date of this Plan) are not a party to or bound by (a) any material Contract (as defined in Item 601(b)(10) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act) to be performed after the date hereof that has not been filed with or incorporated by reference in its Reports filed on or prior to the date hereof; (b) any Contract containing covenants that limit the ability of it or any of its subsidiaries to compete in any line of business or with any person, or that involve any restriction of the geographic area in which, or method by which, it or any of its subsidiaries may carry on its business (other than as may be required by law or any regulatory agency); (c) in the case of Roslyn only, any Contract that involves performance of services or delivery of goods or materials to or by it or any of its subsidiaries of an amount or value in excess of \$100,000; (d) in the case of Roslyn only, any Contract that was not entered into in the ordinary course of business and that involves expenditures or receipts of it or any of its subsidiaries in excess of \$100,000; (e) in the case of Roslyn only, any lease, rental or occupancy agreement, license, installment and conditional sale agreement or other Contract affecting the ownership of, leasing of, title to, use of, or any leasehold or other interest in, any real or personal property having a value or providing for aggregate payments in excess of \$100,000; (f) in the case of Roslyn only, any Contract for capital expenditures in excess of \$100,000; or (g) in the case of Roslyn only, any joint venture, partnership or similar Contract providing for the sharing of profits, losses, costs or liabilities by it or any of its subsidiaries with any other Person.
- (ii) None of it or any of its subsidiaries is, with or without the giving of notice or lapse of time or both, in default under any material Contract.
- (r) *Knowledge as to Conditions*. As of the date of this Plan, it knows of no reason (i) why the Regulatory Approvals should not be obtained in time for the Closing to take place prior to the Termination Date, or (ii) why the opinions of tax counsel referred to in Section 5.2(c), in the case of NYCB, and in Section 5.3(c), in the case of Roslyn, will not be able to be obtained on the Closing Date.
- (s) Fairness Opinions. As of the date of this Plan, it has received the written opinion or opinions, dated the date of this Plan, of its financial advisor, Citigroup Global Markets, Inc., in the case of NYCB, and

A-12

### **Table of Contents**

of its financial advisors, Goldman Sachs & Co. and Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P., in the case of Roslyn, to the effect that the Exchange Ratio is fair, from a financial point of view, to, in the case of NYCB, NYCB and in the case of Roslyn, the holders of Roslyn Common Stock.

- (t) *Brokers and Finders*. None of it, its subsidiaries or any of their officers, directors or employees has employed any broker or finder or incurred any liability for any brokerage fees, commissions or finder s fees in connection with the transactions contemplated herein, except that NYCB has retained Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. as its financial adviser and Roslyn has retained Goldman Sachs & Co. and Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P. as its financial advisers, in each case pursuant to engagement letters, true and correct copies of which have been set forth in its respective Disclosure Letter.
- (u) Risk Management Instruments. All interest rate swaps, caps, floors, option agreements, futures and forward contracts and other similar risk management arrangements (collectively, the Risk Management Instruments), whether entered into for its own account, or for the account of one or more of its subsidiaries or its customers, were entered into (i) in accordance with prudent business practices and all applicable laws, rules, regulations and regulatory policies and (ii) with counterparties believed to be financially responsible at the time; and each of the Risk Management Instruments constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of, in the case of representations and warranties made by NYCB, NYCB or one of its subsidiaries or, in the case of representations and warranties made by Roslyn, Roslyn or one of its subsidiaries, enforceable in accordance with the terms of such Risk Management Instrument (except as enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent transfer and similar laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors—rights or by general equity principles), and is in full force and effect. It and each of its subsidiaries have duly performed in all material respects all of their material obligations under Risk Management Instruments to the extent such obligations to perform have accrued; and, to its knowledge, there are no material breaches, violations or defaults, or allegations or assertions of any breaches, violations or defaults, by any party thereunder.
- (v) *Employment and Noncompetition Agreements*. It has entered into certain employment agreements and noncompetition agreements as set forth in Roslyn s Disclosure Letter, each of which has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by it and none of which shall be modified, amended or supplemented without the prior written consent of the other party.

#### ARTICLE IV

#### Covenants

- 4.1 Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time. Each of NYCB and Roslyn agrees, as to itself and its subsidiaries, that, except insofar as the other party shall otherwise consent in writing (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) or except as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Plan or the Stock Option Agreements or as set forth in paragraph 4.1 of its Disclosure Letter:
- (a) In the case of Roslyn only, the business of it and its subsidiaries will be conducted only in the ordinary and usual course and, to the extent consistent therewith, it and its subsidiaries will use all reasonable best efforts to preserve intact their business organizations and assets and maintain their rights, franchises and existing relations with customers, suppliers, employees and business associates.
- (b) In the case of NYCB only, it and its subsidiaries will use all reasonable best efforts to preserve intact their business organizations and assets and maintain their rights, franchises and existing relations with customers, suppliers, employees and business associates.

(c) Except as required by law, it and its Subsidiaries will not knowingly take any action that would (i) adversely affect the ability of any of them to obtain (A) any Regulatory Approval or (B) the opinions of tax counsel referred to, in the case of NYCB, in Section 5.2(c) and, in the case of Roslyn, in Section 5.3(c), or (ii) adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Plan or the Stock Option Agreements or (iii) reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; *provided*, *however*, that nothing contained

A-13

#### **Table of Contents**

herein shall limit the ability of Roslyn to exercise the NYCB Stock Option Agreement and NYCB to exercise the Roslyn Stock Option Agreement, as the case may be.

- (d) It will not (i) in the case of Roslyn only, sell or pledge, agree to sell or pledge, or permit any Lien to exist on, any stock owned by it or any of its material subsidiaries as of the date hereof; (ii) amend or restate its certificate of incorporation or bylaws except, in the case of NYCB and its subsidiaries only, to authorize additional common or preferred shares, to designate the terms of any preferred shares or to provide for multiple chairmen of the Board; (iii) split, combine or reclassify any outstanding capital stock; (iv) except as permitted by Section 4.2, split, declare, set aside or pay any dividend or distribution payable in cash, stock or other property with respect to any of its capital stock; or (v) in the case of Roslyn only, repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire, or permit any subsidiary to purchase or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, any shares of its capital stock or any securities convertible into or exercisable for any shares of its capital stock, other than in connection with the exercise of any Rights it has granted and has outstanding as of the date hereof or issued hereafter as permitted by this Plan in accordance with the terms thereof
- (e) In the case of Roslyn only, neither it nor any of its subsidiaries will (i) issue, sell, pledge, dispose of or encumber, or authorize or propose the issuance, sale, pledge, disposition or encumbrance of, any shares of, or securities convertible or exchangeable for, or options, warrants, calls, commitments or rights of any kind to acquire, any shares of its capital stock of any class, except pursuant to this Plan, the Roslyn Stock Option Agreement, or in connection with the exercise of Rights outstanding as of the date hereof or issued thereafter as permitted by this Plan; (ii) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, transfer, lease, license, guarantee, sell, mortgage, pledge or dispose of any other material property or assets or encumber any property or assets other than to a direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of it; or (iii) authorize capital expenditures other than in the ordinary and usual course of business consistent with past practice.
- (f) Except for internal reorganizations involving existing subsidiaries, or in satisfaction of debts previously contracted in good faith, neither it nor any of its subsidiaries will make any material acquisition of, or investment in, assets or stock of any other Person (*provided*, in the case of NYCB, that the foregoing shall apply only to the extent such material acquisition or investment has or would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on NYCB).
- (g) In the case of Roslyn only, other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, neither it nor any of its subsidiaries will incur any indebtedness for borrowed money or assume, guarantee, endorse or otherwise as an accommodation become responsible for the obligations of any other Person or make any loan or advance.
- (h) In the case of Roslyn only, neither it nor any of its subsidiaries will (i) grant any increase in compensation or benefits to its employees, except as required by contractual obligations in effect as of the date hereof and set forth in Roslyn s Disclosure Letter or appoint any new or existing employee to the position of Vice President or higher; (ii) pay any bonus except as required by contractual obligations in effect as of the date hereof that are set forth in Roslyn s Disclosure Letter; (iii) grant any severance or termination pay to any director or employee except as consistent with past practice or required under contractual obligations in effect as of the date hereof that are set forth in Roslyn s Disclosure Letter; (iv) enter into or amend any employment, severance or similar or related agreement with any director or employee; (v) grant any increase in fees or other increases in compensation or other benefits to any of its present or former directors; or (vi) effect any change in retirement benefits for any class of its employees (unless such change is required by applicable law or, in the opinion of counsel, is necessary or advisable to maintain the tax qualification of any plan under which the retirement benefits are provided).
- (i) In the case of Roslyn only, except as may be required to satisfy contractual obligations existing as of the date hereof and set forth in Roslyn s Disclosure Letter and as required by applicable law, neither it nor any of its subsidiaries will establish, adopt, enter into or make any new, or amend any existing, collective bargaining, bonus, profit sharing, thrift, compensation, stock option, restricted stock, pension, retirement, employee stock ownership, deferred compensation, employment, termination, severance or other plan, agreement, trust or fund for the benefit of

any directors or employees.

A-14

#### **Table of Contents**

- (j) Neither it nor any of its subsidiaries will implement or adopt any change in its accounting principles, practices or methods, other than as may be required by generally accepted accounting principles or regulatory accounting principles or applicable law.
- (k) In the case of Roslyn only, except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, settle any claim, action or proceeding against it, except for any claim, action or proceeding which involves solely money damages in an amount, individually or in the aggregate for all such settlements, that is not material to Roslyn or NYCB and each of their respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole, and that does not involve or create precedent for claims, actions or proceedings that are reasonably likely to be material to Roslyn or NYCB and each of their respective subsidiaries taken as a whole.
- (l) Neither it nor any of its subsidiaries will authorize or enter into an agreement to take any of the actions referred to in paragraphs (a) through (k) above.
- 4.2 Dividends. Each of NYCB and Roslyn agrees that, from and after the date hereof until the Effective Time, (i) direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of each of NYCB and Roslyn may (to the extent legally and contractually permitted to do so), but shall not be obligated to, declare and pay dividends in cash, stock or other property; (ii) Roslyn may pay quarterly dividends on outstanding shares of Roslyn Common Stock at a rate not to exceed \$0.155 per share per quarter, on substantially the same record and payment date schedules as have been utilized in the past; and (iii) NYCB may pay quarterly dividends on outstanding shares of NYCB Common Stock at a rate not to exceed \$0.30 per share per quarter, on substantially the same record and payment date schedules as have been utilized in the past.

The Board of Directors of Roslyn shall cause its regular quarterly dividend record dates and payment dates for Roslyn Common Stock to be the same as NYCB s regular quarterly dividend record dates and payment dates for NYCB Common Stock (i.e., Roslyn shall move its next dividend record and payment dates to August 5 and August 15, respectively), and Roslyn shall not thereafter change its regular dividend payment dates and record dates.

4.3 Acquisition Proposals. Each of NYCB and Roslyn agrees that neither it nor any of its subsidiaries nor any of its respective officers and directors or the officers and directors of any of its subsidiaries shall, and it shall direct and use all reasonable best efforts to cause its employees and agents, including any investment banker, attorney or accountant retained by it or by any of its subsidiaries (collectively, its Representatives ) not to, initiate, solicit or encourage, directly or indirectly, any inquiries or the making or implementation of any Acquisition Proposal, or, except to the extent that the Board of Directors of NYCB or Roslyn, as the case may be, determines, in good faith, after consultation with its outside financial and legal advisors, that the failure to do so would breach its fiduciary obligations under applicable law, engage in any negotiations concerning, or provide any confidential information or data to, or have any discussions with, any Person relating to an Acquisition Proposal or otherwise facilitate any effort or attempt to implement or make an Acquisition Proposal including the waiver of or amendment to the NYCB Rights Agreement or the Roslyn Rights Agreement, as the case may be, in respect of an Acquisition Proposal. Acquisition Proposal means any proposal or offer with respect to the following involving NYCB or Roslyn or any of their material subsidiaries: (i) any merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination or other similar transaction, provided that, in the case of NYCB only, any such merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination or other similar transaction involves the conversion of NYCB s outstanding shares of common stock into shares, securities or other property of an unaffiliated third party and that immediately after giving effect thereto, NYCB s stockholders own less than 50% of the voting stock of the resulting entity s (or its ultimate parent s, if appropriate) voting shares; (ii) any sale, lease, exchange, pledge, transfer or other disposition of 35% or more of its consolidated assets or liabilities in a single transaction or series of transactions; (iii) any tender offer or exchange offer for 10% or more of the outstanding shares of its capital stock; or (iv) any public announcement of a proposal, plan or intention to do any of the foregoing or any agreement to engage in any of the foregoing, other than the Merger provided for in this Plan. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, each of NYCB and Roslyn, as the case may be, shall (i) immediately advise the other party hereto, orally and in writing, of (A) the receipt by it (or any of the other persons referred to above) of any Acquisition Proposal, or any inquiry which could reasonably be expected to lead to an Acquisition

A-15

#### **Table of Contents**

Proposal, (B) the material terms and conditions of such proposal or inquiry (whether written or oral), and (C) the identity of the person making any such proposal or inquiry and (ii) keep the other party hereto fully informed of the status and details of any such proposal or inquiry and any developments with respect thereto. Each of NYCB and Roslyn shall use its reasonable best efforts to enforce any existing confidentiality or standstill agreements in accordance with the terms thereof.

- 4.4 Stockholder Approval. (a) NYCB agrees to take, in accordance with applicable law and its certificate of incorporation and bylaws, all action necessary to convene a meeting of its stockholders (including any adjournment or postponement, the NYCB Meeting), as promptly as practicable after the Registration Statement (as herein defined) is declared effective to consider and vote upon the adoption and approval of this Plan and the Merger. The Board of Directors of NYCB shall use its reasonable best efforts to obtain from its stockholders the votes in favor of the adoption of this Agreement required by the DGCL and in favor of the issuance of shares of NYCB Common Stock pursuant hereto required by the rules of the NYSE, in each case required to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.
- (b) Roslyn agrees to take, in accordance with applicable law and its certificate of incorporation and bylaws, all action necessary to convene a meeting of its stockholders (including any adjournment or postponement, the *Roslyn Meeting*), as promptly as practicable after the Registration Statement is declared effective to consider and vote upon the adoption and approval of this Plan and the Merger and the other matters contemplated hereby. The Board of Directors of Roslyn shall use its reasonable best efforts to obtain from its stockholders the votes in favor of the adoption of this Agreement required by the DGCL, required to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.
- 4.5 Filings; Other Actions. (a) Each of NYCB and Roslyn agrees to cooperate in the preparation of a registration statement on Form S-4 (the Registration Statement ) to be filed by NYCB with the SEC in connection with the issuance of NYCB Common Stock in the Merger (including the joint proxy statement and prospectus and other proxy solicitation materials of Roslyn and NYCB constituting a part thereof (the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus )). NYCB agrees to use all reasonable efforts to cause the Registration Statement to be declared effective under the Securities Act as promptly as practicable after filing thereof. NYCB also agrees to use all reasonable best efforts to obtain all necessary state securities law or Blue Sky permits and approvals required to carry out the transactions contemplated by this Plan, and each of Roslyn and NYCB agrees to furnish all information concerning it and the holders of its capital stock as may be reasonably requested in connection with any such action.
- (b) Each of NYCB and Roslyn agrees to cooperate with the other and, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Plan, use reasonable best efforts to promptly prepare and file all necessary documentation, to effect all necessary applications, notices, petitions, filings and other documents, and to obtain as promptly as practicable all necessary permits, consents, orders, approvals and authorizations of, or any exemption by, all third parties and Governmental Entities necessary or advisable to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Plan, including the Regulatory Approvals. Each of NYCB and Roslyn shall have the right to review in advance, and to the extent practicable each will consult with the other, in each case subject to applicable laws relating to the exchange of information, with respect to all the material information relating to the other party, and any of their respective subsidiaries, which appears in any material filing made with, or written materials submitted to, any third party or any Governmental Entity in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Plan. In exercising the foregoing right, each of the parties hereto agrees to act reasonably and as promptly as practicable. Each party hereto agrees that it will consult with the other party hereto with respect to the obtaining of all permits, consents, approvals and authorizations of all third parties and Governmental Entities necessary or advisable to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Plan and each party will keep the other party apprised of the status of matters relating to completion of the transactions contemplated hereby.
- (c) Each party agrees, upon request, to furnish the other party with all information concerning itself, its subsidiaries, directors, officers and stockholders and such other matters as may be reasonably necessary or advisable in connection with the Registration Statement or Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus or any other statement, filing, notice or application made by or on behalf of such other party or any of its subsidiaries to any Governmental Entity in connection with the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Plan.

A-16

- 4.6 Information Supplied. Each of Roslyn and NYCB agrees, as to itself and its subsidiaries, that none of the information supplied or to be supplied by it for inclusion or incorporation by reference in (a) the Registration Statement will, at the time the Registration Statement and each amendment and supplement thereto, if any, become effective under the Securities Act, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, and (b) the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus and any amendment or supplement thereto, at the date of mailing to stockholders and at the times of the Roslyn Meeting and the NYCB Meeting, will contain any statement which, in light of the circumstances under which such statement is made, will be false or misleading with respect to any material fact, or will omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein not false or misleading or necessary to correct any statement in any earlier statement in the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus or any amendment or supplement thereto. Each of Roslyn and NYCB further agrees that if it shall become aware prior to the Effective Time of any information furnished by it that would cause any of the statements in the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus or the Registration Statement to be false or misleading, to promptly inform the other party thereof and to take the necessary steps to correct the Joint Party Statement/Prospectus or the Registration Statement. Neither the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus or the Registration Statement shall be filed, and, prior to the termination of this Plan, no amendment or supplement to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus or the Registration Statement shall be filed, by NYCB or Roslyn without consultation with the other party and its counsel.
- 4.7 Access and Investigations. (a) Upon reasonable notice, each of NYCB and Roslyn agrees to (and shall cause each of its subsidiaries and affiliates to) afford the other party and its Representatives access, during normal business hours throughout the period until the Closing Date, to its properties, books, contracts and records and, during such period, shall (and shall cause each of its subsidiaries and affiliates to) furnish promptly to the other party all material information concerning its business, properties and personnel as may reasonably be requested. Neither Roslyn nor NYCB nor any of their respective subsidiaries and affiliates shall be required to provide access to or to disclose information where such access or disclosure would violate or prejudice the rights of such party s customers, jeopardize the attorney-client privilege of the institution in possession or control of such information or contravene any law, rule regulation, order, judgment or decree or any binding agreement entered into prior to the date of this Plan. The parties hereto will make appropriate substitute disclosure arrangements under circumstances in which restrictions of the preceding sentence apply.
- (b) Each party agrees, and will cause its respective subsidiaries, affiliates and Representatives not to use any information obtained from the other party (or such other party subsidiaries, affiliates or Representatives), pursuant to this Section 4.7 or otherwise, for any purpose unrelated to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Plan. Each party will keep, and will cause its subsidiaries, affiliates and Representatives to keep, all information and documents obtained from the other party pursuant to this Section 4.7 or during the investigation leading up to the execution of this Plan confidential unless such information (i) becomes available to such party from other sources not known by such party to be bound by a confidentiality obligation, or (ii) is or becomes readily ascertainable from publicly available information or trade sources (other than as a result of a breach of this Agreement by such party or its subsidiaries, affiliates or Representatives). In the event that this Plan is terminated or the transactions contemplated by this Plan shall otherwise fail to be consummated, each party shall promptly cause all copies of documents or extracts thereof containing information and data as to another party hereto to be returned to the party which furnished the same, or (at such party soption) confirm in writing to such party that it has completely destroyed all such copies, documents, extracts, information and data.
- (c) Notwithstanding anything contained herein or in any other agreement to the contrary, each party is permitted to disclose the tax treatment and tax structure of the Merger at any time on or after the earliest to occur of (1) the date of public announcement of discussions relating to the Merger, (2) the date of public announcement of the Merger and (3) the date of execution of this Plan (it being understood by the parties that a public announcement shall mean a public announcement permitted by this Plan (or otherwise permitted by agreement of the parties) as distinguished from a third party announcement or a leak). This Plan shall not be construed to limit in any way either party s ability to consult any tax advisor regarding the tax treatment or tax structure of the

A-17

#### **Table of Contents**

Merger. These provisions are meant to be interpreted so as to prevent the Merger from being treated as offered under conditions of confidentiality within the meaning of the Internal Revenue Code and the Treasury Regulations thereunder.

- 4.8 Certain Modifications; Restructuring Charges. Roslyn and NYCB agree to consult with respect to their loan, litigation and real estate valuation policies and practices (including loan classifications and levels of reserves) and Roslyn shall make such modifications or changes to its policies and practices, if any, and at such date prior to the Effective Time, as NYCB shall reasonably request. Roslyn and NYCB shall also consult with respect to the character, amount and timing of restructuring charges to be taken by each of them in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby and shall take such charges in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, as NYCB shall reasonably request. No party s representations, warranties and covenants contained in this Plan shall be deemed to be untrue or breached in any respect for any purpose as a consequence of any modifications or changes to such policies and practices which may be undertaken on account of this Section 4.8.
- 4.9 Takeover Laws; No Rights Triggered. (i) If any Takeover Law may become, or may purport to be, applicable to the transactions contemplated hereby or by the Stock Option Agreements, each of NYCB and Roslyn and the members of their respective Boards of Directors will grant such approvals and take such actions as are necessary (other than any action requiring the approval of its stockholders other than as contemplated by Section 4.4) so that the transactions contemplated by this Plan or by the Stock Option Agreements may be consummated as promptly as practicable on the terms contemplated hereby and otherwise act to eliminate or minimize the effects of any Takeover Law on any of the transactions contemplated by this Plan.
- (ii) In the case of NYCB, it shall take all actions necessary or required to ensure that the entering into this Plan and into the NYCB Stock Option Agreement, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will not cause Roslyn or any affiliate of Roslyn to become an Acquiring Person for purposes of the NYCB Rights Agreement as amended pursuant to Section 3.3(d)(iii), and a Distribution Date under the NYCB Rights Agreement as amended pursuant to Section 3.3(d)(iii) will not occur, and the NYCB Rights will not become separable, distributable, unredeemable or exercisable.
- (iii) In the case of Roslyn, it shall take all actions necessary or required to ensure that the entering into this Plan and into the Roslyn Stock Option Agreement, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will not cause NYCB or any affiliate of NYCB to become an Acquiring Person for purposes of the Roslyn Rights Agreement as amended pursuant to Section 3.3(d)(iii), and a Distribution Date under the Roslyn Rights Agreement as amended pursuant to Section 3.3(d)(iii) will not occur, and the Roslyn Rights will not become separable, distributable, unredeemable or exercisable.
- 4.10 *Options*. (a) *Conversion of Options*. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of any holder of an option, each option granted by Roslyn to purchase shares of Roslyn Common Stock (any such option to purchase shares of Roslyn Common Stock being referred to as a *Roslyn Option* or the *Roslyn Options*) that is outstanding and unexercised, whether vested or unvested, immediately prior thereto shall be converted into an option (each, a *New Option*) to purchase such number of shares of NYCB Common Stock at an exercise price determined as provided below (and otherwise having the same duration and other terms as the original Roslyn Option):
- (i) the number of shares of NYCB Common Stock to be subject to the New Option shall be equal to the product of (A) the number of shares of Roslyn Common Stock purchasable upon exercise of the original Roslyn Option and (B) the Exchange Ratio, the product being rounded to the nearest whole share; and

(ii) the exercise price per share of NYCB Common Stock under the New Option shall be equal to (A) the exercise price per share of Roslyn Common Stock under the original Roslyn Option divided by (B) the Exchange Ratio, rounded to the nearest cent.

With respect to any Roslyn Options that are incentive stock options (as defined in Section 422(b) of the Internal Revenue Code), the foregoing adjustments shall be effected in a manner consistent with Section 424(a)

A-18

### **Table of Contents**

of the Internal Revenue Code. Roslyn, or its Board of Directors or an appropriate committee thereof, has taken all action necessary on its part to give effect to the provisions of this Section 4.10.

- (b) Assumption by NYCB. At or prior to the Effective Time, Roslyn shall make all necessary arrangements with respect to its plans to permit assumption of the unexercised Roslyn Options by NYCB pursuant to this Section 4.10, and as of the Effective Time NYCB shall assume such Roslyn Options and the plans under which they have been issued.
- (c) Reservation and Registration of Shares. NYCB shall take all corporate action necessary to reserve for future issuance a sufficient additional number of shares of NYCB Common Stock to provide for the satisfaction of its obligations with respect to the New Options. As soon as practicable following the Effective Time, NYCB shall file a registration statement on Form S-8 (or any successor or other appropriate form) and make any state filings or obtain state exemptions with respect to the NYCB Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the New Options.
- 4.11 *Benefit Plans*. (a) Each person who is employed by Roslyn or Roslyn Bank immediately prior to the Effective Time (a *Roslyn Employee*) shall, at the Effective Time, become an employee of NYCB or NYCB Bank ( *Transferred Employees*); *provided, however*, that no Transferred Employee shall be, or have or exercise the authority of, an officer of NYCB Bank unless and until elected or appointed an officer of NYCB or NYCB Bank in accordance with NYCB or NYCB Bank s bylaws.
- (b) At or as soon as practicable following the Effective Time, NYCB and NYCB Bank shall establish and implement a program of compensation and benefits designed to cover all similarly situated employees of NYCB, including Transferred Employees, on a uniform basis ( *New Compensation and Benefits Program* ) and the Transferred Employees shall be entitled to participate in the New Compensation and Benefits Program on a uniform basis with other similarly situated employees of NYCB and NYCB Bank following the Effective Time. The New Compensation and Benefits Program may contain any combination of new plans, continuations of plans maintained by NYCB or NYCB Bank immediately prior to the Effective Time and continuation of plans maintained by Roslyn or Roslyn Bank immediately prior to the Effective Time as NYCB, in its discretion, may determine. To the extent that it is not practicable to implement any constituent part of the New Compensation and Benefits Program at the Effective Time, NYCB and NYCB Bank shall continue in effect any comparable plan maintained immediately prior to the Effective Time for the respective employees of NYCB, Roslyn, NYCB Bank and Roslyn Bank for a transition period *provided, however*, that eligible Transferred Employees shall participate in the New York Community Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan no earlier than the beginning of the first plan year following their completion of 12 months of service with NYCB or NYCB Bank. During the transition period, the Transferred Employees shall continue to participate in the plans of Roslyn and Roslyn Bank that are continued for transitional purposes, and all other employees of NYCB or NYCB Bank will participate only in the comparable plans of NYCB and NYCB Bank that are continued for transitional purposes.
- (c) Each constituent part of the New Compensation and Benefits Program shall recognize, in the case of persons employed by NYCB, NYCB Bank, Roslyn or Roslyn Bank immediately prior to the Effective Time who are also employed by NYCB or NYCB Bank, or immediately after the Effective Time, all service with NYCB, NYCB Bank, Roslyn or Roslyn Bank (or their predecessors to the same extent recognized by NYCB, NYCB Bank, Roslyn or Roslyn Bank) as service with NYCB or NYCB Bank and for purposes of eligibility, participation, vesting and benefit accrual (but not for benefit accrual under any defined pension plan) under any employee benefit plan or arrangement maintained by NYCB or NYCB Bank for continuing employees, including under the New Compensation and Benefit Program, except for purposes of any post-retirement, health and life insurance benefits.
- (d) In the case of any constituent part of the New Compensation and Benefits Program which is a life, health or long-term disability insurance plan: (A) such plan shall not apply any preexisting condition limitations for conditions covered under applicable life, health or long-term disability insurance plans as maintained by NYCB, NYCB Bank, Roslyn and Roslyn Bank as of the Effective Time, (B) each such plan which is a health insurance plan shall honor any deductible and out-of-pocket expenses incurred under the applicable health plans

A-19

### **Table of Contents**

maintained by NYCB, NYCB Bank, Roslyn or Roslyn Bank as of the Effective Time and (C) each such plan which is a life or long-term disability insurance plan shall waive any medical certification or otherwise required in order to assure the continuation of coverage at a level not less than that in effect under the applicable life or long-term disability insurance plans maintained by NYCB, NYCB Bank, Roslyn or Roslyn Bank as of the Effective Time (but subject to any overall limit on the maximum amount of coverage under such plans).

- (e) NYCB shall assume the obligations of Roslyn and Roslyn Bank in accordance with the terms of any plans, contracts, arrangements or understandings identified in Roslyn s Disclosure Letter, as they may be in effect at the Effective Time, and shall pay amounts thereunder when due.
- (f) NYCB and Roslyn acknowledge and agree that the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Plan will constitute a Change in Control for purposes of Section 2.01(f) of the Roslyn Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the *Roslyn ESOP*) and that as soon as administratively practicable following the Effective Time, the Roslyn ESOP committee shall be authorized to take such action as may be necessary to give effect to Section 5.09 of the Roslyn ESOP. NYCB and Roslyn further agree that, following the Effective Time, the Roslyn ESOP shall be terminated and distributions shall be made in accordance with the terms of the Roslyn ESOP and applicable law. NYCB and Roslyn further agree that the allocation under the Benefit Restoration Plan for the plan year in which the consummation of the transaction occurs will be based solely on each participant s existing balance under the Roslyn ESOP (i.e., that such participant s existing account balance under the Benefit Restoration Plan will not be taken into account).
- 4.12 *Indemnification and Insurance.* (a) NYCB agrees to indemnify and hold harmless (including the advancement of expenses as incurred) each present and former director and officer of Roslyn and its subsidiaries (each, an *Indemnified Party*) following the Effective Time, against any costs or expenses (including reasonable attorneys fees), judgments, fines, losses, claims, damages or liabilities incurred in connection with any claim, action, suit, proceeding or investigation, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, arising out of or pertaining to matters existing or occurring at or prior to the Effective Time, whether asserted or claimed prior to, at or after the Effective Time, to the extent such Indemnified Party would have been indemnified as a director, officer or employee of Roslyn or any of its subsidiaries under the DGCL and Roslyn's certificate of incorporation and bylaws.
- (b) NYCB shall cause the Persons serving as officers and directors of Roslyn immediately prior to the Effective Time to be covered for a period of six years after the Effective Time by the directors and officers liability insurance policy currently maintained by Roslyn (*provided* that NYCB may substitute policies providing comparable or better coverage than such policy) with respect to acts or omissions occurring prior to the Effective Time which were committed by such officers and directors in their capacity as such; *provided*, *however*, that in no event shall NYCB be required to expend more than 200% of the amount currently expended by Roslyn (the *Maximum Amount*) to maintain or procure insurance coverage pursuant hereto, and *provided further* that, if notwithstanding the use of reasonable best efforts to do so NYCB is unable to maintain or obtain the insurance called for by this Section 4.12(b), NYCB shall obtain as much comparable insurance as available for the Maximum Amount; *provided, further*, that such Persons may be required to make reasonable application and provide reasonable and customary representations and warranties to NYCB s insurance carrier for the purpose of obtaining such insurance, comparable in nature and scope to the applications, representations and warranties required of persons who are officers and directors of NYCB as of the date hereof.
- (c) Any Indemnified Party wishing to claim indemnification under Section 4.12(a), upon learning of any claim, action, suit, proceeding or investigation described above, shall promptly notify NYCB thereof; *provided* that the failure so to notify shall not affect the obligations of NYCB under Section 4.12(a) unless and to the extent that NYCB is prejudiced as a result of such failure.
- (d) The provisions of this Section 4.12 are intended to be for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, each Indemnified Party and his or her heirs and representatives.

4.13 *Affiliate Agreements*. (a) As soon as practicable after the date hereof, Roslyn shall identify to NYCB all Persons who may be deemed at the date hereof (or at another reasonably proximate date) affiliates

A-20

### **Table of Contents**

of Roslyn, as that term is used in paragraphs (c) and (d) of Rule 145 under the Securities Act ( *Rule 145 Affiliates* ). Roslyn shall use all reasonable best efforts to obtain a written agreement substantially in the form of *Annex D* from each Person who is so identified as a possible Rule 145 Affiliate and shall deliver copies of such written agreements to NYCB as soon as practicable.

- (b) As soon as practicable after the date of the Roslyn Meeting, Roslyn shall identify to NYCB all Persons who may be deemed, at the time of the Roslyn Meeting, Rule 145 Affiliates of Roslyn and who were not previously identified in accordance with Section 4.13(a). Roslyn shall use all reasonable best efforts to obtain a written agreement in the form specified in paragraph (a) from each Person who is so identified and shall deliver copies of such written agreements to NYCB as soon as practicable.
- 4.14 *Publicity.* The initial press release relating hereto will be a joint press release and thereafter, except as otherwise required by law or the applicable rules of the NYSE or any other self-regulatory organization, Roslyn and NYCB shall coordinate with each other prior to issuing any press releases or otherwise making public statements with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby.
- 4.15 Reasonable Best Efforts; Additional Agreements. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Plan, each of NYCB and Roslyn agrees to cooperate fully with each other and to use reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable to consummate and make effective, at the time and in the manner contemplated by this Plan, the Merger, including using reasonable best efforts to lift or rescind any injunction or restraining order or other order adversely affecting the ability of the parties to consummate the Merger (it being understood that any amendments or supplements to the Registration Statement or a resolicitation of proxies as a result of a transaction by NYCB or its subsidiaries shall not violate this covenant).
- 4.16 Notification of Certain Matters. Each of NYCB and Roslyn will give prompt notice to the other (and subsequently keep the other party informed on a current basis) upon its becoming aware of the occurrence or existence of any fact, event or circumstance that (i) is reasonably likely to result in any Material Adverse Effect with respect to it, or (ii) would cause or constitute a material breach of any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained herein; provided that any failure to give notice in accordance with the foregoing with respect to any breach shall not be deemed to constitute the failure of any condition set forth in Section 5.2(a) or (b) or Section 5.3(a) or (b) to be satisfied, or to give rise to any right to terminate this Plan pursuant to Section 6.3(a) or 6.4(a), in each case unless the underlying breach would independently result in a failure of the conditions set forth in Section 5.2(a) or (b) or Section 5.3(a) or (b), as the case may be, to be satisfied or give rise to such termination right.
- 4.17 Expenses. Each of the parties shall bear and pay all costs and expenses incurred by it or on its behalf in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder, including fees and expenses of its own financial or other consultants, investment bankers, accountants and counsel, except that NYCB and Roslyn each shall bear and pay one-half of the following expenses: (i) the costs (excluding the fees and disbursements of counsel and accountants) incurred in connection with the preparation (including copying and printing) of the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus and Registration Statement and applications to Governmental Entities for the approval of the Merger and (ii) all listing, filing or registration fees, including fees paid for filing the Registration Statement and the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus with the SEC and fees paid for filings with Governmental Entities.
- 4.18 Section 16(b) Exemption. NYCB and Roslyn agree that, in order to most effectively compensate and retain Roslyn Insiders (as defined below) in connection with the Merger, both prior to and after the Effective Time, it is desirable that Roslyn Insiders not be subject to a risk of liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law in connection with the conversion of shares of Roslyn Common Stock and Roslyn Options into shares of NYCB in the Merger, and for that compensatory and retentive purpose agree to the provisions of this Section 4.18. Assuming that Roslyn delivers to NYCB the Roslyn Section 16 Information (as defined below) in a timely fashion prior to the Effective Time, the Board of Directors of

A-21

NYCB, or a committee of non-employee directors thereof (as such term is defined for purposes of Rule 16b-3(d) under the Exchange Act), shall reasonably promptly thereafter and in any event prior to the Effective Time adopt a resolution providing in substance that the receipt by the Roslyn Insiders (as defined below) of NYCB Common Stock in exchange for shares of Roslyn Common Stock, and of New Options upon conversion of Roslyn Options, in each case pursuant to the transactions contemplated hereby and to the extent such securities are listed in the Roslyn Section 16 Information, are intended to be exempt from liability pursuant to Section 16(b) under the Exchange Act to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. *Roslyn Section 16 Information* shall mean information accurate in all material respects regarding the Roslyn Insiders, the number of shares of Roslyn Common Stock held by each such Roslyn Insider and expected to be exchanged for NYCB Common Stock in the Merger, and the number and description of the options to purchase shares of Roslyn Common Stock held by each such Roslyn Insider and expected to be converted into options to purchase shares of NYCB Common Stock in connection with the Merger; *provided* that the requirement for a description of any Roslyn options shall be deemed to be satisfied if copies of all plans, and forms of agreements, under which such options have been granted have been made available to NYCB. *Roslyn Insiders* shall mean those officers and directors of Roslyn who are subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act and who are listed in the Roslyn Section 16 Information.

4.19 *Divisional Board*. Promptly following the effective time of the Bank Merger, NYCB shall cause all of the members of Roslyn's Board of Directors as of the date of this Plan (who are not members of the Board of Directors of NYCB or NYCB Bank and who are willing to serve) to be elected or appointed as members of NYCB Bank s divisional board for the Roslyn Bank division of NYCB Bank ( *Divisional Board* ). The function of the Divisional Board shall be to advise NYCB Bank with respect to deposit and lending activities in Roslyn Bank s former market area and to maintain and develop customer relationships. The Divisional Board shall exist for three years beginning on the effective date of the Bank Merger. Each member of the Divisional Board who is not a member of the Board of Directors of NYCB or NYCB Bank shall receive a per annum retainer equivalent to the amount of directors fees (excluding travel reimbursement) such member received as an existing member of Roslyn's Board of Directors in 2002.

### ARTICLE V

#### **Conditions**

- 5.1 Conditions to Each Party s Obligation to Effect the Merger. The respective obligation of each of NYCB and Roslyn to consummate the Merger is subject to the fulfillment or written waiver by NYCB and Roslyn prior to the Effective Time of each of the following conditions:
- (a) Stockholder Approval. This Plan and the Merger shall have been duly adopted and approved by the requisite votes of the stockholders of NYCB and the stockholders of Roslyn.
- (b) Governmental and Regulatory Consents. All statutory waiting periods applicable to the consummation of the Merger shall have expired or been terminated, and, other than the filing provided for in Section 1.4, all notices, reports and other filings required to be made prior to the Effective Time by NYCB or Roslyn or any of their respective subsidiaries with, and all regulatory consents, registrations, approvals, permits and authorizations required to be obtained prior to the Effective Time by NYCB or Roslyn or any of their respective subsidiaries from, any Governmental Entity in connection with the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby by NYCB and Roslyn shall have been made or obtained (as the case may be) and become final *provided* that none of the foregoing shall contain any term or condition which would have, or would be reasonably likely to have, a Material Adverse Effect on (x) NYCB and its subsidiaries taken as a whole or (y) Roslyn and its subsidiaries taken as a whole.
- (c) *Third Party Consents*. All consents or approvals of all Persons (other than Governmental Entities) required for consummation of the Merger shall have been obtained and shall be in full force and effect, unless the failure to obtain any such consent or approval would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect on NYCB or Roslyn.

A-22

### **Table of Contents**

- (d) *No Prohibitions*. No United States or state court or other Governmental Entity of competent jurisdiction shall have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any law, statute, rule, regulation, judgment, decree, injunction or other order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) which is in effect and prohibits consummation of the Merger.
- (e) Registration Statement. The Registration Statement shall have become effective under the Securities Act and no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement shall have been issued and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been initiated or threatened by the SEC or any other Governmental Entity.
- (f) *Blue Sky Approvals*. All permits and other authorizations under the Securities Laws (other than that referred to in Section 5.1(e)) and other authorizations necessary to consummate the Merger and to issue the shares of NYCB Common Stock to be issued in the Merger shall have been received and be in full force and effect.
- 5.2 Conditions to Obligation of NYCB. The obligation of NYCB to consummate the Merger is also subject to the fulfillment, or the written waiver by NYCB, prior to the Effective Time of each of the following conditions:
- (a) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of Roslyn set forth in this Plan shall be, giving effect to Sections 3.1 and 3.2, true and correct as of the date of this Plan and as of the Effective Time as though made at and as of the Effective Time (except that representations and warranties that by their terms speak specifically as of the date of this Plan or some other date shall be true and correct as of such date); and NYCB shall have received a certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed on behalf of Roslyn by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of Roslyn to such effect.
- (b) *Performance of Obligations of Roslyn*. Roslyn shall have performed in all material respects all obligations required to be performed by it under this Plan at or prior to the Effective Time, and NYCB shall have received a certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed on behalf of Roslyn by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of Roslyn to such effect.
- (c) Opinion of Tax Counsel. NYCB shall have received an opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, special counsel to NYCB, dated the Effective Time, to the effect that on the basis of the facts, representations and assumptions set forth in such opinion, (i) the Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, and (ii) each of Roslyn and NYCB will be a party to that reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. In rendering its opinion, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP may require and rely upon representations contained in letters from each of Roslyn and NYCB.
- 5.3 Conditions to Obligation of Roslyn. The obligation of Roslyn to consummate the Merger is also subject to the fulfillment, or the written waiver by Roslyn prior to the Effective Time, of each of the following conditions:
- (a) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of NYCB set forth in this Plan shall be, giving effect to Sections 3.1 and 3.2, true and correct as of the date of this Plan and as of the Effective Time as though made at and as of the Effective Time (except that representations and warranties that by their terms speak specifically as of the date of this Plan or some other date shall be true and correct as of such date) and Roslyn shall have received a certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed on behalf of NYCB by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of NYCB to such effect.

(b) *Performance of Obligations of NYCB*. NYCB shall have performed in all material respects all obligations required to be performed by it under this Plan at or prior to the Effective Time; and Roslyn shall have received a certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed on behalf of NYCB by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of NYCB to such effect.

A-23

(c) Opinion of Tax Counsel. Roslyn shall have received an opinion from Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz, special counsel to Roslyn, dated the Effective Time, to the effect that, on the basis of the facts, representations and assumptions set forth in such opinion, (i) the Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, (ii) each of Roslyn and NYCB will be a party to that reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(b) of the Internal Revenue Code and (iii) no gain or loss will be recognized by stockholders of Roslyn who receive shares of NYCB common stock in exchange for Roslyn common stock, except with respect to cash received in lieu of fractional share interests. In rendering its opinion, Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz may require and rely upon representations contained in letters from each of Roslyn and NYCB.

### ARTICLE VI

#### **Termination**

- 6.1 *Termination by Mutual Consent*. This Plan may be terminated and the Merger may be abandoned at any time prior to the Effective Time (whether or not the stockholders of Roslyn Common Stock or NYCB Common Stock have adopted and approved this Plan), upon the mutual consent of NYCB and Roslyn, by action of their respective Boards of Directors.
- 6.2 Termination by Either NYCB or Roslyn. This Plan may be terminated and the Merger may be abandoned by action of the Board of Directors of either NYCB or Roslyn if (a) the Merger shall not have been consummated by the date that is ten (10) months from the date of this Plan (the Termination Date); provided, however, that the right to terminate this Plan under this Section 6.2(a) shall not be available to any party whose failure to comply with any provision of this Plan has been the cause of, or resulted in, the failure of the Effective Time to occur on or before such date, (b) any required Regulatory Approval shall have been denied by the relevant Governmental Entity (and such denial has become final and unappealable) or such Governmental Entity shall have requested the permanent withdrawal of any application therefor or (c) the stockholders of NYCB fail to approve this Plan and the Merger at the NYCB Meeting or the stockholders of Roslyn fail to approve this Plan and the Merger at the Roslyn Meeting; provided, however, that the right to terminate this Plan under this Section 6.2(c) shall not be available to any party if it has failed to comply with its obligations under Section 4.4.
- 6.3 Termination by Roslyn. This Plan may be terminated and the Merger may be abandoned by action of the Board of Directors of Roslyn at any time prior to the Effective Time if NYCB shall have breached any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement contained herein that would result in the failure to satisfy the closing condition set forth in Section 5.3(a) or 5.3(b) and such breach cannot be or has not been cured within 30 days after the giving of a written notice to NYCB of such breach.
- 6.4 Termination by NYCB. This Plan may be terminated and the Merger may be abandoned by action of the Board of Directors of NYCB at any time prior to the Effective Time if Roslyn shall have breached any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement contained herein that would result in the failure to satisfy the closing condition set forth in Section 5.2(a) or 5.2(b) and such breach cannot be or has not been cured within 30 days after the giving of a written notice to Roslyn of such breach.
- 6.5 Effect of Termination and Abandonment. In the event of termination of this Plan and the abandonment of the Merger pursuant to this Article VI, (a) no party to this Plan shall have any liability or further obligation to any other party hereunder; provided, however, termination will not relieve a breaching party from liability for any willful breach giving rise to such termination and (b) this Plan shall forthwith be void and of no further legal effect, other than the provisions of Sections 4.7(b) and 4.17, this Section 6.5 and Article VII. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of any termination of this Plan, the Stock Option Agreements shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with their respective terms.

A-24

#### ARTICLE VII

#### Miscellaneous

- 7.1 Survival. Except for the agreements and covenants contained in Articles I and II, Section 4.10, Section 4.12 and this Article VII, the representations and warranties, agreements and covenants contained in this Plan shall be deemed only to be conditions of the Merger and shall not survive the Effective Time.
- 7.2 *Modification or Amendment.* Subject to applicable law, at any time prior to the Effective Time, the parties hereto may modify or amend this Plan, by written agreement executed and delivered by duly authorized officers of the respective parties.
- 7.3 Waiver of Conditions. The conditions to each party s obligation to consummate the Merger are for the sole benefit of such party and may be waived by such party as a whole or in part to the extent permitted by applicable law. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in a writing signed by a duly authorized officer of the waiving party that makes express reference to the provision or provisions subject to such waiver.
- 7.4 *Counterparts.* For the convenience of the parties hereto, this Plan may be executed in any number of separate counterparts, each such counterpart being deemed to be an original instrument, and all such counterparts shall together constitute the same agreement.
- 7.5 Governing Law. This Plan shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable to contracts made and to be performed entirely within the State of New York, without regard to the conflict of law principles of the State of New York.
- 7.6 *Notices*. Any notice, request, instruction or other document to be given hereunder by any party to the other shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given (a) on the date of delivery if delivered personally, or by telecopy or telefacsimile, upon confirmation of receipt, (b) on the first business day following the date of dispatch if delivered by a recognized next-day courier service, or (c) on the third business day following the date of mailing if delivered by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. All notices hereunder shall be delivered as set forth below, or pursuant to such other instructions as may be designated in writing by the party to receive such notice.

To NYCB:

Joseph R. Ficalora, President and Chief Executive Officer

New York Community Bancorp, Inc.

with copies to:

Sullivan & Cromwell LLP

125 Broad Street

New York, NY 10004-2498

Attention: Mark J. Menting

To Roslyn:

Joseph L. Mancino, President, Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman of the Board

Roslyn Bancorp, Inc.

with copies to:

Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz

51 West 52nd Street

New York, NY 10019

Attention: Adam D. Chinn

Facsimile: 212-558-3353 Facsimile: 212-403-2000

7.7 Entire Agreement, Etc. This Plan (including the Annexes hereto and the Disclosure Letters) and the Stock Option Agreements constitute the entire agreement, and supersede all other prior agreements, understandings, representations and warranties, both written and oral, between the parties, with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof, including but not limited to the Confidentiality Agreement dated May 8, 2003 in its entirety which shall hereby terminate, and this Plan shall not be assignable by operation of law or otherwise (any attempted assignment in contravention of this Section 7.7 being null and void).

7.8 Definition of subsidiary and affiliate; Covenants with Respect to Subsidiaries and Affiliates. (a) When a reference is made in this Plan to a subsidiary of a Person, the term subsidiary means

A-25

### **Table of Contents**

those other Persons that are controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person within the meaning of Section 2(2) of the BHC Act. When a reference is made in this Plan to an affiliate of a Person, the term affiliate (or *Affiliate*) means those other Persons that, directly or indirectly, control, are controlled by, or are under common control with, such Person.

- (b) Insofar as any provision of this Plan shall require a subsidiary or an affiliate of a party to take or omit to take any action, such provision shall be deemed a covenant by NYCB or Roslyn, as the case may be, to cause such action or omission to occur.
- 7.9 *Interpretation; Effect.* When a reference is made in this Plan to Sections or Annexes, such reference shall be to a Section of, or Annex to, this Plan unless otherwise indicated. The table of contents and headings contained in this Plan are for reference purposes only and are not part of this Plan. Whenever the words include, includes or including are used in this Plan, they shall be deemed to be followed by the words without limitation.
- 7.10 Severability. If any provision of this Plan or the application thereof to any Person or circumstance is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof, or the application of such provision to Persons or circumstances other than those as to which it has been held invalid or unenforceable, shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby, so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner materially adverse to any party. Upon such determination, the parties shall negotiate in good faith in an effort to agree upon a suitable and equitable substitute provision to effect the original intent of the parties.
- 7.11 *No Third Party Beneficiaries.* Nothing contained in this Plan, expressed or implied, is intended to confer upon any Person, other than the parties hereto, any benefit, right or remedies except that the provisions of Section 4.12 shall inure to the benefit of the Persons referred to therein.
- 7.12 Waiver of Jury Trial. Each party hereto acknowledges and agrees that any controversy which may arise under this Plan is likely to involve complicated and difficult issues, and therefore each party hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waives any right such party may have to a trial by jury in respect of any litigation, directly or indirectly, arising out of, or relating to, this Plan, or the transactions contemplated by this Plan. Each party certifies and acknowledges that (a) no representative, agent or attorney of any other party has represented, expressly or otherwise, that such other party would not, in the event of litigation, seek to enforce the foregoing waiver, (b) each party understands and has considered the implications of this waiver, (c) each party makes this waiver voluntarily, and (d) each party has been induced to enter into this Plan by, among other things, the mutual waivers and certifications in this Section 7.12.

[next page is a signature page]

A-26

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, this Plan has been duly executed and delivered by the duly authorized officers of the parties hereto as of the date first above written.

NEW YORK COMMUNITY BANCORP, INC.

By: /s/ Joseph R. Ficalora

Joseph R. Ficalora

President and Chief Executive Officer

ROSLYN BANCORP, INC.

By: /s/ Joseph L. Mancino

Joseph L. Mancino

President, Chief Executive Officer and Vice

Chairman of the Board

A-27

APPENDIX B

#### STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT, dated as of June 27, 2003, between Roslyn Bancorp, Inc., a Delaware corporation ( *Grantee* ), and New York Community Bancorp, Inc., a Delaware corporation ( *Issuer* ).

### WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Grantee and Issuer are entering into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the Merger Agreement );

WHEREAS, as a condition and an inducement to Grantee s entering into the Merger Agreement, Issuer is granting Grantee the Option (as hereinafter defined) and, as a condition and an inducement to Issuer s entering into the Merger Agreement, Grantee is granting Issuer a Reciprocal Option (as hereinafter defined) on terms and conditions substantially identical to those of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Issuer has approved the grant of the Option and the Merger Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein and in the Merger Agreement, the parties hereto agree as follows:

- 1. *Grant of Option*. Issuer hereby grants to Grantee an unconditional, irrevocable option (the *Option*) to purchase, subject to the terms hereof, up to an aggregate of 27,000,000 fully paid and nonassessable shares of the common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of Issuer ( *Common Stock*) at a price per share equal to \$27.10 (such price, as adjusted if applicable, the *Option Price*); *provided, however*, that in no event shall the number of shares for which this Option is exercisable (when exercisable) exceed 19.9% of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock without giving effect to any shares subject to or issued pursuant to this Option. The number of shares of Common Stock that may be received upon the exercise of the Option and the Option Price are subject to adjustment as herein set forth.
- 2. Exercise of Option. (a) The Holder (as hereinafter defined) may exercise the Option, in whole or part, if, but only if, both an Initial Triggering Event (as hereinafter defined) and a Subsequent Triggering Event (as hereinafter defined) shall have occurred prior to the occurrence of an Exercise Termination Event (as hereinafter defined), provided that the Holder shall have sent the written notice of such exercise (as provided in subsection (f) of this Section 2) within six (6) months following such Subsequent Triggering Event (or such later period as provided in Section 10). Each of the following shall be an Exercise Termination Event: (i) the Effective Time of the Merger; (ii) termination of the Merger Agreement in accordance with the provisions thereof if such termination occurs prior to the occurrence of an Initial Triggering Event except a termination by Grantee pursuant to Section 6.3 due to a willful breach by Issuer (a Listed Termination); or (iii) the passage of nine (9) months (or such longer period as provided in Section 10) after termination of the Merger Agreement if such termination follows the occurrence of an Initial Triggering Event or is a Listed Termination. The term Holder shall mean the holder or holders of the Option. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, (i) the Option may not be exercised at any time when Grantee shall be in material breach of any of its

covenants or agreements contained in the Merger Agreement such that Issuer shall be entitled to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to Section 6.4 thereof and (ii) this Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the proper termination of the Merger Agreement by Issuer pursuant to Section 6.4 thereof as a result of the material breach by Grantee of its covenants or agreements contained in the Merger Agreement.

### **Table of Contents**

- (b) The term Initial Triggering Event shall mean any of the following events or transactions occurring on or after the date hereof:
- (i) Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries (as defined in Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC )) (each an Issuer Subsidiary ), without having received Grantee s prior written consent, shall have entered into an agreement to engage in an Acquisition Transaction (as hereinafter defined) with any person (the term person for purposes of this Agreement having the meaning assigned thereto in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 1934 Act), and the rules and regulations thereunder) other than Grantee or any of its Subsidiaries (each a Grantee Subsidiary ) or the Board of Directors of Issuer (the Issuer Board ) shall have recommended that the stockholders of Issuer approve or accept any Acquisition Transaction other than the merger transaction contemplated by the Merger Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, Acquisition Transaction shall mean (x) a merger or consolidation, or any similar transaction, involving Issuer or any Issuer Subsidiary or group of Issuer Subsidiaries that is, or would on an aggregate basis constitute, a Significant Subsidiary (as defined in Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X) (other than mergers, consolidations or similar transactions (i) involving solely Issuer and/or one or more wholly-owned Subsidiaries of the Issuer or (ii) after which the common stockholders of the Issuer immediately prior thereto in the aggregate own or continue to own at least 50% of the common stock of the Issuer or the publicly held surviving or successor corporation or a parent thereof immediately following consummation thereof (an Excepted Transaction ), provided that any such transaction is not entered into in violation of the terms of the Merger Agreement), (y) a purchase, lease or other acquisition of all or any substantial part of the assets or deposits of Issuer or any Issuer Subsidiary or group of Issuer Subsidiaries that is, or would on an aggregate basis constitute, a Significant Subsidiary, or (z) a purchase or other acquisition (including by way of merger, consolidation, share exchange or otherwise) by any person of securities representing 50% or more of the voting power of Issuer or any Issuer Subsidiary or group of Issuer Subsidiaries that is, or would on an aggregate basis constitute, a Significant Subsidiary;
- (ii) Any person (other than the Grantee or any Grantee Subsidiary or any Issuer Subsidiary acting in a fiduciary capacity in the ordinary course of business) shall have acquired beneficial ownership or the right to acquire beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (the term *beneficial ownership* for purposes of this Agreement having the meaning assigned thereto in Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act, and the rules and regulations thereunder);
- (iii) The stockholders of Issuer shall have voted and failed to approve the Merger Agreement and the Merger at a meeting which has been held for that purpose or any adjournment or postponement thereof, or such meeting shall not have been held in violation of the Merger Agreement or shall have been canceled prior to termination of the Merger Agreement if, prior to such meeting (or if such meeting shall not have been held or shall have been canceled, prior to such termination), it shall have been publicly announced that any person (other than Grantee or any of its Subsidiaries) shall have made, or disclosed an intention to make, a proposal to engage in an Acquisition Transaction;
- (iv) The Issuer Board shall have withdrawn or modified or qualified (or publicly announced its intention to withdraw or modify or qualify) or failed to make in any manner adverse in any respect to Grantee its recommendation that the stockholders of Issuer approve the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement after it shall have been publicly announced that any person (other than Grantee or any of its subsidiaries) shall have made, or disclosed an intention to make, or any person (other than Grantee or any of its subsidiaries) shall have otherwise made a bona fide proposal to engage in an Acquisition Transaction, or Issuer or the Issuer Subsidiary shall have authorized, recommended or proposed (or publicly announced its intention to authorize, recommend or propose) an agreement to engage in an Acquisition Transaction with any person other than Grantee or a Grantee Subsidiary;
- (v) Any person other than Grantee or any Grantee Subsidiary shall, without the written consent of the Issuer, have filed with the SEC a registration statement or tender offer materials with respect to a potential exchange or tender offer that would constitute an Acquisition Transaction (or filed a preliminary proxy

B-2

### **Table of Contents**

statement with the SEC	with respect to a potential	vote by its stockholders	to approve the issuance	of shares to be offered	d in such an exc	hange
offer); or						

- (vi) Any person other than Grantee or any Grantee Subsidiary shall, without the written consent of the Issuer, have filed an application or notice with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the *Federal Reserve Board*) or other federal or state bank regulatory or antitrust authority for approval to engage in an Acquisition Transaction.
- (c) The term Subsequent Triggering Event shall mean any of the following events or transactions occurring after the date hereof:
- (i) The acquisition by any person (other than Grantee or any Grantee Subsidiary) of beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the then outstanding Common Stock; or
- (ii) The occurrence of the Initial Triggering Event described in clause (i) of subsection (b) of this Section 2.
- (d) The term *Reciprocal Option* shall mean the option granted pursuant to the option agreement dated the date hereof between the Grantee, as issuer of such option, and Issuer, as grantee of such option.
- (e) Issuer shall notify Grantee promptly in writing of the occurrence of any Initial Triggering Event or Subsequent Triggering Event (together, a *Triggering Event*), it being understood that the giving of such notice by Issuer shall not be a condition to the right of the Holder to exercise the Option.
- (f) In the event the Holder is entitled to and wishes to exercise the Option (or any portion thereof), it shall send to Issuer a written notice (the date of which being herein referred to as the *Notice Date*) specifying (i) the total number of shares it will purchase pursuant to such exercise and (ii) a place and date not earlier than three business days nor later than 60 business days from the Notice Date for the closing of such purchase (the *Closing Date*); *provided* that if prior notification to or approval of the Federal Reserve Board or any other regulatory or antitrust agency is required in connection with such purchase, the Holder shall promptly file the required notice or application for approval, shall promptly notify Issuer of such filing, and shall expeditiously process the same and the period of time that otherwise would run pursuant to this sentence shall run instead from the date on which any required notification periods have expired or been terminated or such approvals have been obtained and any requisite waiting period or periods shall have passed. Any exercise of the Option shall be deemed to occur on the Notice Date relating thereto.
- (g) At the closing referred to in subsection (f) of this Section 2, the Holder shall (i) pay to Issuer the aggregate purchase price for the shares of Common Stock purchased pursuant to the exercise of the Option in immediately available funds by wire transfer to a bank account designated by Issuer and (ii) present and surrender this Agreement to Issuer at its principal executive offices, *provided* that the failure or refusal of the Issuer to designate such a bank account or accept surrender of this Agreement shall not preclude the Holder from exercising the Option.
- (h) At such closing, simultaneously with the delivery of immediately available funds as provided in subsection (g) of this Section 2, Issuer shall deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing the number of shares of Common Stock purchased by the Holder and, if the Option

should be exercised in part only, a new Option evidencing the rights of the Holder thereof to purchase the balance of the shares purchasable hereunder.

(i) Certificates for Common Stock delivered at a closing hereunder may be endorsed with a restrictive legend that shall read substantially as follows:

The transfer of the shares represented by this certificate is subject to certain provisions of an agreement, dated as of June 27, 2003, between the registered holder hereof and Issuer and to resale restrictions arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. A copy of such agreement is on file at the principal office of Issuer and will be provided to the holder hereof without charge upon receipt by Issuer of a written request therefor.

B-3

It is understood and agreed that: (i) the reference to the resale restrictions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the 1933 Act) in the above legend shall be removed by delivery of substitute certificate(s) without such reference if the Holder shall have delivered to Issuer a copy of a letter from the staff of the SEC, or an opinion of counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Issuer, to the effect that such legend is not required for purposes of the 1933 Act; (ii) the reference to the provisions of this Agreement in the above legend shall be removed by delivery of substitute certificate(s) without such reference if the shares have been sold or transferred in compliance with the provisions of this Agreement and under circumstances that do not require the retention of such reference in the opinion of Counsel to the Holder; and (iii) the legend shall be removed in its entirety if the conditions in the preceding clauses (i) and (ii) are both satisfied. In addition, such certificates shall bear any other legend as may be required by law.

- (j) Upon the giving by the Holder to Issuer of the written notice of exercise of the Option provided for under subsection (f) of this Section 2 and the tender of the applicable purchase price in immediately available funds, the Holder shall be deemed to be the holder of record of the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such exercise, notwithstanding that the stock transfer books of Issuer shall then be closed or that certificates representing such shares of Common Stock shall not then be actually delivered to the Holder. Issuer shall pay all expenses, and any and all United States federal, state and local taxes and other charges that may be payable in connection with the preparation, issue and delivery of stock certificates under this Section 2 in the name of the Holder or its assignee, transferee or designee.
- 3. Authorized Shares. Issuer agrees: (i) that it shall at all times maintain, free from preemptive rights, sufficient authorized but unissued or treasury shares of Common Stock so that the Option may be exercised without additional authorization of Common Stock after giving effect to all other options, warrants, convertible securities and other rights to purchase Common Stock; (ii) that it will not, by charter amendment or through reorganization, consolidation, merger, dissolution or sale of assets, or by any other voluntary act, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the covenants, stipulations or conditions to be observed or performed hereunder by Issuer; and (iii) promptly to take all action as may from time to time be required (including (x) complying with all applicable premerger notification, reporting and waiting period requirements specified in 15 U.S.C. Section 18a and regulations promulgated thereunder and (y) in the event, under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the BHCA), or the Change in Bank Control Act of 1978, as amended, or any state or other federal banking law, prior approval of or notice to the Federal Reserve Board or to any state or other federal regulatory authority is necessary before the Option may be exercised, cooperating fully with the Holder in preparing such applications or notices and providing such information to the Federal Reserve Board or such state or other federal regulatory authority as they may require) in order to permit the Holder to exercise the Option and Issuer duly and effectively to issue shares of Common Stock pursuant hereto.
- 4. Division of Option. This Agreement (and the Option granted hereby) are exchangeable, without expense, at the option of the Holder, upon presentation and surrender of this Agreement at the principal office of Issuer, for other Agreements providing for Options of different denominations entitling the holder thereof to purchase, on the same terms and subject to the same conditions as are set forth herein, in the aggregate the same number of shares of Common Stock purchasable hereunder. The terms Agreement and Option as used herein include any Agreements and related Options for which this Agreement (and the Option granted hereby) may be exchanged. Upon receipt by Issuer of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Agreement, and (in the case of loss, theft or destruction) of reasonably satisfactory indemnification, and upon surrender and cancellation of this Agreement, if mutilated, Issuer will execute and deliver a new Agreement of like tenor and date. Any such new Agreement executed and delivered shall constitute an additional contractual obligation on the part of Issuer, whether or not the Agreement so lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated shall at any time be enforceable by anyone.
- 5. Adjustment upon Certain Changes in Capitalization. In the event of any change in, or distributions in respect of, the Common Stock by reason of stock dividends, split-ups, recapitalizations, stock combinations, subdivisions, conversions, exchanges of shares or the like, this Option shall be automatically adjusted so that

B-4

Grantee shall receive, upon exercise of the Option, the number and class of shares or other securities or property that Grantee would have received in respect of Common Stock if the Option had been exercised immediately prior to such event, or the record date therefor, as applicable and the exercise price shall be, if necessary, appropriately adjusted. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the provisions of Section 10 are applicable, the adjustments provided for in the preceding sentence shall not be made and the adjustments set forth in Section 10 shall be made.

- 6. Registration Rights. Upon the occurrence of a Subsequent Triggering Event that occurs prior to an Exercise Termination Event, Issuer shall, at the request of Grantee delivered within twelve (12) months (or such later period as provided in Section 10) of such Subsequent Triggering Event (whether on its own behalf or on behalf of any subsequent holder of this Option (or part thereof) or any of the shares of Common Stock issued pursuant hereto), promptly prepare, file and keep current a registration statement under the 1933 Act covering any shares issued and issuable pursuant to this Option and shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause such registration statement to become effective and remain current in order to permit the sale or other disposition of any shares of Common Stock issued upon total or partial exercise of this Option ( Option Shares ) in accordance with any plan of disposition requested by Grantee. Issuer will use its reasonable best efforts to cause such registration statement promptly to become effective and then to remain effective for such period not in excess of 180 days from the day such registration statement first becomes effective or such shorter time as may be reasonably necessary to effect such sales or other dispositions. Grantee shall have the right to demand two such registrations. The Issuer shall bear the costs of such registrations (including, but not limited to, Issuer s attorneys fees, printing costs and filing fees, except for underwriting discounts or commissions, brokers fees and the fees and disbursements of Grantee s counsel related thereto). The foregoing notwithstanding, if, at the time of any request by Grantee for registration of Option Shares as provided above, Issuer is in registration with respect to an underwritten public offering by Issuer of shares of Common Stock, and if in the good faith judgment of the managing underwriter or managing underwriters, or, if none, the sole underwriter or underwriters, of such offering the offer and sale of the Option Shares would interfere with the successful marketing of the shares of Common Stock offered by Issuer, the number of Option Shares otherwise to be covered in the registration statement contemplated hereby may be reduced; provided, however, that after any such required reduction the number of Option Shares to be included in such offering for the account of the Holder shall constitute at least 25% of the total number of shares to be sold by the Holder and Issuer in the aggregate; and provided further, however, that if such reduction occurs, then Issuer shall file a registration statement for the balance as promptly as practicable thereafter as to which no reduction pursuant to this Section 6 shall be permitted or occur and the Holder shall thereafter be entitled to one additional registration and the twelve (12) month period referred to in the first sentence of this section shall be increased to twenty-four (24) months. Each such Holder shall provide all information reasonably requested by Issuer for inclusion in any registration statement to be filed hereunder. If requested by any such Holder in connection with such registration, Issuer shall become a party to any underwriting agreement relating to the sale of such shares, but only to the extent of obligating itself in respect of representations, warranties, indemnities and other agreements customarily included in such underwriting agreements for Issuer. Upon receiving any request under this Section 6 from any Holder, Issuer agrees to send a copy thereof to any other person known to Issuer to be entitled to registration rights under this Section 6, in each case by promptly mailing the same, postage prepaid, to the address of record of the persons entitled to receive such copies. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in no event shall the number of registrations that Issuer is obligated to effect be increased by reason of the fact that there shall be more than one Holder as a result of any assignment or division of this Agreement.
- 7. Repurchase of Option at the Election of Grantee. (a) At any time after the occurrence of a Repurchase Event (as defined below) and prior to the date that is twelve (12) months immediately thereafter (i) at the request of the Holder, delivered prior to an Exercise Termination Event (or such later period as provided in Section 10), Issuer (or any successor thereto) shall repurchase the Option from the Holder at a price (the Option Repurchase Price ) equal to the amount by which (A) the market/offer price (as defined below) exceeds (B) the Option Price, multiplied by the number of shares for which this Option may then be exercised and (ii) at the request of the owner of Option Shares from time to time (the Owner ), delivered prior to an Exercise

B-5

Termination Event (or such later period as provided in Section 10), Issuer (or any successor thereto) shall repurchase such number of the Option Shares from the Owner as the Owner shall designate at a price (the Option Share Repurchase Price) equal to the market/offer price multiplied by the number of Option Shares so designated. The term market/offer price shall mean the highest of (i) the price per share of Common Stock at which a tender or exchange offer therefor has been made, (ii) the price per share of Common Stock to be paid by any third party pursuant to an agreement with Issuer, (iii) the highest closing price for shares of Common Stock within the one-month period immediately preceding the date the Holder gives notice of the required repurchase of this Option or the Owner gives notice of the required repurchase of Option Shares, as the case may be, or (iv) in the event of a sale of all or any substantial part of Issuer s assets or deposits, the sum of the net price paid in such sale for such assets or deposits and the current market value of the remaining net assets of Issuer as determined by a nationally recognized investment banking firm selected by the Holder or the Owner, as the case may be divided by the number of shares of Common Stock of Issuer outstanding at the time of such sale. In determining the market/offer price, the value of consideration other than cash shall be determined by a nationally recognized investment banking firm selected by the Holder or Owner, as the case may be.

- (b) The Holder and the Owner, as the case may be, may exercise its right to require Issuer to repurchase the Option and any Option Shares pursuant to this Section 7 by surrendering for such purpose to Issuer, at its principal office, a copy of this Agreement or certificates for Option Shares, as applicable, accompanied by a written notice or notices stating that the Holder or the Owner, as the case may be, elects to require Issuer to repurchase this Option and/or the Option Shares in accordance with the provisions of this Section 7. As promptly as practicable, and in any event within five business days after the surrender of the Option and/or certificates representing Option Shares and the receipt of such notice or notices relating thereto, Issuer shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Holder the Option Repurchase Price and/or to the Owner the Option Share Repurchase Price therefor or the portion thereof that Issuer is not then prohibited under applicable law and regulation from so delivering.
- (c) To the extent that Issuer is prohibited under applicable law or regulation, or as a consequence of administrative policy, from repurchasing the Option and/or the Option Shares in full, Issuer shall immediately so notify the Holder and/or the Owner and thereafter deliver or cause to be delivered, from time to time, to the Holder and/or the Owner, as appropriate, the portion of the Option Repurchase Price and the Option Share Repurchase Price, respectively, that it is no longer prohibited from delivering, within five business days after the date on which Issuer is no longer so prohibited; provided, however, that if Issuer at any time after delivery of a notice of repurchase pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section 7 is prohibited under applicable law or regulation, or as a consequence of administrative policy, from delivering to the Holder and/or the Owner, as appropriate, the Option Repurchase Price and the Option Share Repurchase Price, respectively, in full (and Issuer hereby undertakes to use its reasonable best efforts to obtain all required regulatory and legal approvals and to file any required notices as promptly as practicable in order to accomplish such repurchase), the Holder or Owner may revoke its notice of repurchase of the Option and/or the Option Shares whether in whole or to the extent of the prohibition, whereupon, in the latter case, Issuer shall promptly (i) deliver to the Holder and/or the Owner, as appropriate, that portion of the Option Repurchase Price and/or the Option Share Repurchase Price that Issuer is not prohibited from delivering; and (ii) deliver, as appropriate, either (A) to the Holder, a new Agreement evidencing the right of the Holder to purchase that number of shares of Common Stock obtained by multiplying the number of shares of Common Stock for which the surrendered Agreement was exercisable at the time of delivery of the notice of repurchase by a fraction, the numerator of which is the Option Repurchase Price less the portion thereof theretofore delivered to the Holder and the denominator of which is the Option Repurchase Price, and/or (B) to the Owner, a certificate for the Option Shares it is then so prohibited from repurchasing. If an Exercise Termination Event shall have occurred prior to the date of the notice by Issuer described in the first sentence of this subsection (c), or shall be scheduled to occur at any time before the expiration of a period ending on the thirtieth day after such date, the Holder shall nonetheless have the right to exercise the Option until the expiration of such 30-day period.

B-6

### **Table of Contents**

- (d) Issuer shall not enter into any agreement relating to or facilitating an Acquisition Transaction, unless the other party or parties thereto agree that, if the Issuer is prohibited from repurchasing (in whole or in part) the Option and/or Option Shares pursuant to Section 7(c) or the Substitute Option and/or Substitute Option Shares pursuant to Section 9(c) or from paying (in whole or in part) the Surrender Price pursuant to Section 14(c), such other party or parties will make such payment unless it or they are prohibited from doing so by applicable law or regulation. (e) For purposes of this Section 7, a Repurchase Event shall be deemed to have occurred upon the occurrence of any of the following events or transactions after the date hereof and prior to the occurrence of an Exercise Termination Event: (i) the acquisition by any person (other than Grantee or any Grantee Subsidiary) of beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the then outstanding Common Stock: or (ii) the consummation of any Acquisition Transaction described in Section 2(b)(i) hereof. 8. Substitute Option. (a) In the event that prior to an Exercise Termination Event, Issuer shall enter into an agreement (i) to consolidate with or merge into any person, other than Grantee or a Grantee Subsidiary, or engage in a plan of exchange with any person, other than Grantee or a Grantee Subsidiary and Issuer shall not be the continuing or surviving corporation of such consolidation or merger or the acquirer in such plan of exchange, (ii) to permit any person, other than Grantee or a Grantee Subsidiary, to merge into Issuer or be acquired by Issuer in a plan of exchange and Issuer shall be the continuing or surviving or acquiring corporation that is not an Excepted Transaction, or (iii) to sell or otherwise transfer all or substantially all of its assets or deposits on a consolidated basis to any person, other than Grantee or a Grantee Subsidiary, then, and in each such case, the agreement governing such transaction shall make proper provision so that the Option shall, upon the consummation of any such transaction and upon the terms and conditions set forth herein, be converted into, or exchanged for, an option (the Substitute Option ), at the election of the Holder, of either (x) the Acquiring Corporation (as hereinafter defined) or (y) any person that controls the Acquiring Corporation. (b) The following terms have the meanings indicated: (i) Acquiring Corporation shall mean (i) the continuing or surviving person of a consolidation or merger with Issuer (if other than Issuer), (ii) the acquiring person in a plan of exchange in which Issuer is acquired, (iii) the Issuer in a merger or plan of exchange in which Issuer is the continuing or surviving or acquiring person, and (iv) the transferee of all or a substantial part of Issuer s consolidated assets or deposits. Substitute Common Stock shall mean the common stock issued by the issuer of the Substitute Option upon exercise of the Substitute Option. (iii) Assigned Value shall mean the market/offer price, as defined in Section 7.
- (iv) Average Price shall mean the average closing price of a share of the Substitute Common Stock for one year immediately preceding the consolidation, merger or sale in question, but in no event higher than the closing price of the shares of Substitute Common Stock on the day preceding such consolidation, merger or sale; provided that if Issuer is the issuer of the Substitute Option, the Average Price shall be computed

with respect to a share of common stock issued by the person merging into Issuer or by any company which controls or is controlled by such person, as the Holder may elect.

(c) Subject to paragraph (d) of this Section 8, the Substitute Option shall have the same terms as the Option, *provided* that if the terms of the Substitute Option cannot, for legal reasons, be the same as the Option, such terms shall be as similar as possible and in no event less advantageous to the Holder. The issuer of the Substitute Option shall also enter into an agreement with the then Holder or Holders of the Substitute Option in substantially the same form as this Agreement (after giving effect for such purpose to the provisions of Section 9), which agreement shall be applicable to the Substitute Option.

B-7

### **Table of Contents**

- (d) The Substitute Option shall be exercisable for such number of shares of Substitute Common Stock as is equal to the Assigned Value multiplied by the number of shares of Common Stock for which the Option was exercisable immediately prior to the event described in the first sentence of Section 8(a), divided by the Average Price. The exercise price of the Substitute Option per share of Substitute Common Stock shall then be equal to the Option Price multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock for which the Option was exercisable immediately prior to the event described in the first sentence of Section 8(a) and the denominator of which shall be the number of shares of Substitute Common Stock for which the Substitute Option is exercisable.
- (e) In no event, pursuant to any of the foregoing paragraphs, shall the Substitute Option be exercisable for more than 19.9% of the shares of Substitute Common Stock outstanding prior to exercise of the Substitute Option. In the event that the Substitute Option would be exercisable for more than 19.9% of the shares of Substitute Common Stock outstanding prior to exercise but for this clause (e), the issuer of the Substitute Option (the Substitute Option Issuer) shall make a cash payment to Holder equal to the excess of (i) the value of the Substitute Option without giving effect to the limitation in this clause (e) over (ii) the value of the Substitute Option after giving effect to the limitation in this clause (e). This difference in value shall be determined by a nationally recognized investment banking firm selected by the Holder.
- (f) Issuer shall not enter into any transaction described in subsection (a) of this Section 8, or into any agreement that is designed to, or has the purpose of facilitating such a transaction, unless the Acquiring Corporation and any person that controls the Acquiring Corporation assume in writing all the obligations of Issuer hereunder.
- 9. Repurchase of Substitute Option. (a) At the request of the holder of the Substitute Option (the Substitute Option Holder) made prior to an Exercise Termination Event, the issuer of the Substitute Option (the Substitute Option Issuer) shall repurchase the Substitute Option from the Substitute Option Holder at a price (the Substitute Option Repurchase Price) equal to the amount by which (i) the Highest Closing Price (as hereinafter defined) exceeds (ii) the exercise price of the Substitute Option, multiplied by the number of shares of Substitute Common Stock for which the Substitute Option may then be exercised, and at the request made prior to an Exercise Termination Event of any present or former substitute Option Holder (each, a Substitute Share Owner) who at the time owns shares of Substitute Common Stock issued upon total or partial exercise of the Substitute Option (the Substitute Shares), the Substitute Option Issuer shall repurchase the Substitute Shares at a price (the Substitute Share Repurchase Price) equal to the Highest Closing Price multiplied by the number of Substitute Shares to be so repurchased. The term Highest Closing Price shall mean the highest closing price for shares of Substitute Common Stock within the one-month period immediately preceding the date the Substitute Option Holder gives notice of the required repurchase of the Substitute Option or the Substitute Shares Owner gives notice of the required repurchase of the Substitute Shares, as applicable.
- (b) The Substitute Option Holder and the Substitute Share Owner, as the case may be, may exercise its respective rights to require the Substitute Option Issuer to repurchase the Substitute Option and the Substitute Shares pursuant to this Section 9 by surrendering for such purpose to the Substitute Option Issuer, at its principal office, the agreement for such Substitute Option (or, in the absence of such an agreement, a copy of this Agreement) and/or certificates for Substitute Shares accompanied by a written notice or notices stating that the Substitute Option Holder or the Substitute Share Owner, as the case may be, elects to require the Substitute Option Issuer to repurchase the Substitute Option and/or the Substitute Shares in accordance with the provisions of this Section 9. As promptly as practicable and in any event within five business days after the surrender of the Substitute Option and/or certificates representing Substitute Shares and the receipt of such notice or notices relating thereto, the Substitute Option Issuer shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Substitute Option Holder the Substitute Option Repurchase Price and/or to the Substitute Share Owner the Substitute Share Repurchase Price therefor or the portion thereof which the Substitute Option Issuer is not then prohibited under applicable law and regulation from so delivering.
- (c) To the extent that the Substitute Option Issuer is prohibited under applicable law or regulation, or as a consequence of administrative policy, from repurchasing the Substitute Option and/or the Substitute

B-8

Shares in part or in full, the Substitute Option Issuer shall immediately so notify the Substitute Option Holder and/or the Substitute Share Owner and thereafter deliver or cause to be delivered, from time to time, to the Substitute Option Holder and/or the Substitute Share Owner, as appropriate, the portion of the Substitute Option Repurchase Price and/or the Substitute Share Repurchase Price, respectively, which it is no longer prohibited from delivering, within five (5) business days after the date on which the Substitute Option Issuer is no longer so prohibited; provided, however, that if the Substitute Option Issuer is at any time after delivery of a notice of repurchase pursuant to subsection (b) of this Section 9 prohibited under applicable law or regulation, or as a consequence of administrative policy, from delivering to the Substitute Option Holder and/or the Substitute Share Owner, as appropriate, the Substitute Option Repurchase Price and the Substitute Share Repurchase Price, respectively, in full (and the Substitute Option Issuer shall use its reasonable best efforts to receive all required regulatory and legal approvals as promptly as practicable in order to accomplish such repurchase), the Substitute Option Holder and/or Substitute Share Owner may revoke its notice of repurchase of the Substitute Option or the Substitute Shares either in whole or to the extent of prohibition, whereupon, in the latter case, the Substitute Option Issuer shall promptly (i) deliver to the Substitute Option Holder or Substitute Share Owner, as appropriate, that portion of the Substitute Option Repurchase Price or the Substitute Share Repurchase Price that the Substitute Option Issuer is not prohibited from delivering; and (ii) deliver, as appropriate, either (A) to the Substitute Option Holder, a new Substitute Option evidencing the right of the Substitute Option Holder to purchase that number of shares of the Substitute Common Stock obtained by multiplying the number of shares of the Substitute Common Stock for which the surrendered Substitute Option was exercisable at the time of delivery of the notice of repurchase by a fraction, the numerator of which is the Substitute Option Repurchase Price less the portion thereof theretofore delivered to the Substitute Option Holder and the denominator of which is the Substitute Option Repurchase Price, and/or (B) to the Substitute Share Owner, a certificate for the Substitute Option Shares it is then so prohibited from repurchasing. If an Exercise Termination Event shall have occurred prior to the date of the notice by the Substitute Option Issuer described in the first sentence of this subsection (c), or shall be scheduled to occur at any time before the expiration of a period ending on the thirtieth day after such date, the Substitute Option Holder shall nevertheless have the right to exercise the Substitute Option until the expiration of such 30-day period.

- 10. Certain Time Periods. The time periods for exercise of certain rights under Sections 2, 6, 7, 9, 12 and 14 shall be extended in any given case: (i) to the extent necessary to obtain all regulatory approvals for the exercise of such rights (for so long as the Holder, Owner, Substitute Option Holder or Substitute Share Owner, as the case may be, is using commercially reasonable efforts to obtain such regulatory approvals), and for the expiration of all statutory waiting periods; (ii) to the extent necessary to avoid liability under Section 16(b) of the 1934 Act by reason of such exercise and (iii) during any period in which Grantee is precluded from exercising such rights due to an injunction or other legal restriction, plus in each case, such additional period as is reasonably necessary for the exercise of such rights promptly following the obtaining of such approvals or the expiration of such periods.
- 11. Representations and Warranties. (a) Issuer hereby represents and warrants to Grantee as follows:
- (i) Issuer has full corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereb